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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is underwriting of all classes of general insurance business.

RESULTS
RM
Net profit for the financial year 10,698,585

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial
year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature.
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DIVIDENDS

The amounts of dividend paid by the Company since 31 December 2023 were as follows:

RM
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2023 as reported in the
Directors’ report of that year:
Final single-tier dividend of RM0.506 per ordinary share on
100,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 29 April 2024 50,600,000

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, a final single-tier dividend
in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2024 of RMO0.107 per ordinary share on
100,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to a dividend payable of RM 10,700,000 will be proposed
for shareholder's approval.

The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such
dividend, if approved by the shareholder, will be accounted for in the shareholder's equity as
appropriation of retained earnings in the next financial year ending 31 December 2025.

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors of the Company in office since the beginning of the financial year to
the date of this report are:

Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip (Chairman)

Mdm Tan Fong Sang

Mr Lai Chin Tak

Mr Tong Hon Keong

Mr Gan Kim Khoon (Appointed on 1 September 2024)

Mr Ng Hon Soon (Appointed on 1 September 2024)

Mr Gregory Thomas Hingston (Appointed on 14 February 2025)
Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib (Retired on 18 April 2024)
Mr Khor Hock Seng (Ceased to hold office on 31 October 2024)

In accordance with Clause 74 of the Company’s Constitution, Mdm Tan Fong Sang will retire at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers herself for re-election.

In accordance with Clause 78 of the Company’s Constitution, Mr Gan Kim Khoon, Mr Ng Hon
Soon and Mr Gregory Thomas Hingston will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate,
other than the options over shares in the Company’s ultimate holding company as disclosed in this
report.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive
a benefit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and
receivable by the Directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company as shown in
Notes 13(b) and 21(b) to the financial statements amounted to RM1,073,200) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any Director or with a firm of which
the Director is a member or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial
interest required to be disclosed under Fifth Schedule, Part 1 Section 3 of the Companies Act 2016.

A Director and Officer’s Liability Insurance has been entered into by the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024 pursuant to Section 289 of the Companies Act 2016. The cost of
insurance effected for the Directors and Officers of the Company amounted to RM36,328.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited ("OCBC Bank"), a public-
listed company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore, as the ultimate holding company of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, the interests of the Directors in office at the
end of the financial year in shares and options over shares in the Company’s ultimate holding
company, OCBC Bank during the financial year were as follows:

(a)

(a)

(b)

Shareholdings in which
Directors have a direct interest
1.1.2024 Acquired Disposed 31.12.2024

Ordinary shares of
OCBC Bank
Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip 4,614 32 - 4,646
Mr Khor Hock Seng 676,011 114,106  (139,800) 650,317
Mdm Tan Fong Sang 71,352 = - 71,352
Shareholdings in which Directors are deemed
to have an interest
1.1.2024 Acquired Disposed 31.12.2024
Ordinary shares of
OCBC Bank (cont’d.)
Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip 10,340 - - 10,340,
Mr Khor Hock Seng 279,003 104,531  (114,106) 269,428 ,,
Notes:
() Deemed interest arising from shareholdings by spouse.
2y Deemed interest arising from OCBC Deferred Share Plan.
Options held by Directors in their own name
1.1.2024 Granted Exercised 31.12.2024
Options to subscribe

for ordinary shares of
OCBC Bank
Mr Khor Hock Seng 122,135 - (122,135) -

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors in office at the end of the financial year
had any interest in shares in the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES

The Company has taken concerted steps to comply with Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM") Policy
Document on Corporate Governance issued on 3 August 2016 (the "CG PD"). The Company is
committed to the standards and practices prescribed in this policy document.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a) Before the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the Company were
made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

(b)

(©)

®

(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known
bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful
debts; and

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in
the accounting records in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:

®

(i)

the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of provision for doubtful debts in the
financial statements of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Company
misleading.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen
which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of
the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d) At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt
with in this report or in the financial statements of the Company which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D.)
(e) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

(f) In the opinion of the Directors:

(i) no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due; and

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Company for the financial year in which
this report is made.

(g) Before the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the Company were
made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that there was adequate provision
for its insurance contract liabilities in accordance with the valuation method under MFRS17

basis.

For the purpose of paragraphs (e)(ii) and (f)(i) above, contingent or other liabilities do not include
liabilities arising from contracts of insurance underwritten in the ordinary course of business of the
Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

There were no subsequent events after the financial year.



198301007025 (102249-P)

GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), have expressed their
willingness to continue in office. Auditors’ remuneration of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024 amounted to RM775,766 are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

There was no indemnity given to, or insurance effected for auditors of the Company in respect of

the liability for any act or omission in their capacity as auditors of the Company during the
financial year.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 28 MAR 2025

Tan Fong Satlg Lai Chin Tak
Director Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES (as referred to in the Directors’ Report)

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad (the
“Company”) together with the Management place great importance on high standards of corporate
governance and are both committed to upholding values of integrity, honesty and proper corporate
conduct at all times in the business operations and dealings of the Company.

The Company adopts corporate governance practices as guided by the Bank Negara Malaysia
(“BNM”) Policy Document on Corporate Governance issued on 3 August 2016 (the “CG PD”) and
continues to enhance its overall governance standards.

BOARD MATTERS

The Board’s Conduct of Affairs

The prime stewardship responsibilities of the Board are to ensure the Company’s viability and
sustainability, and that it is managed in the best interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Company has a Board Charter approved by the Board.

The Board provides strategic directions to, and oversight of the operations of the Company. The
principal roles and functions of the Board, as set out in the Board Charter include the following:

(a) providing leadership, reviewing, approving and overseeing the implementation of the
Company’s strategic direction and overall business objectives as well as the organisational
structure of the Company as developed and recommended by the Management;

(b) ensuring that the decisions and investments are consistent with the long-term strategic goals of
the Company and reasonable standards of fair dealing with all stakeholders;

(c) ensuring that obligations to shareholders, customers, policyholders and other stakeholders are
understood and met;

(d) ensuring that the necessary resources are in place for the Company to achieve its objectives;
(e) ensuring that the Company operates in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, as
well as policies, processes and guidelines approved by the Board, so as to preserve its

financial integrity;

(f) reviewing and approving any transaction for the acquisition or disposal of assets that is
material to the Company;
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)

The Board’s Conduct of Affairs (cont’d.)

(8)

(h)

)

Q)

(9]

0]

(m)

meeting regularly with Management, including key persons in control job functions,
discussing and reviewing critically the decisions made, information provided and any
explanations given by Management and key persons in control job functions, relating to the
business and operations of the Company;

overseeing and approving of the Company’s risk appetite to be consistent with the strategic
intent, operating and regulatory environment, effective internal controls, capital sufficiency
and regulatory standards;

overseeing through the Board Audit Committee, the quality and integrity of the accounting
and financial reporting systems, disclosure controls and procedures, and system of internal
controls, and the review of all material related party transactions;

overseeing, through the Board Risk Management Committee, the management of the risks of
the Company, the establishment and operation of an independent and adequate risk
management function, supported by a system of sound internal controls, for identifying,
measuring, monitoring, controlling and reporting risks on an enterprise-wide basis, the
adequacy of the risk management function (including ensuring that it is sufficiently resourced
to monitor risk by the various risk categories and with appropriate independent reporting
lines), and the capital management strategy, including the optimal allocation of capital
resources, and the quality of the risk management processes and reporting;

overseeing through the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the selection,
performance, remuneration and succession planning of the Senior Officers' and Non-Senior

Officers” , such that the Board is satisfied with their collective competence to effectively lead
the operations of the Company;

establishing corporate values and standards, emphasizing integrity, honesty and proper
conduct at all times, with respect to internal dealings and external transactions, including
situations where there are potential conflicts of interest;

overseeing, through the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the design and
operation of an appropriate remuneration framework and ensuring that the remuneration
practices are aligned with the remuneration framework;

' Senior Officers of the Company referred throughout this Corporate Governance Disclosures are the Senior Management
Team and such other executives as the Board and/or regulator should determine.

* Non-Senior Officers of the Company referred throughout this Corporate Governance Disclosures are officers with rank of
Senior Vice Presidents and above who are not members of the Senior Management Team, and officers who are categorised as
Other Material Risk Takers.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
The Board’s Conduct of Affairs (cont’d.)

(n) reviewing Management’s performance and ensuring that Management formulates policies and
processes to promote fair practices and high standards of business conduct by staff;

(0) maintaining records of all meetings of the Board and Board Committees, especially with
regards to records of discussions on key deliberations and decisions taken;

(p) overseeing the implementation of the Company’s governance and internal control
frameworks, and periodically reviewing the frameworks to ensure they remain appropriate in
light of material changes to the size, nature and complexity of the Company’s operations;

(q) promoting sustainability through appropriate environmental, social and governance
considerations in the Company’s business strategies;

(r) overseeing and approving the recovery and resolution as well as business continuity plans for
the Company to restore its financial strength, and to maintain or preserve critical operations
and services when they come under stress; and

(s) promoting timely and effective communications between the Company and regulators on
matters affecting or that may affect the safety and soundness of the Company.

Conflicts of Interest

The Company has implemented a Directors’ Conflict of Interest (“COI”) Guide which sets out the
procedures to address actual or potential conflicts of interest of the Directors. The COI Guide
serves to safeguard against the risk that a Director’s decision may be unduly influenced by other
secondary interests, instead of the interests of the Company. Pursuant to the COI Guide, the
Directors of the Company shall disclose to the Board the nature and extent of their interest whether
directly or indirectly, in a material transaction or material arrangement with the Company.

Directors with conflicts of interest recuse themselves from discussions and decisions involving the
issues of conflict.

Board Approval

The Company has adopted internal guidelines on matters that require Board approval. These
guidelines are communicated to Management in writing. Matters requiring Board approval include
but are not limited to the overall business strategy and direction, significant policies governing the
operations of the Company, strategic or significant acquisitions or disposal of assets by the
Company, corporate restructuring, major corporate initiatives and other activities of a significant
nature, dividend policy and dividend declaration, all material related party transactions, authority
levels for the Company’s core functions and outsourcing of core business functions.

10
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Board Approval (cont’d.)

The Board approves transactions exceeding certain threshold limits, while delegating authority for
transactions below the threshold limits to the Board Committees and Management to optimise
operational efficiency.

Board Committees

While the Board has the ultimate responsibility for the affairs of the Company, it has established a
number of Board Committees to assist it in carrying out more effective oversight of the operations
and business affairs of the Company. These Board Committees consist of the Board Audit
Committee, Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee and Board Risk Management
Committee. All the Board Committees have been constituted with clear Board-approved written
terms of reference setting out their compositions, authorities and duties, and any changes thereto
also require the Board’s approval.

The Board Committees, in carrying out their responsibilities in accordance with their respective
terms of reference, are also actively involved in assisting the Board to ensure compliance with good
corporate governance practices by the Company. Minutes of the Board Committees’ meetings,
which provide a fair and accurate record of the discussions, key deliberations and decisions taken
during the meetings, are maintained and circulated to the Board. The composition and details of
principal roles and responsibilities of the Board Committees are set out below.

Under the CG PD, the Board Committees are required to comprise at least three Non-Executive
Directors, with a majority of them being Independent Directors. The Board Committees must be
chaired by an Independent Director who is not the Chairman of the Company.

Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee comprises the following Directors:
*  Mdm Tan Fong Sang, Chairperson
e Mr Lai Chin Tak, Member
e Mr Ng Hon Soon, Member (Appointed on 1 March 2025)

Majority of the Members (including the Board Audit Committee Chairperson) are Independent
Directors.

The Board Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of
reference and has the full co-operation of and access to Management. It has full discretion to invite
any Director or Senior Officer to attend its meetings. It also has resources to discharge its functions

properly.

11
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)

Board Audit Committee (cont’d.)

The Company utilises the services of the Internal Audit Department (“Internal Audit”) of Great
Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad (“GELM”), via an outsourcing arrangement. Internal
Audit assists the Board Audit Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities. It serves to
provide the Board and Management with independent and objective assessments of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the governance, risk management and internal control processes as designed
and implemented by Management. The Internal Audit Charter is approved by the Board.

The functions performed by the Board Audit Committee and details of the Board Audit
Committee’s activities during 2024 included the following:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d
(e)
()

()

Reviewed with the Internal Auditors —

(i) their audit plan, evaluation of the system of internal controls and audit reports;
(ii) the scope and results of the internal audits; and

(iii) the assistance given by the officers of the Company to the internal auditors.

Reviewed with the External Auditors —

(i) their audit plan prior to the commencement of the annual audit;

(ii) the interim financial statements and the audited financial statements of the Company for
the financial year and the auditors’ report thereon for submission to the Board for
consideration and approval thereafter;

(iii) the scope and results of the audit procedures and cost effectiveness, and their
independence and objectivity taking into consideration factors including the nature and
extent of non-audit services provided by them (if any);

(iv) the implications and impact of new or proposed changes in financial reporting standards,
accounting policies and regulatory requirements on the financial statements together
with the Senior Officers;

(v) any significant financial reporting issues, to ensure the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company; and

(vi) the assistance given by the officers of the Company, including the internal auditors, to
the external auditors.

Reviewed the adequacy, independence and effectiveness of the outsourced internal audit
function.

Maintained an appropriate relationship with both the internal and external auditors.
Recommended the re-appointment of the external auditors to the Board.

Recommended the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors to the
Board.

Reviewed and updated the Board on all related-party transactions.

12
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Board Audit Committee (cont’d.)
(h) Monitored compliance with the COI Guide.

The Board Audit Committee, in performing its functions, meets at least once annually with the
internal and external auditors in separate sessions without the presence of Management, to consider
any other matters which may be raised privately.

The Board Audit Committee held a total of four scheduled meetings in 2024. By invitation, the
Board Audit Committee meetings were also attended by the internal and external auditors,
Executive Director, Group Chief Financial Officer, Group Chief Internal Auditor and relevant
Senior Officers.

Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee comprises the following Directors:
e Mr Lai Chin Tak, Chairman
*  Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip, Member
*  Mdm Tan Fong Sang, Member

Majority of the members (including the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee
Chairman) are Independent Directors.

The responsibilities of the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee are set out in its
Board-approved terms of reference. The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee reviews
the Board and Board Committee compositions annually and ensures that there is progressive
renewal of the Board. It is responsible for identifying candidates for directorship, reviewing and
recommending nominations and re-nominations of Directors on the Board and Board Committees.
It also reviews nominations and dismissals or resignations of Senior Officer and Non-Senior
Officer positions in the Company.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee is also responsible to recommend to the
Board for endorsement a framework of Directors’ fees, as well as remuneration of the Senior
Officers and Non-Senior Officers. For Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers, the framework
covers all aspects of total compensation packages including basic salary, various performance
bonus, allowances, deferred share awards and benefits. The variable components have been
designed to link rewards to corporate and individual performance, based on appropriate and
meaningful performance measures set up by the Company, and approved by the Board
Nominations and Remuneration Committee and the Board. The Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee also ensures that the Company’s remuneration policies and practices are
aligned with the approved framework and that remuneration packages are appropriate to attract,
retain and motivate the Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers to successfully manage the
Company for the long term without being excessive.

13
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee (cont’d.)

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee held a total of ten meetings (comprising five
scheduled and five ad hoc meetings) in 2024.

Board Risk Management Committee

The Board Risk Management Committee comprises the following Directors:
¢ Mr Tong Hon Keong, Chairman
e Mr Lai Chin Tak, Member
e Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip, Member
»  Mr Gan Kim Khoon, Member (Appointed on | September 2024)

Majority of the Members (including the Board Risk Management Committee Chairman) are
Independent Directors.

The Board Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing all risk management and
compliance matters which the Company is or may be exposed to (including strategic, market,
credit, liquidity, insurance, operational, technology, cyber security, information/data loss,
regulatory and compliance, sustainability and any other category of risks); as well as technology-
related matters as delegated by the Board or as deemed necessary by the Board Risk Management
Committee.

These are executed by reviewing various output and mechanisms such as the risk profile, risk
appetite and tolerance level, and risk and capital management strategy, guided by the overall
corporate strategy and risk appetite approved by the Board. The Board Risk Management
Committee also assists the Board in monitoring the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management processes and systems set up by the Company. It oversees the cultivation of a strong
risk culture that promotes risk awareness and sound risk taking.

The Board Risk Management Committee performs its functions pursuant to its Board-approved
terms of reference. Its terms of reference include endorsement or approval of (where applicable)
frameworks, policies, charters and strategies for effective risk management of various risk
exposures including those arising from investment management and asset-liability management; as
well as review of other financial transactions that exceed the authority limits of the Management
Committees. Material investment-related activities and transactions are reviewed by the Board Risk
Management Committee and recommended to the Board for information or approval, as applicable.

In discharging its duties and responsibilities, the Company engages the services of the Risk
Management and Compliance Departments of GELM, which are adequately resourced with
experienced and qualified personnel who are sufficiently independent to perform their duties
objectively. The Risk Management regularly engages Senior Officers to develop enterprise-wide
risk controls and risk mitigation procedures. The Board Risk Management Committee reviews the
performance of the outsourced services and its servicing fees annually.

14
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Board Risk Management Committee (cont’d.)

The Board Risk Management Committee meets with the Division Head, Risk Management and the
Division Head, Compliance at least once a year without the presence of Management to discuss
matters, which may be raised privately.

The Board Risk Management Committee held a total of five scheduled meetings in 2024.

The Company’s enterprise risk governance and management objectives and policies and other
pertinent details are disclosed in Note 23 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board meets regularly during the year to review the business performance and key activities of
the Company, and to deliberate significant business proposals presented by the Management. All
members of the Board participate actively in Board discussions and decisions are taken objectively
in the interests of the Company. The Board works with Management to achieve its stated goals and
Management remains accountable to the Board. Where warranted by particular circumstances, ad
hoc Board or Board Committee meetings will be convened. In 2024, the Board convened eight
scheduled and one ad hoc Board meetings.

The contributions of the Directors go beyond attendance at meetings. They individually or
collectively engage with other Directors and Management outside formal meetings in their
oversight of the affairs of the Company.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees via telephone, video conference, or any other similar
communications equipment are permitted by the Company’s Constitution. If a Director is unable to
attend a Board or Board Committee meeting, he will still be able to access all the papers and
materials to be tabled for discussion at that meeting. Directors are provided with complete,
adequate and timely information relating to agenda items before each meeting. Directors are also
equipped with electronic tablets that allow secured access to Board and Board Committee meeting
materials.

All Directors have complied with the annual minimum requirement of 75% attendance at Board
meetings as stipulated in the CG PD and Board Charter.

15
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (cont’d.)

The number of meetings of the Board and Board Committees held in 2024 and the attendance of
the Directors at those meetings are tabulated in the following table:

Directors’ attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings in 2024

| Board Nominations
| and Remuneration
Committee

Board Risk Annual
Management General
Committee| Meeting

Board Audit

Director Committee

Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip" 9/9 4/4 10/10 3/3 LW
Mr Khor Hock Seng™ 8/8 - - -
Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin 4/4 . 4/4 2/2
bin Taib®
Mdm Tan Fong Sang 9/9 4/4 10110 - y
Mr Lai Chin Tak* 9/9 4/4 6/6 5/5
Mr Tong Hon Keong® 8/8 - - 5/5
Mr Gan Kim Khoon® 11 - - 1/1 -
Mr Ng Hon Soon'” 11 - - - -
Notes:

(1) Appointed as Member of the Board Risk Management Committee on 19 April 2024.
@) Ceased to hold office as Director on 31 October 2024.
(3

Retired as Director and relinquished his position as Chairman of the Board Nominations and Remuneration
Committee and Board Risk Management Committee on 18 April 2024.

(4) Appointed as Member of the Board Audit Committee on 1 January 2024; and Chairman and Member of the
Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee on 19 April 2024.

(5) Appointed as Chairman of the Board Risk Management Committee on 19 Aprit 2024.

(6) Appointed as Director and Member of the Board Risk Management Committee on 1 September 2024.
(7)  Appointed as Director on I September 2024.
(-)  Not applicable to the Non-Member of the respective Board Committees.

Two Joint Board Audit Committee — Board Risk Management Committee meetings held in 2024. Directors’ attendance
at these meetings is not included in the above table.

16
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Access to Information

The Directors are provided with relevant and timely information by Management on matters to be
discussed or considered at meetings of the Board and Board Committees. For matters requiring
approval, information furnished by Management usually includes background explanatory
information, relevant facts and/or analysis to support the proposal, implications or merits of the
case, risk analysis and mitigating strategies, the budget (if applicable) and Management’s
recommendation. The Senior Officers who can provide additional information and insight or
provide clarifications to queries raised are usually present at the meeting during discussion on such
matters. Occasionally, external consultants engaged on specific projects may also be invited to brief
the Board or Board Commiittees, where relevant. All Board and Board Committees’ members have
unfettered access to information, which the Company is in possession of or has access to, for the
purpose of carrying out their responsibilities.

Directors have separate and independent access to the Company Secretary and Senior Officers at
all times. The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and prepares minutes of Board
proceedings. She assists the Chairman to ensure that appropriate Board procedures are followed
and that applicable regulations are complied with. Under the direction of the Chairman, she ensures
good information flows within the Board and Board Committees, and between Senior Officers and
Directors. The Company Secretary also facilitates the orientation of new Directors and professional
development of Directors, as required. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
considered to be a matter for the Board as a whole.

The Directors may take independent professional advice as and when necessary to enable them to
discharge their duties effectively. Similarly, the Board and Board Committees may obtain
professional advice, whenever necessary and appropriate, so as to effectively discharge their roles
and responsibilities. All engagements of external advisors are at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Board Orientation and Development

A formal appointment letter will be issued to a newly appointed Director, together with a Director’s
orientation kit which will include key information of the Company, the terms of reference of the
Board and Board Committees, duties and obligations of Directors as well as relevant rules and
regulations. As part of the induction programme for new Directors, the Senior Officers will
conduct presentation sessions on the Company’s principal activities, business operations, staff
strengths, and applicable rules and regulations. The induction programme will be tailored to the
specific development needs of the new Directors. The Company constantly reviews and improves
on the contents of such presentations to new Directors, taking into account any new legislative
changes which affect them and to enable Directors to have a more comprehensive understanding of
the Company, the insurance business and practices, as well as the Company’s financial position.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee ensures that there is a continuous
development programme for all Directors, to ensure that they are equipped with the appropriate
skills and knowledge to perform their roles on the Board and Board Committees effectively. The
Company arranges for new Directors to be briefed on areas such as accounting, risk management,
insurance, cybersecurity and Environmental, Social and Governance matters; and facilitates their
attendance at the mandatory “Financial Institutions Directors’ Education (“FIDE”) Core
Programme. Industry-related and topical articles are regularly circulated to Directors as part of the
Directors’ continuous development programme. The Board Nominations and Remuneration
Committee also encourages the Directors to be continually updated on developments affecting the
insurance industry by offering them attendance at appropriate courses, conferences and seminars
conducted by professional bodies within the industry or other professional organisations including
programmes conducted by the FIDE FORUM, at their convenience. The Company has dedicated
sufficient resources towards the on-going development of its Directors. The Company arranges for
and funds the training and development programmes for existing and new Directors. The Company
also maintains formal records of the training and development received by its Directors.

From time to time, in collaboration with the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the
Board Risk Management Committee organises Board Educational Series, with briefings or
presentations by external professionals, consultants or Management staff on topics relevant to the
insurance industry and provides updates on developments in the industry locally.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Board Orientation and Development (cont’d.)

Continuous development programmes arranged by the Company for Directors in 2024 included the
following topics:

» Board Educational Series:
i)  Anti Bribery and Corruption Post Implementation of Adequate Procedures
ii) Companies (Amendment) Act 2024 and Changes to Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Framework.
iii) Cyber Security Act 2024
iv) Data Centre — The Heart of All Digital Activities.
v) International / Domestic Policies and Trends of Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing /
Proliferation Financing.

vi) Introduction to Climate Scenario Analysis.
vii) Management of Investment Risk.
viii) 3-Manager Model.

« BNM-FIDE FORUM: Responsibility Mapping Engagement with Directors of Financial
Institution

 BNM Sasana Symposium 2024

¢ Breakfast Talk: Leveraging Al in the Fight Against Financial Crime

+ Climate Risk Management and Scenario Analysis, Climate Change and Principle- based
Taxonomy and Climate Risk Stress Testing

 Director’s Liabilities within Their Respective Institution’s AML Frameworks

e Directors Masterclass Series: What Directors Must Know: Recent Developments in Climate
Science

» Distinguished Board Leadership Series 2024: Digital Transformation of the World’s Best
Bank

» Engagement Session with FIDE FORUM Members on BNM Annual Report 2023, Economic
and Monetary Review 2023 and Financial Stability Review 2H 2023

e FIDE FORUM - CGM Masterclass: Latest Developments in Climate-Aligned Executive
Compensation

« FIDE FORUM Fireside Chat with Former Central Bank Governors on "Central Banking in an
Evolving International Financial System"

 Fireside Chat with Former Central Bank Governors on “Central Banking in an Evolving
International Financial System”

« Managing Culture to Prevent Misconduct

» Masterclass: Boardroom Climate Essentials

» Preventing Fraud: The Board’s Roles and Responsibilities

= Ransomware Exercise for Great Eastern Group

«  What Amounts to a Conflict of Interest by Directors?
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE
Board Membership

The Company’s present Board of seven Directors comprises a Non-Executive Chairman, Mr
Norman Ka Cheung Ip, five Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director. The five Non-
Executive Directors are Mdm Tan Fong Sang, Mr Lai Chin Tak, Mr Tong Hon Keong, Mr Gan
Kim Khoon and Mr Ng Hon Soon. Mr Gregory Thomas Hingston is the Executive Director.

Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib retired from the Board on 18 April 2024 and Mr Khor Hock
Seng ceased to hold office as Director on 31 October 2024.

All appointments and re-appointments of Directors of the Company are subject to the approval of
BNM.

Key Information on Directors

Key information on the Director’s qualifications, background, directorships and appointments are

provided under the section “Board of Directors” of the Company’s Annual Report3. The Directors’
memberships in various Board Committees are also set out therein. Information on their
shareholdings in the Company’s ultimate holding company, Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited (“OCBC”) are disclosed in the Directors’ Report that accompanies the Company’s
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 (“FY2024”). The Directors do
not hold any shares in the Company or its penultimate holding company, Great Eastern Holdings
Limited (“GEH”).

Board Composition and Independence

An Independent Director of the Company is one who is independent in character and judgement,
and free from associations or circumstances that may impair the exercise of his or her independent
judgement. He or she or any person linked to him or her is also independent from management,
substantial shareholder and business or other contractual relationships with the Company or any of
its affiliates within the last two years and has not served for more than nine years on the Board.
Each Director is required to abstain from the deliberations of the Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively on his or her own independence.

The Company’s Board comprises a majority of Independent Directors. The Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee determines annually whether a Director is independent. The Board
Nominations and Remuneration Committee has determined that four out of seven Directors of the
Company are independent, and they are Mdm Tan Fong Sang, Mr Lai Chin Tak, Mr Tong Hon
Keong and Mr Gan Kim Khoon.

3 Available at the Company’s website at https://www.greateasternlife.com/my/en/about-us/investor-relations/annual-
reports.html#2023_ar
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE (CONT’D.)
Board Composition and Independence (cont’d.)

Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip is deemed as non-independent as he has served for more than nine years
on the Board. Notwithstanding his non-independent status, Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip remains
independent from management and has no business or contractual relationships with the Company
or any of its affiliates.

Mr Gregory Thomas Hingston is an Executive Director as he is the Group Chief Executive Officer
of GEH.

Mr Ng Hon Soon is deemed as non-independent by BNM given that he has spent nine years on the
Board of GELM before his recent retirement as an independent director of GELM (i.e. end October
2023).

The Board, through its Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, is of the view that the
current Board and Board Committees are of an appropriate size to facilitate effective decision
making, taking into account the scope and nature of the operations of the Company.

Further, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee also annually assesses the diversity
of its members’ competency profiles, and determines the collective skills required to discharge its
responsibilities effectively.

The Company’s Directors have diverse backgrounds, experience and qualifications, and bring a
wide range of financial and commercial experience to the Board. Collectively, they provide the
necessary business acumen, knowledge, capabilities and core competencies to the Company,
including industry knowledge in insurance and actuarial science, investment and asset
management, banking, accounting, finance, strategy formulation, information technology,
management experience, risk management, familiarity with regulatory requirements and knowledge
of cybersecurity risks. The diversity of experience and competencies of the Directors enhance the
effectiveness of the Board in discharging its responsibilities. Directors who serve on Board
Committees have an appropriate mix of skills and capabilities, taking into account the skill set
required for such Board Committees to perform their respective roles and responsibilities.

The Company’s Directors have a sound understanding of the Company’s business strategy, nature
of the business activities and its associated risks. With the knowledge, objectivity and balance
contributed by its members, the Board constructively challenges and enhances proposals on
strategy, reviews the performance of Management against agreed goals and objectives, and
monitors the reporting of performances.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) are not related to each other. Mr Yeap
Cheng Sun was appointed as the CEO of the Company with effect from 1 February 2025. The roles
of the Chairman, Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip, and the CEO, Mr Yeap Cheng Sun, are distinct and
separate, with clear division of responsibilities between them to ensure an appropriate balance of
power, increased accountability and greater independence in decision making.

The principal responsibilities of the Chairman include leading the Board to ensure it effectively
discharges its roles and responsibilities, approving agendas of Board meetings, monitoring the
quality and timeliness of the flow of information from Management to the Board and promoting
effective communication with shareholders. The Chairman also facilitates robust discussions and
deliberations in Board meetings, encourages constructive relations between the Board and
Management, and promotes high standards of corporate governance with the full support of other
Directors, the Company Secretary and Management.

The CEO manages the Company and oversees the Company’s operations and implementation of its
strategies, plans and policies to achieve planned corporate performance and financial goals. His
management of the Company’s businesses, including implementing the Board’s decisions, is
carried out with the assistance of the Senior Officers. Collectively, they are responsible for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Company, ensuring, inter alia, operational and
organisational efficiency, profitable performance, regulatory compliance, good corporate
governance and effective risk management. The Board reviews the CEO’s performance against his
performance targets annually.

The Company’s former CEO, Mr Ng Kok Kheng retired with effect from 31 January 2025. The
Board recorded their appreciation to Mr Ng Kok Kheng for his many years of loyal service and
valuable contributions throughout his tenure with the Company.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP
Process for Appointment of New Directors and Re-appointment of Existing Directors

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee has a key role in carrying out a formal and
transparent process in relation to the appointment and re-appointment of Directors to the Board.
Proposals for the appointment of new Directors and re-appointment of existing Directors are
reviewed by the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee. For appointment of new
Directors, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee meets with the candidates to
assess their suitability and commitment. Amongst others, the Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration the candidate’s professional qualifications,
integrity, prior experience as a director, other directorships and principal commitments,
relationships (if any) with other members of the Board, the Company or the substantial shareholder
of the Company, financial and commercial business experience, and field of expertise relevant to
the Company, as well as his or her potential to contribute to the effectiveness of the Board and to
complement the skills, knowledge and expertise of the Board. Competent individuals are
nominated for the Board’s consideration, before submitting the application to BNM for approval.
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONT’D.)

Process for Appointment of New Directors and Re-appointment of Existing Directors
(cont’d.)

The proposed candidate is required to confirm that he or she is not an active politician as defined in
the CG PD. Further, he or she must not have prior involvement as an external auditor for the
Company either in the capacity of an officer who is directly involved in the Company’s
engagement or partner of the external auditor firm; until at least two years after he or she ceases to
be an officer or partner of the external auditor firm or the firm last served as an auditor of the
Company. The proposed candidate expected to provide such confirmation to BNM prior to his or
her respective appointment and re-appointment as Director.

In addition, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee further determines the proposed
candidate’s independence status under the CG PD and ensures that the proposed candidate will
satisfy the criteria under the CG PD in that his or her appointment or re-appointment will not result
in non-compliance with any of the composition requirements for the Board and Board Committees,
and that he or she is a fit and proper person for the office, taking into account his or her track
record, age, experience, capabilities, skills and other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee. Such reviews are also conducted on an annual
basis to ensure that each Director remains qualified for the office based on the above criteria.

Re-election and Re-appointment of Directors at Annual General Meeting

All Directors of the Company are required to retire from office at regular intervals, at least once
every three years. At each Annual General Meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors,
being those who have served longest in office since their first re-election, are required to retire by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Constitution. Pursuant to the Company’s Constitution,
newly appointed Directors will hold office until the next Annual General Meeting and, if eligible,
can stand for re-appointment. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election when re-nominated by
the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, taking into account their expertise,
knowledge and commitment, and their contributions to Board discussions and to the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Director who is retiring by rotation under Clause 74 of the Company’s Constitution and
standing for re-election at the 2025 Annual General Meeting is Mdm Tan Fong Sang.

Mr Gan Kim Khoon and Mr Ng Hon Soon were appointed to the Board on 1 September 2024, and
Mr Gregory Thomas Hingston was appointed to the Board on 14 February 2025. They will retire
pursuant to Clause 78 of the Company’s Constitution and are eligible to be re-appointed to the
Board at the Company’s Annual General Meeting to be convened on 10 April 2025.
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONT’D.)
Re-election and Re-appointment of Directors at Annual General Meeting (cont’d.)

Directors are expected to set aside adequate time for their oversight of matters relating to the
Company. The Directors provide declarations of changes on their other appointments which are
disseminated to all Directors. The Company has established guidelines on meeting attendance and
the extent of other appointments outside of the Company that a Director may assume. Each of the
Directors’ listed company directorships and principal commitments are provided under the section
“Board of Directors” of this Annual Report’. The Board Nominations and Remuneration
Committee annually assesses each Director’s independence, attendance record and meeting
participation to determine if a Director is able to and has been diligently discharging his or her
duties as a Director of the Company.

Board Performance

The Board has an annual performance evaluation process, carried out by the Board Nominations
and Remuneration Committee, to assess the effectiveness of the Board, Board Committees and
each Director’s contributions. This annual assessment process consists principally of evaluation by
and feedback from each Director.

Each Director evaluates the performance of the Board and Board Committees. The assessment of
the contributions of individual Directors to the effectiveness of the Board is also performed
annually. Such assessments are made against established performance criteria consistent with those
approved by the Board and used in the previous year. A member of the Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee will abstain from participating in the Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee’s discussion upon his or her performance to avoid conflicts of interest.

An external party is engaged once every three years to facilitate the Board Evaluation process and
to provide the Board with an independent perspective of the Board’s performance, including
benchmarks against peer boards and industry best practices.

The Board Evaluation questionnaire focused on areas such as competency and independence,
information quality and timeliness, conduct of meetings, environmental, social and corporate
governance, managing performance, succession planning, Directors’ development, internal controls
and risk management as well as culture and conduct, and Board Committees. With regard to the
individual Director’s assessment criteria, this would include attributes such as each Director’s
contribution, integrity, knowledge and abilities.

The purpose of the evaluation is to improve the overall effectiveness of the Board. The Board has
found the evaluation process useful and constructive since its implementation. This collective
process has also provided an opportunity to obtain insightful feedback from each Director on
suggestions to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees.

3 Available at the Company's website at hitps://www.greateasternlife.com/my/en/about-us/investor-relations/annual-
reports.html#2023_ar
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REMUNERATION MATTERS

Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies, Level and Mix of Remuneration and
Disclosure on Remuneration

The objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is to attract, motivate, reward and retain
quality personnel.

In considering its recommendations to the Board and in approving remuneration, the Board
Nominations and Remuneration Committee ensures that remuneration policies are in line with the
relevant regulations and guidelines, the strategic objectives of the Company, as well as the
Company’s Code of Conduct and ethics, and do not give rise to conflicts between objectives of the
Company and interests of individual Directors and employees.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee also ensures that remuneration is aligned to
specific job functions undertaken and where the employee undertakes any control job functions,
the performance and remuneration package of that employee is determined independently of the
business functions of the Company, and is further aligned to the risks that the Company undertakes
in its operations that is relevant to the specific job function.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee also considers inputs from relevant control
job functions on performance evaluation and remuneration outcomes, seeks input from the Board
Risk Management Committee and Board Audit Committee to ensure that remuneration practices do
not create incentives for excessive or inappropriate risk-taking behaviour.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee is tasked to review and recommend to the
Board, the general remuneration policy framework as well as the specific remuneration of each
Director and for each Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers. No Director is involved in the
deliberations regarding any remuneration, compensation or any form of benefits to be granted to
himself or herself.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are paid Directors’ fees, which take into account factors such as the
Directors’ contributions, effort and time spent, attendance at and frequency of meetings, the

respective responsibilities of Directors including the Board Committees on which they serve,
market practices and the need to pay competitive fees to attract, retain and motivate Directors.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Level and Mix of Remuneration (cont’d.)
Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors (cont’d.)

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee performs an annual review of the Directors’
fee structure and of the computation of the aggregate Directors’ fees based on the earlier Board-
approved fee structure, before recommending any proposed changes to the Board for endorsement.
The Directors’ fees proposed by the Board each year are subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the Company’s Annual General Meeting.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee has considered the market practices for Non-
Executive Director remuneration, and on its recommendation, the Board has decided to adopt the
revised Non-Executive Directors’ fee structure as set out in the table below for computing the fee
for each Non-Executive Director commencing from 1 January 2024 until the conclusion of the next
Annual] General Meeting of the Company.

The revised Non-Executive Directors’ Fee structure is intended to fairly compensate its Non-
Executive Directors, taking into consideration theirs skills, contributions, time commitment and
responsibilities which their roles entail.

| Annual Retainer
Chairman - RM150,000
Member RM70,000
Board Committees Chairman: RM50,900

e Board Audit Committee

e Board Risk Management Committee

Member: RM25,400

¢ Board Audit Committee

» Board Risk Management Committee

Chairman; RM45,000

¢ Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Member: RM27,000

| » Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Attendance fees per Board or Board Committee meeting

Attendance fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors to recognise their contributions and time
spent in attending meetings.

Remuneration Policy in respect of Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers

The remuneration of the CEO, the Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers of the Company are
reviewed annually by the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, based on the overall
remuneration framework approved by the Board. Currently, there are eight identified Senior
Officers and no identified Non-Senior Officer under the purview of the Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Level and Mix of Remuneration (cont’d.)
Remuneration policy in respect of Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers (cont’d.)

Staff engaged in all control functions including Compliance, Risk Management, Actuarial
Valuation, Audit and others do not carry business profit targets in their goal sheets, and hence are
compensated independently of the business profit achievements. Their compensation is dependent
on the achievement of key results in their respective domain.

Pursuant to the CG PD, Other Material Risk Takers is defined to include an officer who can
materially commit or control significant amounts of the Company’s resources or whose actions are
likely to have a significant impact on the Company’s risk profile. There are no identified Other
Material Risk Takers for FY2024.

In such annual reviews, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee takes into
consideration factors such as market competitiveness and market benchmark, and that the
remuneration is commensurate with specific job function undertaken, individual performance and
contribution and the overall performance of the organisation. The Board Nominations and
Remuneration Committee also takes into account the time horizon of risks that the Company is
exposed to, including ensuring that all variable compensation payments shall not be fully
drawndown over short periods when risks are released over longer periods.

As part of the Company’s continuous efforts to create sustainable value for stakeholders through
broad-based growth across its core markets, delivering sustained earnings, driving core
competencies of disciplined risk management, prudent investment and continued upgrading of
technology and people, and ensuring sustainable business practices, the performance measures set
for each business unit embeds these objectives, which match their functions and are consistent with
the Company’s risk appetite. In determining the remuneration of Senior Officers and Non-Senior
Officers, risk and control indicators as well as audit findings and compliance issues are taken into
account when assessing their overall performance, in addition to their achievement in business and
operational performance. Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers are remunerated based on the
achievements of their own performance measures which are in turn determined in accordance with
their roles, and the demonstration of core values and competencies, while taking into account
market compensation data for their respective job roles.

Disclosure on Remuneration

To ensure that its remuneration packages are competitive, the Company regularly reviews salary
levels and benefits packages based on market data provided by recognised consultants who conduct
surveys on comparative groups in the financial sector. The determination of the Company’s
variable compensation pool is fully discretionary, and the factors taken into consideration include
financial and non-financial metrics such as the Company’s performance, audit ratings, risk
indicators and compliance issues, market conditions and competitive market practices.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Level and Mix of Remuneration (cont’d.)
Disclosure on Remuneration (cont’d.)

The total compensation packages for Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers comprise basic
salary, performance-related variable compensation, allowances, deferred share awards and benefits.

The variable components have been designed to link rewards to corporate and individual
performance, based on appropriate and meaningful performance measures set up by the Company,
and approved by the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee and the Board. Senior
Officers are subject to an additional performance measurement approach by embedding a set of
corporate governance indicators for more prudent risk taking.

The annual budget for salary increments and performance-related variable compensation is
reviewed and endorsed by the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, prior to be
submitted to the Board for approval.

As a consequence of the financial crisis in recent years, financial institutions globally have been
reviewing compensation practices to reduce incentives that encourage excessive risk taking. While
the Company has adopted compensation practices that take into account the principles and
implementation standards issued by the Financial Stability Forum for Sound Compensation
Practices, it also continues to review its compensation practices on an on-going basis to further
ensure that decisions made are conducive for sustained business performance. In its deliberations,
the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee also takes into account both financial and
non-financial factors that are consistent with the long-term objectives and financial soundness of
the Company, the remuneration principles, practices and standards issued by the regulator from
time to time.

Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers through annual self-declaration commit not to undertake
activities that will undermine the risk alignment effects (such as personal hedging strategies and
liability-related insurance) embedded in their remuneration.

In collaboration with the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the Company has
designed and developed its Performance Assessment and Remuneration Framework, which takes
into consideration the prevailing regulatory requirements, and with the inputs from the Senior
Officers. The Performance Assessment and Remuneration Framework is independently reviewed
by the Joint Board Audit Committee and Board Risk Management Committee. The Board Risk
Management Committee may, with the assistance of Risk Management Department, assess how the
Performance Assessment and Remuneration Framework affects the Company’s risk profile.

The Company’s variable compensation varies in line with its financial performance and corporate
governance requirements.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT’D.)
Level and Mix of Remuneration (cont’d.)
Share-based incentives

The Company does not have any share option scheme or share plan in place. Instead, the Company
adopt its’ ultimate holding company’s, OCBC Deferred Share Plan to grant share awards to
selected Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers, based on recommendations of the Board
Nominations and Remuneration Committee. The Company has ceased granting OCBC share
options to eligible Senior Officers with effect from 2019.

All grants and awards are subject to cancellation and clawback if it is determined that they were
made on the basis of materially inaccurate financial statements and/or the employee has engaged in
conduct that results in financial loss, reputational harm, restatement of financial results and/or
adverse changes of the Company’s risk profile/rating, which takes into consideration the risks that
could have a long-term negative impact on the Company.

Disclosure of Directors’ and CEO Remuneration

The total Directors’ and CEO’s Remuneration in respect of FY2024 is shown under Note 13 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements. Non-Executive Directors will be paid Directors’ Fees totalling
RM1,073,200 in respect of FY2024, subject to shareholders’ approval at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting.

Disclosure of Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers

The details of the remuneration granted to the eligible Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers are
disclosed in the table below:

Total value of remuneration awards for financial year 2024:

Unrestricted Deferred

"Fixed remuneration

- Cash-based* 3,897,270.00 9

- Other* 1 24,600.00 | - -

Variable remuneration ' I

- Cash-based* 7 1,324,474.00

- Shares and  share-linked 3 227,285.01 4 13,685
instrume_nts*

| - Other* 3 ' 8 1,007,363.05
*The headcount included the cessation of a Senior Officer during the year,
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The internal control framework comprises among others, the infrastructure in the form of risk
oversight committees at the Board and Management level; frameworks, policies and procedures;
risk and compliance self-assessment processes for all departments to assess and manage the
adequacy and effectiveness of their systems of internal controls and their level of compliance with
applicable rules and regulations; and a monitoring and reporting process.

Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. It sets the tone for the Company’s risk culture
and monitors, through the Board Risk Management Committee, the effectiveness and adequacy of
the risk management processes and systems of the Company. The Board approves the Company’s
risk appetite and has oversight of the risk activities to ensure that the Company’s strategic intent,
operating environment, internal control mechanisms and capital sufficiency are consistent with the
Company’s risk appetite and regulatory standards. Further details of the Enterprise Risk
Management Framework implemented by the Company are set out in Note 23 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

The Board emphasises the importance of institutionalising a strong risk culture within the
Company. As a subset of the broader organisational culture, a strong risk culture supports
appropriate risk awareness, bolsters effective risk management and promotes sound risk taking to
ensure that the Company’s risk profile remains within its risk appetite. The Board also approves the
risk culture principles and, along with it, the set of desired risk culture behaviours to support the
target risk culture throughout the Company.

An Annual Enterprise Risk report is submitted to apprise the Board Risk Management Committee
and the Board on the Company’s risk profile and the various measures put in place to ensure that
the solvency requirements are met at all times.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the system of internal controls is adequate to safeguard
stakeholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. There are processes for all departments to assess
the adequacy and effectiveness of their systems and processes of internal controls, and their level of
compliance with applicable rules and regulations. The results of the evaluation are reviewed by the
Senior Officers, who in turn would provide an annual assurance to the CEO on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s operational risk management and internal control systems and
compliance with the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. This self-assessment process is
further supplemented by an annual assurance report on risk management and internal controls,
submitted by Risk Management and tabled to the Board Audit Committee, the Board Risk
Management Committee and the Board for notation.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK (CONT’D.)
Internal Controls (cont’d.)

The system of internal controls provides reasonable but not absolute assurance that the Company
would not be adversely affected by any event that could be reasonably foreseen as it strives to
achieve its business objectives. Therefore, the Board notes that no system of internal controls can
provide absolute assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgement in decision-
making, human error, losses, fraud or other irregularities.

Infrastructure

While the Board is ultimately responsible for the management of risks within the Company, there
are risk oversight committees that facilitate in-depth review of the risks associated with specific
aspects of the business such as the Board Risk Management Committee, Board Audit Committee,
Senior Management Team, Asset Liability Committee, Information Technology Steering
Committee, Product Development Committee and Financial Crime Committee. The duties and
scope of work of these committees are documented in their respective Board-approved terms of
reference.

The authority delegated by the Board to the Board Committees and the CEO are formalised in the
Company’s Authority Grid. Other documents that guide on the delegation of the CEO’s authority
include underwriting limits, claim limits and investment limits.

The segregation of duties is paramount in ensuring that members of staff are not assigned
potentially conflicting responsibilities that relate to matters such as approvals, disbursements and
administration of policies, execution and recording of investments, operational and internal
audit/compliance functions, underwriting and credit controls.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK (CONT’D.)
Frameworks, Policies and Procedures

Frameworks, policies and procedures have been to set the means by which the Company shall
evaluate and manage the risks inherent in the business, especially in key areas such as:

¢ Investments

* Operations

» Technology, information and cyber

* Fraud and market conduct

* Money laundering and the financing of terrorism
« Capital management, capital contingency and stress testing
¢ Related party and interested party transactions

* Third party services

* Reinsurance

* Business continuity

* Bribery and corruption

* Personal data

* Sustainability (including climate)

The frameworks, policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to ensure continued relevance and
to capture the latest regulatory, statutory and Group requirements. These will be subsequently
approved by the Board, or the relevant Board Committee or Management Committee.

Monitoring and Reporting

An Enterprise Risk Dashboard which features the Company’s risk profile from various
perspectives namely strategic risk, financial risk, operational risk, technology risk, market conduct
and compliance risk, and sustainability risk, is submitted to the Board, Board Risk Management
Committee and Senior Management Team for notation.

Regulatory breaches, risk concerns and operational/data/technology incidents are reported in the
Enterprise Risk Dashboard while investment breaches are reported via the limits report and
compliance assurance reports. The respective departments are required to provide action plans once
a regulatory breach or operational incident is discovered. The Company has a process to collate
Key Risk Indicators for reporting internally as well as to BNM on a regular basis.

Stress test scenarios and the corresponding stress factors are developed and reviewed by the Board
annually and thereafter, the scenarios and factors are used to stress the financial positions.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK (CONT’D.)
Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has a whistleblowing policy in place whereby employees of the Company and
external parties may raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or
other matters in confidence. The whistleblowing policy and procedures for raising such concerns
are disclosed and clearly communicated to employees. All whistleblowing incidents are reported to
the Board Audit Committee. Concerns expressed anonymously are considered and investigated on
the basis of their merits. The Board Audit Committee ensures that arrangements are in place for the
independent investigation of such matters and appropriate follow-up actions. If fraud is determined,
appropriate remedial actions will be taken and the Board Audit Committee will be updated
regularly on their status. The whistleblower will have protection against reprisals provided he or
she has acted in good faith. The Board Audit Committee Chairman is responsible for the effective
implementation of the whistleblowing policy, which includes evaluating periodic reports that
monitor and assess how concerns are escalated and dealt with, and overseeing the periodic review
of the effectiveness of the policy.

Internal Audit

As stated aforesaid, the Company utilises the services of the Internal Audit of GELM, via an
outsourcing arrangement. Internal Audit, which is independent of the activities it audits, is staffed
by executives with relevant qualifications and experience, and the Board Audit Committee ensures
that the Internal Audit is adequately resourced. The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman
of the Board Audit Committee.

The work undertaken by Internal Audit involves the assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control environment, including ascertaining if the
internal controls are sufficient in ensuring that significant financial, managerial and operating
information is accurate, reliable and timely, operations and programs are effective and efficient,
and assets are safeguarded. Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Board, Board Audit
Committee, and all functions, records, property and personnel of the Company. Internal Audit
meets the Global Internal Audit Standards of The Institute of Internal Auditors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has implemented policies and procedures on related party transactions covering the
definitions of relatedness, limits applied, terms of transactions, and the authorities and procedures
for approving, monitoring whenever necessary, and writing-off of such transactions. All related
party transactions are conducted on reasonable commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
business. The terms and conditions of such transactions are carried out on an arm’s length basis.
Directors with conflict of interest are excluded from the approval process of granting and managing
related party transactions. Material related party transactions and the write-off of material related
party transactions are reported to the Board Audit Committee for endorsement and to the Board for
approval.

Details of the Company’s related party transactions during FY2024 are set out in Note 21 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

ETHICAL STANDARDS

The Directors and Management are committed to promoting and maintaining values which
emphasise integrity, honesty and proper conduct at all times in the business operations and dealings
of the Company. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct that sets out the guiding principles
and standards expected of its employees such as the highest standards of conduct and professional
integrity. The Code of Conduct also provides guidance on areas such as responsible stewardship of
the Company’s resources, the Company’s position against fraudulent conduct, conflicts of interests
and the appropriate disclosures to be made, and maintaining confidentiality of information. The
Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s staff intranet.

The Company has a suite of policies in place for proper governance and management that have to
comply with. All policies are prepared in accordance with the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems and processes, including Management’s self-assessment and independent
audits.

The Company treats feedback and complaints from its customers seriously, and has instituted
channels whereby customers may provide feedback or complaints. The Company aims to resolve
feedback and complaints professionally and fairly in accordance with the service standards

indicated on its website®.

4 Available at the Company's website at https://www.greateasternlife.com/my/en/client-charter/client-charter-and-privacy-
policy.html
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

We, Tan Fong Sang and Lai Chin Tak, being two of the Directors of Great Eastern General
Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 40 to 191 are drawn up in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial performance and the cash flows for the year
then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 2 ﬂ MAR 2025

Tan Fong S_Eg Lai Chin Tak
Director Director

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Cheng Chuen Chee , being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of
Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 40 to 191 are in my opinion correct, and [
make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the
abovenamed Cheng Chuen Chee at Kuala
Lumpur in the Federal Territory on 98 MAR 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad (“the
Company”) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

What we have audited

We have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies, as set out on pages 40 to
101.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responstbilities

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors' Report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, and Annual
Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. Other information does not include
the financial statements of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

i PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, Menara TH 1
Sentral, Jalan Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the other information and we
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

(b)

(c)

GV

(e)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the
Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

QUttprn LK.

PRICEWATERHOUSECO®PERS PLT LIEW CHI MIN
LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146 03529/09/2026 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
28 March 2025
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

Assets

Intangible assets
Property and equipment
- Owned

- Right-of-use assets
Investments
Reinsurance contract assets
Insurance contract assets
Other receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and bank balances
Total assets

Equity

Share capital
Retained earnings
Fair value reserves
Total equity

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Other payables

Deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

4(a)
4(b)

~N N N

11

2024
RM

51,436,412

6,995,050
12,179,887
750,025,971
569,055,705
5,961,152
68,078,574
31,194,013
18,767,940

2023
RM

53,848,112

2,581,966
14,294,313
773,210,128
646,999,132
4,179,463
60,027,157
18,464,773
43,110,786

1,513,694,704

1,616,715,830

100,000,000 100,000,000
314,289,266 355,199,643
8,932,832 4,397,891
423,222,098 459,597,534
961,790,728 993,867,456
29,698,102 73,351,803
12,333,124 14,245,581
69,916,432 64,607,457
16,734,220 11,045,999

1,090,472,606

1,157,118,296

1,513,694,704

1,616,715,830

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held
Insurance service results

. 1
Interest income :

- Financial assets not measured at FVTPL
- Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Other investment income'

Losses on exchange differences

Realised (losses)/gains

Fair value gains

Changes in allowance for expected credit losses
("ECL") on investment assets

Net investment income

Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued
Finance income from reinsurance contracts held
Net insurance financial result

Net insurance and investment result

Other operating (expenses)/income
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Net profit for the financial year

Earnings per share (sen)
Basic and diluted

Note

12

14

14

13

15

16

2024
RM

619,578,820
(442,838,124)
(181,886,428)

2023
RM

621,253,272
(425,651,024)
(151,986,436)

(5,145,732) 43,615,812
23,399,348 24,432,622
2,355,377 869,396
7,803,180 7,703,139
(30,646) (5,182)
(886,363) 915,601
797,612 3,994,553
1,108,470 (89,267)
34,546,978 37,820,862
(35,079,727) (35,754,840)
21,594,824 18,921,024
(13,484,903) (16,833,816)
15,916,343 64,602,858
(685,043) 864,652
15,231,300 65,467,510
(4,532,715) (14,830,791)
10,698,585 50,636,719
10.70 50.64

] Comparatives have been restated to conform to the current year’s presentation. Refer to note 28 for details.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note

Net profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified to statement of
profit or loss in subseguent periods:

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Net gains on fair value changes
Realised losses/(gains) transferred to statement of profit or loss
Reclassification from FVOCI reserves to retained
earnings arising from realised losses on
disposal of FVOCI equities
Changes in allowance for ECL

Tax effect 8

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2024 2023
RM RM
10,698,585 50,636,719
4,859,168 8,312,418
888,749 (714,467)
1,327,581 118,186
(1,108,470) 89,267
5,967,028 7,805,404
(1,432,087) (1,873,297)
4,534,941 5,932,107
15,233,526 56,568,826
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

At 1 January 2023
Total comprehensive
income for the financial year
Reclassification from FVOCI
reserves to retained earnings
arising from realised losses on
disposal of FVOCI equities
Dividend paid
during the financial year
(Note 17)
At 31 December 2023
Total comprehensive
income for the financial year
Reclassification from FVOCI
reserves to retained earnings
arising from realised losses on
disposal of FVOCI equities
Dividend paid
during the financial year
(Note 17)
At 31 December 2024

Non-distributable Distributable
Share FVOCI Retained
capital reserves earnings Total equity
RM RM RM RM
100,000,000 (1,534,216) 340,652,742 439,118,526
- 5,842,289 50,636,719 56,479,008
- 89,818 (89,818) -
- - (36,000,000) (36,000,000)
100,000,000 4,397,891 355,199,643 459,597,534
- 3,525,979 10,698,585 14,224,564
- 1,008,962 (1,008,962) -
- - (50,600,000) (50,600,000)
100,000,000 8,932,832 314,289,266 423,222,098

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Operating activities

Cash generated from operating activities

Dividend income received

Interest income received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from
operating activities

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Purchase of equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows vsed in
investing activities

Financing activities

Payment of lease liabilities

Dividend paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Note

18

4(a)

17

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
Cash and bank balances

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

Lease liabilities
As at 1 January
Additions

Lease expiration
Interest charge
Cash flows

As at 31 December

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2024 2023
RM RM
17,906,705 47,820,521
7,334,860 6,761,689
26,342,423 26,095,791
(8,683) (8,370)
(12,687,202) (12,353,484)
38,888,103 68,316,147
- 300
(5.896,614) (1,033,494)
(3,482,017) (3,243,900)
(9,378,631) (4,277,094)
(3,252,318) (3,391,623)
(50,600,000) (36,000,000)

(53,852,318)

(39,391,623)

(24,342,846) 24,647,430
43,110,786 18,463,356
18,767,940 43,110,786
18,767,940 43,110,786
18,767,940 43,110,786
14,245,581 14,012,242

1,545,446 6,530,231
(804,248) (3,495,623)
598,663 590,354
(3,252,318) (3,391,623)
12,333,124 14,245,581
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.
The registered office of the Company is located at Level 20, Menara Great Eastern, 303 Jalan
Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur.

The principal activity of the Company is underwriting of all classes of general insurance
business.

There has been no significant change in the nature of the principal activity during the financial
year.

The immediate holding company is Overseas Assurance Corporation (Holdings) Berhad
("OACH"), which is incorporated in Malaysia. The intermediate holding company is Great
Eastern General Insurance Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore.
The ultimate holding company is OCBC Bank, a public-listed company incorporated in the
Republic of Singapore.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance
with a resolution of the Directors on 28 March 2025.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS") as issued by the Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board ("MASB"), International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

At the beginning of the current financial year, the Company had adopted the amended
MFRSs and new MFRSs as described fully in Note 2.3.

The Company has met the minimum capital requirements as prescribed by the Risk-
Based Capital ("RBC") Framework as at the reporting date.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (cont’d.)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, unless stated otherwise in the accounting policies. The financial statements
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is the Company’s functional currency.

Summary of material accounting policies
(a) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including non-refundable taxes and any costs to enhance the working
condition of the asset for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Where the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed
standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
property and equipment.

Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to
reduce the cost of each amount to its residual value over its estimated useful life. No
depreciation is provided for capital work in progress as it is not ready for active use.
The useful life of an asset is as follows:

Category of asset Useful life
Office equipment 5 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Renovation 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(a) Property and equipment (cont’d.)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each
financial year end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposal are
determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts and are included in the
statement of profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial assets. The Company
determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial
recognition.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised as expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised

cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") or fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL").
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(b) Financial assets (cont’d.)

(i) Initial recognition and measurement (cont’d.)

Classification (cont’d.)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as measured at FVTPL:

» The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
to collect contractual cash flows; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A debt security is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as measured at FVTPL:

» The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

An equity security that is not held for trading may, by irrevocable election, be
designated and measured at FVOCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. The Company has designated certain equity securities held for
strategic purposes as measured at FVOCL

A financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI may, by irrevocable election, be designated and
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. The Company has designated
certain debt securities which are held with the intent to hold to collect
contractual cash flows and sell to be measured at FVTPL.

All other financial assets are measured as FVTPL.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(b) Financial assets (cont’d.)

(i) Initial recognition and measurement (cont’d.)

Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which an asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

» The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice;

¢« How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to
management;

o The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are
managed;

» How managers of the business are compensated; and

¢ The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part
of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect
contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell
financial assets.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios
without taking "worst case" or "stress case" scenarios into account. If the cash
flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the
Company’s original expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(b) Financial assets (cont’d.)
(i) Initial recognition and measurement (cont’d.)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal' is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks
and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company
considers the following key aspects:

» Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

* Leverage features;

* Prepayment and extension terms;

e Terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets;
and

» Features that modify consideration of the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount
outstanding.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(b) Financial assets (cont’d.)

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s
business model for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The three measurement categories for classification
of debt instruments are:

(a) Amortised Cost (AC)

(b)

(c)

Debt instruments that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Gains or losses are also recognised in profit or loss when
the assets are derecognised.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for sale, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are classified as FVOCL Any gains or losses from
changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value reserve. Impairment, foreign exchange gains and
losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to
statement of profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for classification as
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. Any gains or losses
from changes in fair value and interest are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(b) Financial assets (cont’d.)
(ii) Subsequent measurement (cont’d.)
Equity Instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity instruments at fair value. On
initial recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in
OCLI. The Company’s policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when
those investments are held for purposes other than held for trading. When this
election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
subsequently reclassified to the statement of profit or loss, including upon
disposal. Equity instruments are not subjected to impairment.

Dividends, when representing a return from such investments are to be
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the Company’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

These investments are initially recognised at cost. All transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortised cost are measured
at amortised cost, using the effective yield method, less allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(b) Financial assets (cont’d.)

(c)

(ii) Subsequent measurement (cont’d.)
Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequently to their initial recognition, except
in the period after the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of MFRS 9 are recognised on the statement of
financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual obligations
of the financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other
financial liabilities.

(i) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading
("HFT") and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities HFT include derivatives entered into by the Company that
do not meet the hedge accounting criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant
gains or losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Net gains or losses
on derivatives include exchange differences.

The Company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

(ii) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are recognised when due and measured on initial
recognition at the fair value of the consideration received plus directly

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(¢) Financial liabilities (cont’d.)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(d) Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments as disclosed in Note 22 at fair
value at each financial position.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when the pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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(d) Fair value measurement (cont’d.)

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assets in
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

* Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

« Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable including quotes from brokers and market makers,
discounted cash flows and other valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants;

e Level3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

At each financial position, Finance Department analyses the movements in the

values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as
per the Company’s accounting policies.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(d) Fair value measurement (cont’d.)

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(e) Impairment of assets

(@

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of non-financial assets is reviewed at each financial
position to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment
is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher of the net realisable
value and its value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted cash
flows. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets, or if it is not
possible, for the cash-generating unit ("CGU").

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount of an asset is
treated as a reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the
extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been determined (net
of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. A
reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

(a) Debt instruments measured at FVOCIT; and
(b) Debt instruments measured at amortised cost.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the ECL associated with its
loans and debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. For insurance
receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company recognises a loss allowance
for ECL at each reporting date.
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(e) Impairment of assets (cont’d.)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d.)
The measurement of ECL reflects:

« An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

¢ The time value of money; and

» Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
except for financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased
significantly since their initial recognition.

12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

Not credit-impaired financial assets

For financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date, the ECL is
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive).

Modified financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing
financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the
borrower, then an assessment is made whether the financial asset should be
derecognised and ECL is measured as follows:

 If the expected modification will not result in derecognition of the existing

asset, then the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial
asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing asset.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(e) Impairment of assets (cont’d.)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d.)

» If the expected modification will result in derecognition of the existing
asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final
cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its derecognition.
This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing
financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition
to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing

financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets measured
at amortised cost and debt financial assets measured at FVOCI are credit-

impaired.

A financial asset is 'credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

occurred.

The Company considers factors as evidence that a financial instrument is credit

impaired;

= Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e A breach of contract such as default or past due event;

» The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the

Company would not consider otherwise;

= It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; or

» The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial

difficulties.

For financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: the ECL is the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(e) Impairment of assets (cont’d.)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d.)

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

(f) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when:

The contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assets or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a 'pass through' arrangement: and either (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

®

(g

Derecognition (cont’d.)

On derecognition of a financial asset except for equity securities measured at
FVOCI, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (a) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (b) any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

On derecognition of equity securities measured at FVOCI, any cumulative gain or
loss recognised in other comprehensive income is not recognised in statement of
profit or loss.

Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is
created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Regular way purchase or sale of a financial asset

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or
derecognised on trade date i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported on the
statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset
in the statement of profit or loss unless required or permitted by any accounting
standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the
Company.
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(h) Intangible assets
(i) Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. This involves recognising identifiable assets and liabilities
including contingent liabilities but excluding future restructuring liabilities of
the acquired business at fair value. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the fair values of the identifiable net assets (net fair value of identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities) acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the
cost of acquisition is less than the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired, the discount on acquisition is recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the
acquisition date, to each of the Company’s CGU that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

The CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of
each CGU to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within that CGU
is disposed, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed and the portion of
the CGU retained.
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(h) Intangible assets (cont’d.)
(ii) Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
No amortisation is provided on capital works in progress as the assets are not
yet available for use. Amortisation of an asset begins when it is available for use

and calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of an asset.
The useful lives are as follows:

Category of asset Useful life
Computer software and software development costs 3 to 10 years
Distribution platform 6.5 years

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
The assessment of indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite useful life continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient
obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.
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(i) Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity is defined as the residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all its liabilities. The following outlines the various types of equity and
reserves of the Company.

Ordinary share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted
against share capital.

Retained earnings

A portion of the retained earnings has been set aside to meet risk-based capital
requirements for regulatory reporting purposes. These reserves are deemed statutory
reserves and are not available for distribution to shareholders. These statutory
reserves are measured according to the regulatory prescriptions and are subject to
changes in line with the underlying risks underwritten.

Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial
assets measured at FVOCI and the related loss allowance recognised in profit or loss
until the assets are derecognised, net of tax. Any cumulative gain or loss on disposal
(net of tax) for equities measured at FVOCI will be reclassified from fair value
reserve to retained earnings.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(j) Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk are classified
as insurance contracts. Contracts held by the Company under which it transfers
significant insurance risk related to underlying insurance contracts are classified as
reinsurance contracts. Insurance and reinsurance contracts also expose the Company
to financial risk.

Insurance contracts may be issued and reinsurance contracts may be initiated by the
Company, or they may be acquired in a business combination or in a transfer of
contracts that do not form a business. All references in these accounting policies to
'insurance contracts’ and ‘reinsurance contracts’ include contracts issued, initiated or
acquired by the Company, unless otherwise stated.

Contracts that have a legal form of insurance but do not transfer significant
insurance risk and expose the Company to financial risk are classified as investment
contracts, and they follow financial instruments accounting under MFRS 9.

(k) Separating Components from Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts

The Company assesses its insurance and reinsurance contracts to determine whether
they contain components which must be accounted for under another MFRS rather
than MFRS 17 (distinct non insurance components). After separating any distinct
components, the Company applies MFRS 17 to all remaining components of the
(host) insurance contract. Currently, the Company’s contracts do not include distinct
components that require separation.
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(k) Separating Components from Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts (cont’d.)

MFRS 17 defines investment components as the amounts that an insurance contract
requires an insurer to repay to a policyholder in all circumstances, regardless of
whether an insured event has occurred. Investment components which are highly
interrelated with the insurance contract of which they form a part are considered non-
distinct and are not separately accounted for. However, receipts and payments of the
investment components are excluded from insurance revenue and insurance service
expenses.

Some reinsurance contracts issued contain profit commission arrangements. Under
these arrangements, there is a minimum guaranteed amount that the policyholder
will always receive — either in the form of profit commission, or as claims, or
another contractual payment irrespective of the insured event happening. For profit
commission components which are not subject to any conditions in the contracts,
these have been assessed to be highly interrelated with the insurance component of
the reinsurance contracts and are, therefore, non-distinct investment components
which are not accounted for separately. However, receipts and payments of these
investment components are recognised outside of profit or loss.

(1) Level of Aggregation
(i) Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are aggregated into groups for measurement purposes.
Groups of insurance contracts are determined by identifying portfolios of
insurance contracts, each comprising contracts subject to similar risks and
managed together, and dividing each portfolio into annual cohorts (by year of
issuance), into three groups based on the expected profitability of the contracts:

(a) Contracts that are onerous at initial recognition,

(b) Contracts that at initial recognition have no significant possibility of
becoming onerous subsequently, or

(c) Remaining group of contracts.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

() Level of Aggregation (cont’d.)

@

(ii)

Insurance contracts (cont’d.)

These groups represent the level of aggregation at which insurance contracts are
initially recognised and measured. The profitability groupings are not reassessed
under subsequent remeasurement.

Level of aggregation is also affected by law or regulation which specifically
constrains the Company’s practical ability to set a different price or level of
benefits for policyholders with different characteristics.

The Company broadly groups its insurance contracts by how the contracts are
managed, product type, currency, measurement model and insurance risks.
Group of contracts usually correspond to the risk class or product type.

An assessment is performed to distinguish onerous contracts from non-onerous
ones. For non-onerous contacts, the Company assesses the likelihood of changes
in the applicable facts and circumstances in the subsequent periods in
determining whether contracts have a significant possibility of becoming
onerous. This assessment is performed at the product type level.

Reinsurance contracts

Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately
from portfolios of insurance contracts issued. Applying the grouping
requirements to reinsurance contracts held, the Company aggregates reinsurance
contracts into annual cohorts (by year of issuance) into groups of:

(a) Contracts for which there is a net gain at initial recognition, if any;

(b) Contracts for which, at initial recognition, there is no significant possibility
of a net gain arising subsequently; and

(¢) Remaining contracts in the portfolio, if any.

Reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation requirements on an
individual reinsurance treaty basis.
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(m) Recognition

A group of insurance contracts issued by the Company is recognised from the
earliest of:

(a) The beginning of its coverage period (i.e. the period during which the Company
provides services in respect of any premiums within the contract boundary;

(b) When the first payment from the policyholder becomes due or, if there is no
contractual due date, when first payment is received from the policyholder; and

(¢) When facts and circumstances indicate that the contract is onerous.

The Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held from the earliest of
the following:

(a) The beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts held.
However, the Company delays the recognition of a group of reinsurance
contracts held that provide proportionate coverage until the date when any
underlying insurance contract is initially recognised, if that date is later than the
beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts held; and

(b) The date the Company recognises and onerous group of underlying insurance
contracts if the Company entered into the related reinsurance contract in the
group of reinsurance contracts held at or before that date.

Only contracts that individually meet the recognition criteria by the end of the
reporting period are included in the groups. When contracts meet the recognition
criteria in the groups after the reporting date, they are added to the groups in the
reporting period in which they meet the recognition criteria, or, if the contract does
not qualify for inclusion in an existing group, it forms a new group to which future
contracts are added. Composition of the groups is not reassessed in subsequent
periods.
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(n) Contract Boundary

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the
future cash flows within the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are
within an insurance contract boundary if they arise from substantive rights and
obligations that exist during the reporting period in which the Company can compel
the policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive
obligation to provide the policyholder with insurance contract services. A
substantive obligation to provide insurance contract services ends when:

(a) The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular
policyholder and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully
reflects those risks; or

(b) Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

e The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio
of insurance contracts that contain the contract and, as a result, can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of that portfolio; and

» The pricing of the premiums up to the date when the risks are reassessed
does not take into account the risks that relate to periods after the
reassessment date.

Fulfilment cash flows outside the insurance contract boundary are not recognised.
Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held, cash flows are within the contract boundary
if they arise from substantive rights and obligations of the Company that exist during
the reporting period in which the Company is compelled to pay amounts to the
reinsurer or in which the Company has a substantive right to receive insurance
contract services from the reinsurer. A substantive right to receive services from the
reinsurer ends either when the reinsurer can reprice the contract to fully reflect the
reinsured risk, or when the reinsurer has a substantive right to terminate coverage.

The Company reassesses contract boundary of each group at the end of each
reporting period.
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(o) Measurement
(i) Measurement — contracts not measured under the PAA

On initial recognition, the Company measures a group of insurance contracts as
the total of (a) the fulfilment cash flows, adjusted to reflect the time value of
money and the associated financial risks, and a risk adjustment for non-financial
risk; and (b) the Contractual Service Margin (“CSM”). The fulfilment cash
flows of a group of insurance contracts do not incorporate the Company’s non-
performance risk.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is applied to the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, and it reflects the compensation that the Company
requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash
flows from non-financial risk as the Company fulfils insurance contracts.

For reinsurance contracts held, the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
represents the amount of risk being transferred by the Company to the reinsurer.

Methods and assumptions used to determine the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk are discussed in Note 2.5(b)(1).

On initial recognition of a group of insurance contracts, if the total of (a) the
fulfilment cash flows, (b) any cash flows arising at that date and (c) any amount
arising from the derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously recognised
for cash flows related to the group is a net inflow, then the group is not onerous.
In this case, the CSM is measured as the equal and opposite amount of the net
inflow, which results in no income or expenses arising on initial recognition.

If the total is a net outflow, then the group is onerous. A loss from onerous
insurance contracts is recognised in profit or loss immediately, with no CSM
recognised on the Statement of Financial Position on initial recognition, and a
loss component is established in the amount of loss recognised (refer to the
Onerous contracts — Loss component section in Note 2.2(0)(1v).
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(0) Measurement (cont’d.)

(ii) Fulfilment Cash Flows ("FCF'")

The FCF are the current estimates of the future cash flows within the contract
boundary of a group of contracts that the Company expects to collect from
premiums and pay out for claims, benefits and expenses, adjusted to reflect the
timing and the uncertainty of those amounts.

The estimates of future cash flows:

(a) are based on a probability-weighted mean of the full range of possible
outcomes;

(b) are determined from the perspective of the Company, provided that the
estimates are consistent with observable market prices for market

variables; and
(c) reflect conditions existing at the measurement date.

The estimates of future cash flows are adjusted using the current discount rates
to reflect the time value of money and the financial risks related to those cash
flows, to the extent not included in the estimates of cash flows. The discount
rates reflect the characteristics of the cash flows arising from the groups of
insurance contracts, including timing, currency and liquidity of cash flows. The
determination of the discount rate that reflects the characteristics of the cash
flows and liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts requires significant
judgement and estimation. Refer to Note 2.5(b)(i).

(iii) Contractual Service Margin

The CSM is a component of the carrying amount of the asset or liability for a
group of insurance contracts issued representing the unearned profit that the
Company will recognise as it provides insurance contract services in the future.

At initial recognition, the CSM is an amount that results in no income or
expenses (unless a group of contracts is onerous or insurance revenue and
insurance service expenses are recognised as in (d) below) arising from:

(a) The initial recognition of the FCF;

(b) Cash flows arising from the contracts in the group at that date;
(c) The derecognition of any insurance acquisition cash flows asset; and
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(0) Measurement (cont’d.)
(iii) Contractual Service Margin (cont’d.)

(d) The derecognition of any other pre-recognition cash flows. Insurance
revenue and insurance service expenses are recognised immediately for
any such assets derecognised.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held, any net gain or loss at initial
recognition is recognised as the CSM unless the net cost of purchasing
reinsurance relates to past events, in which case the Company recognises the net
cost immediately in profit or loss. For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM
represents a deferred gain or loss that the Company will recognise as a
reinsurance expense as it receives insurance contract services from the reinsurer
in the future and is calculated as the sum of:

(a) The initial recognition of the FCF;

(b) Cash flows arising from the contracts in the group at that date;

(c) The amount derecognised at the date of initial recognition of any asset or
liability previously recognised for cash flows related to the group of
reinsurance contracts held (other pre-recognition cash flows); and

(d) Any income recognised in profit or loss when the entity recognises a loss
on initial recognition of an onerous group of underlying insurance
contracts or on addition of onerous underlying insurance contracts to that

group.
(iv) Subsequent Measurement — contracts not measured under the PAA

Subsequently, the carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts at each
reporting date is the sum of the LRC and the liability for incurred claims
("LIC"). The LRC comprises (a) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services
that will be provided under the contracts in future periods and (b) any remaining
CSM at that date. The LIC includes the fulfilment cash flows for incurred
claims and expenses that have not yet been paid, including claims that have
been incurred but not yet reported.

(a) The FCF of groups of contracts are measured at the reporting date using
current estimates of future cash flows, current discount rates and current
estimates of the risk adjustment for non-financial risk. Changes in FCF are
recognised as follows:
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(0) Measurement (cont’d.)

(iv) Subsequent Measurement — contracts not measured under the PAA
(cont’d.)

Changes relating to future service Adjusted against CSM  (or
recognised in the insurance
service result in profit or loss if
the group is onerous).

Changes relating to current or past servicqRecognised in the insurance
service result in profit or loss.
Effects of the time value of money,/Recognised as insurance finance
financial risk and changes therein onfincome or expenses in profit or
estimated cash flows loss, except for certain portfolios
measured using the GMM where
the Other Comprehensive Income
("OCI") option is applied.

(b) The CSM is adjusted subsequently only for changes in FCF that relate to
future services and other specified amounts and is recognised in profit or
loss as services are provided. The CSM at each reporting date represents
the profit in the group of contracts that has not yet been recognised in
profit or loss because it relates to future services.

The Company reports its financial results on a quarterly basis. The Company
has elected to treat every quarter as a discrete interim reporting period, and
estimates made by the Company in previous interim financial results are not
changed when applying MFRS 17 in subsequent interim periods or in the annual
financial statements.

Onerous contracts — Loss component
When adjustments to the CSM exceed the amount of the CSM, the group of

contracts becomes onerous and the Company recognises the excess in insurance
service expenses, and it records the excess as a loss component of the LRC.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(0) Measurement (cont’d.)

(iv) Subsequent Measurement — contracts not measured under the PAA

(v)

(cont’d.)
Onerous contracts — Loss component (cont’d.)

When a loss component exists, the Company allocates the following between
the loss component and the remaining component of the LRC for the respective
group of contracts, based on the ratio of the loss component to the FCF relating
to the expected future cash outflows:

(a) Expected incurred claims and other directly attributable expenses for the
period;

(b) Changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk for the risk expired;
and

(c) Finance income/(expenses) from insurance contracts issued.

The amounts of the loss component allocation in (a) and (b) above reduce the
respective components of insurance revenue and are reflected in insurance
service expenses.

Decreases in the FCF in subsequent periods reduce the remaining loss
component and reinstate the CSM after the loss component is reduced to zero.
Increases in the FCF in subsequent periods increase the loss component.

Reinsurance Contracts

The Company will apply the same accounting policies to measure a group of
reinsurance contracts, with the following modifications.

The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts at each reporting date
is the sum of the asset for remaining coverage ("ARC") and the asset for
incurred claims ("AIC"). The AIC comprises (a) the FCF that relate to services
that will be received under the contracts in future periods and (b) any remaining
CSM at that date.
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(o) Measurement (cont’d.)
(v) Reinsurance Contracts (cont’d.)

The Company will measure the estimates of the present value of future cash
flows using assumptions that are consistent with those used to measure the
estimates of the present value of future cash flows for the underlying insurance
contracts, with an adjustment for any risk of non-performance by the reinsurer.
The effect of the non-performance risk of the reinsurer is assessed at each
reporting date and the effect of changes in the non-performance risk is
recognised in profit or loss.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk represents the amount of risk being
transferred by the Company to the reinsurer.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held, any net gain or loss at initial
recognition is recognised as the CSM unless the net cost of purchasing
reinsurance relates to past events, in which case the Company recognises the net
cost immediately in profit or loss. For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM
represents a deferred gain or loss that the Company will recognise as a
reinsurance income or expenses as it receives insurance contract services from
the reinsurer in the future.

A loss-recovery component is established or adjusted within the remaining
coverage for reinsurance contracts held for the amount of income recognised
above. This amount is calculated by multiplying the loss recognised on
underlying insurance contracts by the percentage of claims on underlying
insurance contracts that the Company expects to recover from the reinsurance
contracts held that are entered into before or at the same time as the loss is
recognised on the underlying insurance contracts.
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(0) Measurement (cont’d.)

(vi) Insurance Acquisition Cash Flows

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the costs of selling, underwriting
and starting a group of insurance contracts that are directly attributable to the
portfolio of insurance contracts to which the group belongs. If insurance
acquisition cash flows are directly attributable to a group of contracts, then they
are allocated to that group.

Insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated to groups of insurance contracts
on a systematic and rational basis. Insurance acquisition cash flows that are
directly attributable to a group of insurance contracts are allocated to that group;
and to groups that will include insurance contracts that are expected to arise
from renewals of the insurance contracts in that group.

Insurance acquisition cash flows not directly attributable to a group of contracts
but directly attributable to a portfolio of contracts are allocated to groups of
contracts in the portfolio or expected to be in the portfolio.

The insurance acquisition cash flows that arise before the recognition of the
related insurance contracts are recognised as separate assets and tested for
recoverability, whereas other insurance acquisition cash flows are included in
the estimates of the present value of future cash flows as part of the
measurement of the related insurance contracts.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether facts and circumstances
indicate that an asset for insurance acquisition cash flows may be impaired, then
the Company:

(a) Recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed the expected net cash inflow for the related
group; and

(b) If the asset relates to future renewals, recognises an impairment loss in
profit or loss to the extent that it expects those insurance acquisition cash
flows to exceed the net cash inflow for the expected renewals and this
excess has not already been recognised as an impairment loss under item

(a).

The Company reverses any impairment losses in profit or loss and increases the
carrying amount of the asset to the extent that the impairment conditions no
longer exist or have improved.
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(p) Measurement — contracts measured under the PAA

The PAA is an optional simplified measurement model in MFRS 17 that is available
for insurance and reinsurance contracts that meet the eligibility criteria. This
approach is used for insurance contracts which have a coverage period of one year or
less, or where the PAA provides a measurement that is not materially different from
that under the General Measurement Model (“GMM”).

For insurance contracts issued, on initial recognition, the Company measures the
LRC at the amount of premiums received, less any acquisition cash flows paid and
any amounts arising from the derecognition of the insurance acquisition cash flows
asset and the derecognition of any other relevant pre-recognition cash flows. The
LRC is discounted to reflect the time value of money and the effect of financial risk.

The Company estimates the LIC as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred
claims. The FCF incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable
information available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and
uncertainty of those future cash flows, they reflect current estimates from the
perspective of the Company, and include an explicit adjustment for non-financial
risk (the risk adjustment). The Company adjusts the future cash flows for the time
value of money and the effect of financial risk for the measurement of LIC, unless
when they are expected to be paid within one year or less from the date of which the
claims are incurred.

Where, during the coverage period, facts and circumstances indicate that a group of
insurance contracts is onerous, the Company recognises a loss in profit or loss for
the net outflow, resulting in the carrying amount of the liability for the group being
equal to the FCF. A loss component is established by the Company for the LRC for
such onerous group depicting the losses recognised.

For reinsurance contracts held, on initial recognition, the Company measures the
remaining coverage at the amount of ceding premiums paid net of commission, plus
broker fees paid to a party other than the reinsurer.

The carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts issued at the end of each

reporting period is the sum of the LRC and the LIC, comprising the FCF related to
past service allocated to the group at the reporting date.
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(p) Measurement — contracts measured under the PAA (cont’d.)

The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts held at the end of each
reporting period is the sum of the ARC and the AIC, comprising the FCF related to
past service allocated to the group at the reporting date.

For insurance contracts issued, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the LRC is:

(i) Increased for premiums received in the period, excluding amounts that relate to
premium receivables included in the LIC;

(ii) Decreased for insurance acquisition cash flows paid in the period;

(iii) Decreased for the amounts of expected premium receipts recognised as
insurance revenue for the services provided in the period;

(iv) Increased for the amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows in the period
recognised as insurance service expenses; and

(v) Increased for net insurance finance expenses recognised during the period.

For reinsurance contracts held, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the
remaining coverage is:

(i) Increased for ceding premiums, net of commission, paid in the period;

(ii) Increased for broker fees paid in the period;

(iii) Decreased for the expected amounts of ceding premiums and broker fees
recognised as reinsurance expenses for the services received in the period; and

(iv) Increased for net reinsurance finance income recognised during the period.

(q) Derecognition and Contract Modification
An insurance contract is derecognised when it is:
(i) Extinguished (that is, when the obligation specified in the insurance contract

expires or is discharged or cancelled); or
(ii) The contract is modified and certain additional criteria discussed below are met.
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(q) Derecognition and Contract Modification (cont’d.)

When an insurance contract is modified by the Company as a result of an agreement
with the counterparties or due to a change in regulations, the Company treats
changes in cash flows caused by the modification as changes in estimates of the
FCF, unless the conditions for the derecognition of the original contract are met.
The Company derecognises the original contract and recognises the modified
contract as a new contract if any of the following conditions are present:

(i) If the modified terms had been included at contract inception and the Company
would have concluded that the modified contract:
(a) Is not within the scope of MFRS 17;
(b) Results in different separable components;
(¢) Results in a different contract boundary; or
(d) Belongs to a different group of contracts;
(ii) The original contract was accounted for under the PAA, but the modification
means that the contract no longer meets the eligibility criteria for that approach.

When a new contract is required to be recognised as a result of modification and it is
within the scope of MFRS 17, the new contract is recognised from the date of
modification and is assessed for, amongst other things, contract classification and
contract aggregation requirements.

When an insurance contract not accounted for under the PAA is derecognised from
within a group of insurance contracts, the Company:

(i) Adjusts the FCF to eliminate the present value of future cash flows and risk
adjustment for non-financial risk relating to the rights and obligations removed
from the group;

(ii) Adjusts the CSM (unless the decrease in the FCF is allocated to the loss
component of the LRC of the group) in the following manner, depending on the
reason for the derecognition:

(a) If the contract is extinguished, in the same amount as the adjustment to the
FCF relating to future service;

(b) If the contract is transferred to a third party, in the amount of the FCF
adjustment in (a) less the premium charged by the third party; or
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(q) Derecognition and Contract Modification (cont’d.)

(r)

(c) If the original contract is modified resulting in its derecognition, in the
amount of the FCF adjustment in (a) adjusted for the premium that the
Company would have charged if it had entered into a contract with
equivalent terms as the new contract at the date of the contract
modification, less any additional premium charged for the modification;
when recognising the new contract in this case, the Company assumes
such a hypothetical premium as actually received.

(iii) Adjusts the number of coverage units for the expected remaining insurance
contract services, to reflect the number of coverage units removed.

When an insurance contract accounted for under the PAA is derecognised,
adjustments to remove related rights and obligations to account for the effect of the
derecognition result in the following amounts being charged immediately to profit or
loss:

(i) If the contract is extinguished, any net difference between the derecognised part
of the LRC of the original contract and any other cash flows arising from
extinguishment;

(ii) If the contract is transferred to the third party, any net difference between the
derecognised part of the LRC of the original contract and the premium charged
by the third party; or

(iii) If the original contract is modified resulting in its derecognition, any net
difference between the derecognised part of the LRC and the hypothetical
premium that the entity would have charged if it had entered into a contract with
equivalent terms as the new contract at the date of the contract modification,
less any additional premium charged for the modification.

Presentation and Disclosure

For presentation in the Statement of Financial Position, the Company aggregates
portfolios of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held and present
separately:

(1) Portfolios of insurance contracts that are assets;
(ii) Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets;
(iii) Portfolios of insurance contracts that are liabilities; and

(iv) Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(r) Presentation and Disclosure (cont’d.)

(s)

The portfolios referred to above are those established at initial recognition in
accordance with the MFRS 17 requirements.

In the profit or loss statement, the following are presented separately:

(i) Insurance revenue;

(i) Insurance service expense;

(ii1) Insurance finance income or expense; and

(iv) Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held.

The Company provides disaggregated qualitative and quantitative information in the
notes to the financial statements about:

(i) The amounts recognised in its financial statements from insurance contracts and
reinsurance contracts; and

(ii) Significant judgement, and changes in those judgement made when applying the
standard.

Recognition of Income and Expenses
(i) Insurance Service Result from Insurance Contracts Issued
Insurance revenue

As the Company provides insurance contract services under the group of
insurance contracts, it reduces the LRC and recognises insurance revenue. The
amount of insurance revenue recognised in the reporting period depicts the
transfer of promised services at an amount that reflects the portion of
consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services.
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(s) Recognition of Income and Expenses (cont’d.)

(i) Insurance Service Result from Insurance Contracts Issued(cont’d.)

Insurance revenue (cont’d.)

For contracts not measured under the PAA, insurance revenue comprises the
following:

(a) Amounts relating to the changes in the LRC:

(i) Claims and other directly attributable expenses incurred in the period
measured at the amounts expected at the beginning of the period,
excluding:

(a) amounts allocated to the loss component;

(b) repayments of investment components and policyholder rights to
withdraw an amount;

(c) amounts of transaction-based taxes collected in a fiduciary
capacity;

(d) insurance acquisition expenses; and

(e) amounts related to the risk adjustment for non-financial risk (see
(11)).

(ii) Changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, excluding:

(a) Changes included in insurance finance income/(expenses);

(b) Changes that relate to future coverage (which adjust the CSM);
and

(¢) Amounts allocated to the loss component.

(iii) Amounts of the CSM recognised for the services provided in the
period;

(iv) Experience adjustments — arising from premiums received in the
period other than those that relate to future service; and

(v) Other amounts, including any other pre-recognition cash flows assets
derecognised at the date of initial recognition.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(s) Recognition of Income and Expenses (cont’d.)

(i) Insurance Service Result from Insurance Contracts Issued (cont’d.)

(b) Insurance acquisition cash flows recovery is determined by allocating the
portion of premiums related to the recovery of those cash flows on the
basis of the passage of time over the expected coverage of a group of
contracts.

For groups of insurance contracts measured under the PAA, the Company
recognises revenue based on the passage of time over the coverage period of a
groups of contracts.

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service expenses include the following:

(a) Incurred claims and benefits, excluding investment components reduced
by loss component allocations;

(b) Other incurred directly attributable expenses, including amounts of any
other pre-recognition cash flows assets (other than insurance acquisition
cash flows) derecognised at the date of initial recognition;

(c) Insurance acquisition cash flows amortisation;

(d) Changes that relate to past service — changes in the FCF relating to the
LIC;

(¢) Changes that relate to future service — changes in the FCF that results in
onerous contract losses or reversals of those losses; and

(f) Insurance acquisition cash flows assets impairment.

For contracts not measured under the PAA, amortisation of insurance
acquisition cash flows is reflected in insurance service expenses in the same
amount as insurance acquisition cash flows recovery reflected within insurance
revenue, as described above.

For contracts measured under the PAA, amortisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows is reflected in insurance service expenses based on the passage of

time.

Other expenses not meeting the above categories are included in other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(s) Recognition of Income and Expenses (cont’d.)

(ii) Insurance Service Result from Reinsurance Contracts Held

Net income/(expenses) from Reinsurance Contracts Held

The Company presents financial performance of groups of reinsurance contracts
held on a net basis in net income/(expenses) from reinsurance contracts held ,
comprising the following amounts:

(@)
(b)

(©

(d)
(e

)
(2)

Reinsurance expenses;

For groups of reinsurance contracts measured under the PAA, broker fees

are included within reinsurance expenses;

Incurred claims recovery, excluding investment components reduced by

loss-recovery component allocations;

Other incurred directly attributable expenses;

Changes that relate to past service — changes in the FCF relating to

incurred claims recovery;

Effect of changes in the risk of reinsurers’ non-performance; and

Amounts relating to accounting for onerous Company of underlying

insurance contracts issued:

(i) Income on initial recognition of onerous underlying contracts;

(ii) Reinsurance contracts held under the GMM: reversals of a loss-
recovery component other than changes in the FCF of reinsurance
contracts held; and

(iii) Reinsurance contracts held under the GMM: changes in the FCF of
reinsurance contracts held from onerous underlying contracts.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(s) Recognition of Income and Expenses (cont’d.)

(ii) Insurance Service Result from Reinsurance Contracts Held (cont’d.)

Reinsurance expenses are recognised similarly to insurance revenue. The
amount of reinsurance expenses recognised in the reporting period depicts the
transfer of received insurance contract services at an amount that reflects the
portion of ceding premiums that the Company expects to pay in exchange for
those services. Additionally, for reinsurance contracts held measured under the
PAA, broker fees are included in reinsurance expenses.

For contracts not measured under the PAA, reinsurance expenses comprise the
following amounts relating to changes in the remaining coverage:

(a) Claims and other directly attributable expenses recovery in the period,
measured at the amounts expected to be incurred at the beginning of the
period, excluding:

(i) Amounts allocated to the loss-recovery component;
(i1) Repayments of investment components; and
(iii) Amounts related to the risk adjustment for non-financial risk (see (b));

(b) Changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, excluding:

(i) Changes included in finance income/(expenses) from reinsurance
contracts held;

(ii) Changes that relate to future coverage (which adjust the CSM); and

(iii) Amounts allocated to the loss-recovery component.

(c) Amounts of the CSM recognised for the services received in the period;

(d) Experience adjustments — arising from premiums paid in the period other
than those that relate to future service.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held measured under the PAA, the
Company recognises reinsurance expenses based on the passage of time over
the coverage period of a group of contracts.

Ceding commissions that are not contingent on claims of the underlying
contracts issued reduce ceding premiums and are accounted for as part of
reinsurance expenses. Ceding commissions that are contingent on claims of the
underlying contracts issued reduce incurred claims recovery.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(s) Recognition of Income and Expenses (cont’d.)
(iii) Insurance Finance Income or Expenses

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying
amount of the group of insurance contracts arising from:

(a) The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of
money; and
(b) The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

For contracts measured under the GMM, the main amounts within insurance
finance income or expenses are:

(a) Interest accreted on the FCF and the CSM;
(b) The effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions, and
(c) Foreign exchange differences.

For contracts measured under the PAA, the main amounts within insurance
finance income or expenses are:

(a) Interest accreted on the FCF; and
(b) The effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions.

For non-life insurance, the entire change in the risk adjustment for non-financial
risk is included in insurance service results.

In the event of transfer of a group of insurance contracts or derecognition of an
insurance contract, the Company reclassifies the insurance finance income or
expenses to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment to any remaining
amounts.

The groups of insurance contracts, including the CSM , that generate cash flows
in a foreign currency are treated as monetary items.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(t) Other revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis that takes into account the
effective yield of the asset.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

All sales of investments are recognised on their trade dates i.e., the date the
Company commits to sell the assets. Gains or losses arising from the sale of
investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the
original or carrying amount and are credited or charged to the statement of profit or
loss.

(u) Income tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable
profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the
financial position.

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the financial position between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the financial position.

Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except when it arises
from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised directly in equity.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(v) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each financial position and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risk specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as finance cost.

(w) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is:

(i) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

(ii) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

* it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
» the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the statement of financial position of the

Company, except for contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that
are present obligations and for which the fair values can be reliably determined.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(x) Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plans Under Statutory Regulations

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the national
pension scheme, the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF"). Such contributions are
recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Employee Leave Entitlements

An employee’s entitlement to annual leave is estimated and accrued according to the
Company’s Human Resource policy.

Share Options

Senior executives of the Group were granted share options in the OCBC’s Share
Option Scheme as consideration for services rendered. Options granted are
exercisable for up to 10 years. The options may be exercised after the first
anniversary of the date of the grant, and generally vest in one-third increments over a
3-year period. The cost of these options are recognised as expense in the Profit or
Loss Statement based on the fair value of the options at the date of the grant. The
share options are cash-settled share-based payment transactions. The expense is
recognised over the vesting period of the grant, with a corresponding increase in
liabilities.

OCBC has ceased granting share options under the scheme effective from financial
year 2018 remuneration. Share options granted in prior years continue to be
outstanding until the options lapse or are exercised by the recipients. The share
options have a validity period of 10 years from date of grant and will lapse
immediately on the termination of employment or appointment, except in the event
of retirement, redundancy, death, or where approved by OCBC’s Remuneration
Committee.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

x)

)

Employee benefits (cont’d.)
Deferred Share Plan

In addition to the OCBC’s Share Option Scheme, certain employees within the
Company are granted OCBC shares under the OCBC Deferred Share Plan ("DSP").
There are 2 types of deferred share awards. Deferred share awards granted as part of
long term incentive compensation will vest three years from the grant date and will
lapse if the staff ceases employment during the vesting period. For deferred share
awards granted as part of variable performance bonus, half of the share awards will
vest two years from the grant date and the remaining half will vest at the end of three
years from the grant date. The cost of the DSP is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the DSP.

At each financial position, the cumulative expense is adjusted for the estimated
number of shares granted under the DSP that have vested and/or lapsed.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) was implemented for all
employees of the participating companies in OCBC Group, including executive
Directors.

The ESPP is a saving-based share ownership plan to help employees own ordinary
shares in OCBC through their monthly contributions via deductions from payroll.
The employees have the option to convert the contributions to ordinary shares after
one year or to withdraw the contributions at any time. As a further incentive to
employees to enrol in the ESPP, OCBC pays interest on the amounts saved at a
preferential interest rate. The duration of the offering period is 24 months. The
expense is recognised over the offering period of the plan, with a corresponding
increase in liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and on hand and short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less from the

date of acquisition, or are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
(z) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract involves the use of an
identified asset and conveys the right to control the use of the asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration — i.e. the customer has the right to:

 obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from using the asset; and
* direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the amount of lease liability, any lease payments made or before
the commencement date, any indirect costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate will be
used as the discount rate. The Company generally uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-
use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In
addition, the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by any impairment
losses and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effect
interest method. It is remeasured to reflect any lease modifications or reassessments.

The Company presents its right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and
lease liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(z) Leases (cont’d.)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(aa) Sales Tax Act 2018 and Service Tax Act 2018 ("'SST")

Effective from 1 September 2018, Sales Tax Act 2018 and Service Tax Act 2018
("SST™) are introduced to replace the GST Act 2014. Service Tax is charged and
levied on any provision of taxable services made in the furtherance of business by a
taxable person and in Malaysia. Service tax is not chargeable on imported and
exported services.

The provision of all types of general insurance contracts to cover any risk incurred in
Malaysia is a taxable service and subject to service tax at prevailing tax rate.

The amount of Service Tax payable to the tax authority is included as part of the
payables in the statement of financial position.

(ab)Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family who:

(1) has control or joint control over the Company;

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel which includes the
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management Team of the
Company or parent of the Company.

91



198301007025 (102249-P)

GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)

(ab)Related parties (cont’d.)

(b) An entity is related to the Company where any of the following condition

applies:

(i) the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) the entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a Company of which the other entity is a

member);

(iii) both the entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the

Company;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or parent of the

entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a Company of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the

Company.

Related party transactions are reported in the Company’s financial statement in
accordance with requirements of MFRS 124 Related Party Disclosures, Companies
Act 2016 and Financial Services Act 2013 and Guidelines on Financial Reporting.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and IC interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as follows:

On 1 January 2024, the Company adopted the following amendments to MFRSs
mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

e Amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements - Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants
¢ Amendments to MFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The adoption of the above pronouncement did not have any significant impact on the
financial statements of the Company.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective
As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards, IC
Interpretations and Amendments to Standards and improvements to published standards
have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB") but are not
yet effective and have not been adopted by the Company.

Effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

¢ Amendments to MFRS 121 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates -
Lack of Exchangeability

Effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

e  Amendments to MFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments (Amendments to MFRS 9 and MFRS 7)

e  Annual Improvements to MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The management expects that the adoption of the above standards, amendments to

standards and interpretations to standards issued by MASB, but not yet effective, will
have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.5 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the preparation of the Company’s financial statements, management makes
estimates, assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities at reporting date. Estimates, assumptions and
judgements are continually evaluated and based on internal studies of actual historical
experience and other factors. Best estimates and assumptions are constantly reviewed
to ensure that they remain relevant and valid. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The following are judgements made by management in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the financial position date that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(i) Insurance Business

The Company makes estimates, assumptions and judgements in its estimates of
FCF, discount rates used and risk adjustments for non-financial risk.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.5 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (cont’d.)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions (cont’d.)

@

Insurance Business (cont’d.)

Discount rates

Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by discounting expected future cash
flows at a risk free rate, plus an illiquidity premium where applicable. Risk free
rates are determined by reference to the observable market yields of government
securities in the currency of the insurance contract liabilities. The illiquidity
premium is determined by reference to observable market rates.

The Company adopts a bottom-up approach in which discount rates are based on
the relevant currency’s risk-free yield curves and an adjustment for illiquidity
premium.

Risk-free yield curves are derived in a consistent approach as that taken by
the International Associations of Insurance Supervisors ("IAIS") on the
design of the global insurance capital standards ("ICS"), with the rates for
the first 15 years being referenced to Bank Negara Malaysia Risk Based
Capital Framework ("BNM RBC"). Similarly, Ultimate Forward Rate
("UFR") references are made to the approach taken by the International
Associations of Insurance Supervisors ("[AIS") on the design of the global
insurance capital standards ("ICs’).

For illiquidity premium, illiquidity buckets ("illiquidity application ratio")
are assigned using an objective scoring system that is based on illiquidity
characteristics of products on each portfolio. Market observable illiquidity
premium levels are derived every month-end based on a credit-risk adjusted
market spread of reference assets for each currency. Non-life insurance
liabilities are generally short-term, hence illiquidity premium is not required.

The adjustment of illiquidity premium in (b) is added as a layer in addition to the
risk-free yield curves in (a) based on the illiquidity application ratio of each
portfolio.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.5 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (cont’d.)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions (cont’d.)
(i) Insurance Business (cont’d.)
Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that is required for
bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of cash flows that arises
from non-financial risk as the insurance contract is fulfilled. Because the risk
adjustment represents compensation for uncertainty, estimates are made on the
degree of diversification benefits and expected favourable and unfavourable
outcomes in a way that reflects the Company’s degree of risk aversion. The
Company estimates an adjustment for non-financial risk separately from all other
estimates.

The confidence level technique is used to derive the overall risk adjustment for
non-financial risk. The risk adjustment is the excess of the value at risk at the
target confidence level over the expected present value of the future cash flows.
The target confidence level will be at 85th percentile.

Estimates of future cash flows

In estimating future cash flows, the Company incorporates, in an unbiased way,
all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date. This information includes both internal and external
historical data about claims and other experience updated to reflect current
expectations of future events.

The estimates of future cash flows will reflect the Company’s view of current

conditions at the reporting date, as long as the estimates of any relevant market
variables are consistent with observable market prices.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

2.5 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (cont’d.)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions (cont’d.)

@

Insurance Business (cont’d.)
Estimates of future cash flows (cont’d.)

When estimating future cash flows, the Company takes into account current
expectations of future events that might affect cash flows. Cash flows within the
boundary of a contract are those that relate directly to the fulfilment of the
contract, including those for which the Company has discretion over the amount
or timing. These include payments to (or on behalf of) policyholders, insurance
acquisition cash flows, liabilities for remaining coverage, liabilities for incurred
claim and other costs that are incurred in fulfilling contracts. Insurance
acquisition cash flows and other costs that are incurred in fulfilling contracts
comprise both direct costs and an allocation of fixed and variable overheads.

Cash flows are attributed to acquisition activities, other fulfilment activities and
other activities at local entity level using activity-based costing techniques. Cash
flows attributable to acquisition and other fulfilment activities are allocated to
groups of contracts using methods that are systematic and rational and will be
consistently applied to all costs that have similar characteristics.

For insurance contracts issued, on initial recognition, the Company measures the
liabilities for remaining coverage at the amount of premiums received, less any
acquisition cash flows paid and any amounts arising from the derecognition of the
insurance acquisition cash flows asset and the derecognition of any other relevant
pre-recognition cash flows. The liabilities for remaining coverage is discounted to
reflect the time value of money and the effect of financial risk.

The Company estimates the liabilities for incurred claim as the fulfilment cash
flows related to incurred claims. The FCF incorporate, in an unbiased way, all
reasonable and supportable information available without undue cost or effort
about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future cash flows, they reflect
current estimates from the perspective of the Company, and include an explicit
adjustment for non-financial risk (the risk adjustment). The Company adjusts the
future cash flows for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk for
the measurement of liabilities for incurred claim, unless when they are expected
to be paid within one year or less from the date of which the claims are incurred.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)
2.5 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (cont’d.)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions (cont’d.)
(ii) Pipeline Premium

The estimation of pipeline premiums made by management is based on average
actual pipeline premium booked in for past three (3) years. As estimations are
inherently uncertain, actual premium may differ from the estimated premiums.

(iii) Impairment of Goodwill

The Company assesses goodwill annually to determine if any impairment exists
by measuring the recoverable amount of the goodwill based on the value-in-use
method, which requires the use of estimates of cash flow projections, growth rates
and discount rates. Changes to the assumptions used by management, particularly
the discount rate and the terminal value, may affect the results of the impairment
assessment. The assumptions applied to estimate the value-in-use computations
are as described in Note 3 to the financial statements.

101



01

CIP'9er IS 9L1°0£89 €L1°T8T9T SOV 1P 86578181 20T 1Pquade( 1¢ 1V
TIT'8h8'ES PSS ELOY T08'LLLOE 8ST'H18 86578181 £20T RPquo(J [£ IV
junowre FUILIIed JaN
1€8°€T0° LY 5 TIEP09°LE 61S°617'E : PT0T BqUIRNR( 1€V
LIL'€68°S - P20 ITT’S £69°CL9 - Teok [eroueuly Yy} 10J UOTIESIIOWY
PI1°0€1°6E = 88T €8ETE 9T8°9vLT = £C0T PAUIR(Q €IV
S91°5+8°9 - ELY'TLIL9 T69°TLY = Teok [eroueuly 9y} 10} UONESHIOWY
66 187°8T = gI8°017'9z YEI'PLOT - €707 Arenuef |1y
uonesnIouIe pajejnunddy
€PT09%T6 9L1°0€£8°9 $8+'988°€9 786°09S°€ 865°C81°81 P20T _QUIdNR( 1€ IV
L10'Z8Y'E TT9'9SLT S6£°STL = = suonIppy
97T'8L6'88 YSSELOY 060°191°¢€9 $86'095°¢ 86578181 £C0T B/ I€ IV
(91S°118) : - (9IS°T18) - JusuLireduy
006°€YT'E vIE'LTO 98591€T = i suonippy
Tr8'SrS 98 ovT'ople Y0Sv¥8°09 00S°TLE Y 86578181 €707 Axenuef 1)V
150D
4. | nWda A | A | 4 |
[elo1, ssaxgoad aIem)jos woped [[1spoos)
“ur-yjaom uonnqrisiq
Tende)
pung pung
uensuy S Jap[oyaeys

SLASSYV ATAIDNVINI ‘€

(ersAefeyy u1 pajerodaoduy)
AVHIAL (VISAVIVIA) ADNVINSNI TVIEANTD NIALSVA LVIID

(d-6¥2T0T) STOLOOTOESGT



€01

pua
-Jeak [e1oueUl] 3y} Je Se [[1mpooSd Jo juduriredulr JO 90UIPIAS OU ST 219y} ‘A[SUIPIOIDY JUNOWE J[BIIA0DAL §11 PIFIX3 0) NO)) 3 Jo anfea Suikired
oy asned jou pnom suondwnsse L3 saoqe au) Jo Aue ur sagueys o[qissod A[qeuosear Aue Jeyl $9A91[aq Auedwio)) ay; jo juswageurw Y],

*9]81 19NPOIJ dNSAWO( SSOIL) Y] YIIM JUISISUOD ST YITYM ‘(%G :€20T) %S + JO 91 Y1moI3 mo[J yseo anfeA [eururta], (1)

pPue {(9%¢ 071 :€207) wnuue 12d 94/ g JO 91v11UNOISIp Xe1-a1d (96’8 :€707) wnuue 13d 9,6/ 99
01 PoJEWINIS3 ST YOIYM JUSWISSIsSe Y] Jo awn ay) Je Auedwio)) ay) o feydes Jo 1500 aFeraae pajySiom [euraiul oy st pardde 9je1 Junoossip ayy, (Im)

{(%T 11 :€207) wnuue 13d 9,91 Jo a8e1sae ay) uo st Auedwo)) ayj Jo ajel yImoid pajoadxa ayy, (1)
:SMO[[0] SE a1k 9sn-uIl-an[eA jo uoneindwos oy 10} suondwnsse A3y 19410 Y,

‘pouad xeak-oAl e SunaA0d quawafeuew Aq posoidde pue paredaid suonosford morj yseos
pa1unoosip Adde suonenofes asn-ur-anjeA YL, ‘10D 9[3UIS B Se PIUIJIP SI YOIYM ‘S[oym e se ssaursnq s Auedwo)) ay) 0 pajedo[[e S [[IAPOOD)

"JUNOUWE 9[QBIIA0III $]I SPISOXD (10)7) S JO Junowe urA1ed ay) JI $sof 1o J1jo1d JO Juawale)s ay} Ul pastugooal st juawredu]
"$)SIXd juoumriedwir Aue IoyIoym SUIULIANGP 0] (10D Yl JO anfeA Fuikired 9yl 0} paredwod pue asn-ur-on[eA SJI U0 Paseq passasse SI 10D

9y} JO JUNOWE J[GRISA0ISI JY [, "UonIsmboe ayj Jo saIF1ouAs ay) woly 31Jauaq 0} pajoadxa st yoym N s Aueduro)) syl 0] pajedo[[e st [[IAPOoD)

‘110 Arenue( [ uo (peyiag pjogussin) g)] se umouy mou) (,ueye], ) peylog
BISAR[R\| QOURINSU[ UBYR], JO SSAUISN( 0URINSUI [RIOUAF 9Y) JO SOTI[IqRI] PUE S]asse UTe}Isd Jo uonisinboe oyl w01y 9soIe 9A0QR [[IMPOOT Sy,

TIIAAOOD T'¢
(A.INOD) SLASSV ATIIONVINI ‘€

(ersAefepA ur pajerodaoduy)
AVHAAL (VISAVIVIN) ADNVINSNI TVIIANTD NYALSVA LVIIAD

(d-6¥ZT0T) STOLOOTOESGT



701

‘9167 [SINY Jo Juouwiredurr ue saxmbar yorym +/9°Gz9‘ [INY JO Junoure SurAired sj1 ueyl ssof SI §G[ ‘w1 SIAY JO Junowre 9[qeIaA0031
s,uroperd ay) “‘reaf jse “uuojied eyjerxy 9y 10§ paimbar st jusunreduwnn [euonIppe 18yl UOHEIIPUI OU ST 1Y) ‘4707 I9quadd( [ JO SV

‘wropierd ejeIxy
ay1 jo juswinedwr ur paynsal p[nom ey d8ueyd o) suondwnsse A9 pPoUOHIUSUWIAAOQE Y} I0J A[qRUOSEII ST I JBY) SISPISUOD JUSWaSeury
suonjdunsse £33 ur Sa3uLyd 0} ANANISUIS

%9°8 %8’ (xe1-01d) 9ye1 JUNOISI(]
%T1 %L eI YIMOIL) 95RIAY
£€00T L4114 suondwmsse £33

‘wopeld ererxy ayj Jo Jo j0adsar ur suonoaford mofj ysed ur pasn uaaq aaey suondwnsse A3 Suimor[oy sy,

‘[pOWw MO[J YySed paunodsip 9yl Suisn (s1eah G :¢707) sTeak 7 JO SMO[J Yysed any

pa1oafoid jo snpea yussaxd ayp e panfea sem woperd elRIXY 9y} 0] 9[qRINQLIIE dIE ey} SIJOUIq JIUOU0dd 21mny 3y ‘Auedwor) ay) £q pajonpuod
Juawssasse Juswureduwr 9y uf “(u)(Y)g'g 0N ut saroiod Sununosse s Yim 9dUBpIOIIE ur jusuniredull JO UONIBOIPUL UE ST SI9Y] USYM JUILLSSISSE
juounredwr sponpuod Kuedwo) syJ, "poyrew aul-jydrens oyy Sursn sredak G'g Jo SI[ [NJISN SH ISAO PISHIOWE SI IS SAISO[OX SIY) JOJ J3J Y,
‘sasodind Zuryres-dn pue Suryfes-sso1o 103 Kuedwo)) oyl 0} ParIgJaI 9q 0} I9PIO UL

s[auuey) pue ssuled DAV Y1 ‘DAY Y3noiy) payoeal 9q Ued Oym Iawo)snd ssadoe 0} Auedwo)) syl £q polIofjo doueInsur [eIauag sy Snqrusip
0} uoneIoqe[[od jurof e st 11 *(,0AV.) Pud ups rede) 1endi( elerxy Aq papraoid doueINSUT OISTW O} UONB[SI Ul dTe 1500 wiroyje[d uonnqusip ayJ,

INYO4LV'Id NOLLAYIILSIA T€
(A.INOD) SLASSV ATIIONVINI '€

(ersfefey ul pajerodioduy)
AVHAAL (VISAVIVIA) ADNVINSNI TVIINTD NYALSVA LVHID

(d-6¥TT01) STOLOOTOES6T



So1

9L9°€¥T 0T 9y vP0°S €TEIL6’L ey LTy ¥L¥'008°9 P07 PqUIRRJ 1€ IV
¥19°968°C $26°706'Y C1€°008 = CLE'EH] suonippy
290°LYE Y1 45954 800°TLIL eV LTy 660°L09°9 €707 1_/qUIRR( €IV
(0€T°01) = = = (ogz'o1) JJo-a1mIm
(S9L) : . - (S9L) [esodsiq
Y61 ce0°l 7e0°0rT L1L008 = SYLT6 suonIppy
€9CyTECT 00S°1 16T°0LE9 Y LY 6v€°STS9 €707 A1enuef [ )y
80D
AR | nWia i WA |4k |
e ssaagoad judwdinba S3oIyaA ssumy »
-Ul-y 104 1ndwo)) I0J0TA danjruang
fenden ‘U01)rAOUIL
“udwdimba
PO
paunQ (e)

INTNLINOA ANV ALIAdOUd P

(eisfefey u1 pajeaodioduy)
AQVHAAL (VISAVIVIN) ADNVINSNI TVIIANTD NYALSVH LVAID

(d-6¥2T0T) STOLOOTOESG]



901

"(8TS‘801°6INY ‘€207) 1E1°9LF OIINY

0} 3ununouwre asn Ul [[0IS AIe YdoIym sjasse pajeroardop A[nj Jo sisod oyl are Aueduwo)) oyl jo juswdmba pue K119doxd Jo 1500 oy ur papnjouy

0S0°S66'9 9SH'¥P0°S ¥80°6S€°1 981°0IT YT I8y $20C 1quade( 1¢ 1V
996'185°C (435841 6TV LSL'T 8TY9LI LLS90S €0 3quaoe( [ 1V
junowre urfiIed JaN
979'8¥C'E1 s 6£T°T199 LETLIE 0ST'61€°9 PT0T _QULRQ €IV
0£S°¢E8Y1 - 099°861°1 TWT99 879°81¢ (€1 210N) TeaK [eroueUly 2y} 10 aZreyd uonenardaq
960°S9L‘11 = 6LS ETHS €66°05T 7TS001°9 €707 PR 1€ IV
(6T6°6) - - . (626°6) HO-a1LIM
(€LS) - - " (€LS) Tesodsiq
THI'L8LT 5 €OT°1ZET w99 L6L 66E (€1 210N) Teak [eroueury oy) 1oy 98xeyd uoneraideq
95¥°886°6 - 9LV T60Y €SL Y81 LTTTIL'S €707 Atenuef [y
uonedIdap pajenunddy
'k | A | A% ¢ A Ak |
1?0, ssaagoad juowrdmba S3PIYIA ssummy »
-ul-yjIom Jndwo) I0J0I dImuang
ende) ‘aorjeAOUdL
“uawdmba
YO

(pAuod) poumQ (®)
(AQ.INOD) INANAINOA ANV ALYAJONd ¥

(ersAefeyA] ur pajerodaoouy)
AVHAAL (VISAVIVIA) SONVINSNI TVIANTD NYALSVA LVAID

(d-6¥TT01) STOLOOTOESGT



LO1

L8R'6LT'TI B L88'6LICT 20T 12quads 1€ 1V
EIEY6T Y1 SOLvC 809°69C 71 £20T 1°quao( [¢ 1V
junoure gurfired JaN
TEY'6LT'S ; TE€9'6LI'S P20T PGUNRQ 1€ IV
ozT'61sD) 91t°€0L) (Y08°S18) uonendxo asea|
768°626°C SOL'PT 681°G06°C (€1 210N) Teak [eroueuty ay) Ioy a8reys uonerdaideq
856'89L°¢C T1L°8L9 LYT'060°E €70 PQUIRIR(Q 1€ IV
(961°1E1°E) = (961°1€¥°€) uone1dxa asea|
08L°LOTE 766°S81 98L°176C (€1 210N) 1e2A [eroueury ay) 10§ 98reys uonervardeq
YLETOE0Y LILT6Y LS9°66S°E €707 Arenuef [ )y
uonerdIdap pajenunddy
61S°6SE°LT 3 615°6SE°LI PT0T PQURRIR 1€ IV
(P20°S€€T) (91+°€0L) (809°1£9°1) uonendxs asea]
TLTT1E91 - TLTT1E9T suonIppy
1LZ°€90°81 91H'€0L CCR6SELT €70T P_QUIdNR( 1€ IV
(26€°798°9) - (26£°798°9) uonendxo osea]
68Y°169°9 = 681699 suonIppy
PLI'PET' ST 91¥°c0L 8SL0ES LI €707 Atenuef 1)y
150D
AN | na AR |
e10L $)J9SSY 3s(} sanaadoag
-JO- Sy
Lyo

sjasse asn-Jo-ysry  (q)
(CAQ:INOD) INFINAINOA ANV ALYAJOAd P

(ersAefeqA ul pajeaod.aoduy)
AVHIAL (VISAVIVIAD HONVINSNI TVIIANTD NYALSVA LVALD

(d-6TZ01) STOLOOTOESGT



801

8CI'OTZ'ELL  816'6L0°COT  OTITOET'TLI IL6°STO0SL  THY'TOT'601  6CI'€T6'0Y9
8TETEY'LYT  €TOOTISE S0eTTS Tl €8Y°0CTL'SLT TSO°L6S LE TEV'ETI QLT
9L6'L68'YT9  $68°69699 180°8T6°LSS ¥TS'09T'ELS  T6L'SOSTL €ELYSLTOS
¥78°'6L9 - ¥T8°6L9 $96'¥0°1 - ¥96v10° 1
8CI'0IZT'CLL  816'6L0°T0T  OITOEI'TLY 1L6'ST0'0SL  TP8TOI'601  6C1°€T60V9
¥Z8°6L9 E ¥T8°6L9 96 ¥¥0°1 € 967101
L8Y'SET' IOl 66T°69T° 1€ 88199669 T9€°9€Y'S0T  016°109°CE TS vE8TL
0€¥°070°8S SL8'8SHTE $GS19¢°9T ShP'665°89 ¥60°8TT'SE ISETLEEE
TYST88'8LY  0STTIL'SE [(YAVARS 7% LYTVOE' LYY 86V EVY'LE 68L°0SL 601
SP8T6EVET  vor'OvY'E 1SE1S6°0€T €16'0SS°LTT  O¥E'679°E €LST1TOHETT
na nia na N 'k | AL |
1101, pung punyj [ejo], pung punyg

S Jap[oYaIeyS JduBINSU] S JIp[oYaieyS JduBINSU]

€70¢ pcoc

Td LA e s19sse [eroueury
IDOAA 18 819858 [eIouBUL]
1S00 PASTIIOWE J& $]ISSe [BIouBUL]

:SMO[[O] SB $a110331e0
Aq pastrewrans 21e syusaunsaaut s Auedwo)) ayf,

Nilvg |
SOWIAYDS JUSUIISIAUL IATII[0D)
sanunoas A1mbyg

SaNIINO3S 1G9

SANIINDJS JUSUWIUIIAOT UBISARRIA

SINHNLSHANI 'S

(er1sAee ul pajeaodioduy)

AVHAAL (VISAVIVIA) ADNVINSNI TVIINTD NIALSVA LVIAD

(d-6¥TT0T) STOLOOTOES6T



601

‘3ununoosIp

Jo joeduwr jueorruisur ay) o) anp sanfea Iej jJo suonewrxoidde o[qeuoseal 91€ 1SOO PISHIOWE J8 PIINSEIW S}ISSE [RIOUBUTY JO aneA Surlired ayJ,

v78°6L9

nNa
110,

40, |
punjg

¥78°6L9

A |
punyg

S JIp[OYdIeyS IdUBINSU]

%4\ 14

96 ¥70'1

00
LZ0N

A% |
punyg

¥96'v10°'1

A
pung

S Jap[oyaieys Jdueansuy

4|14

SUBO[ 9[OTY2 A

150D PaAs[}IoOUIE J& PIINSEBIUL SJISSE [erdueuL] (¥)

"ajep ALmews ou yis (L85 SEZ TOTIA 1€20T) T9E9EH'SOTIAY JO SSWSYOS JUSWISIAUT SATIOI[00 318 [ LA I€ SIOSSE [eIOUBUL] UT Papu[ouy

"a1ep Aymew ou Im (ZTT°6ST*SYINY :€20T) 1217 TSINY JO sanLnoas A1nba pajonb are DO A e $198se [eroueur] ur pepufouy

POT'T0S'TZL  9¥1°6LO'COT  8T09TH 619 8EE€9TE6S9  THS'TOT'60T  96¥'E1T°0SS
GSS'LTILYT  0ST'SOTSE S0E'TTSTIT €87°0CLSLT 1S0°L6SLE TEY ETIBE
LYELOT'ELS  968°696°99 1SY'LET90S S66°19ST8Y  T6L'SOS'TL ¥0T9S0° 111
79T°999 = 797'999 098°€€0°1 = 098°€€0°1
A ¢ AL | A AL | A0 | nNda
[B10], punjg punyj 8101, punj punyg

S JOp[oyaIeyS dduevINSuy S Jap[oYyaIeys 3IduBInsul

€207 yaoc

"TdLAAH 1€ S1asse [eroueulq

IDOAH e sjasse [erouruI]
1S00 PISTLIOWIE JB S}OSSE [eTOURUL]

syjuour 7|
I9)Je QINJEWI SJUAUWIISIAUT FUIMOT[O] oYL,

(A.INOD) SINTINLSTAANI 'S

(ersie[ey ul pajerod.aoouy)

AVHIEL (VISAVIVIAD HONVINSNI TVIEANAD NYALSVA LVAID

(d-6¥2T01) STOLOOTOESGT



0] Junowre [DOAA 18 painsesur

011

‘s3UTUIES POUIBIaT 0] 9AISSI AN[BA ITB] WOIJ PAIJISSR[IST SeM (]TR6RIN €20T) 296800 TN
Jo (xe1 Jo 10u) fesodsip uo SSO[ dameMWND Y], "[esodsIp Jo a1ep Y} 18 (61 SHH SINYT €207) S9L'C6T‘LIA JO Sujea Iie] v pey SJUSUIISIAUT
9say], 'sanIAnoe Furoueieqar oropiod o) anp sonuNd3s Aimba paysty pros Auedwio) oY) ‘4707 QUL [€ PIPUL Ieak [eroueury oy Suung

‘JuAWIssasse Juduredur o) 109(qns Jou are [DOAL] 18 P2INSEIW SaNLIN0as saninba palond)

"(IA)ET S10N UT PI1RISP ST TDH 10§ dUBMOT[ JO JuawaAow 24T, ‘(0LF 0T TINY :€20T) 000°T1 LINY

$ONLNO3s 1qap pajonbun pue saNINOIS JuowuIdA0S ueIsAe[e]A 10] papraold uasq sey O I0] SOUBMO[[Y

9L6'L68'YC9 96869699 080°8C6°LSS YCS'09T°CLS  T6L°SOS'TL €ELYSL'TOS
CIT6ST1°8Y €0T'PSI° 1€ 600°S0S°91 12I°TYT1S $60°8TT 'S¢ 920 ¥10°91
610°LYE TPy  66T°SLSTE 0ZL 1LY OTY 061 L9V'V6E  9SE8Y9°CE PET°618°19¢
SPE'T6EPET  vov'OPY'E 1SE1S6°0€1 €16'0SS°LZT  0¥E'679°E €LST1T6ETI
A § Wi i A8 | AR Wi
[ejoL, punyj pung 1ejo, punyg punyj

S I9p[oYyaaeyS 3Idueansuy S I9p[oYyaaeyS JdueINSUY

€20¢

yaoc

BISAR[RIA UI SaN1IN0as A11nbo pajong)
BISAB[BIA] UT SONIIINO3S 1qap pajonbun
SANLINOIS JUSWUIIAOT UBISARTRIA

IDOAMJ 1 paanseaul sjasse jepueury (q)

(AINOD) SINAIWLSTANI S

(ersAeepy u1 pajeiodioouy)

AVHYAL (VISAVIVIAD ZONVINSNI TVIINTD NYILSVA LVAID

(d-6¥TT0T) STOLOOTOESGL



[1l

8TETEY'LYT  €TO0TT°SE SOE'TTSTIT €81 0CTL'SLT 1S0°'L6G°LE TEV ETI8ET
LBY'SETTOT  66T°69T 1€ 881°996°69 9£°9¢y'S0T  0T6°T09°CE TSYPESTL
9L9°CEY 2 9L9°CEY 1238574! - Y8ESHY'l
0L8°0TF'6 = 0L8°0T¥°6 Ov6'T16°ST * 0v6'T16°C1
TLLY TLL'Y - - - -
€76°6£S°9¢ TS6°SE8'E 1LS°669°C¢ L6L'9T6'TS I71°666'y 9S9°1€6°LY
nWa nia Ak | i WA A0 |
[ejoL punyj punj ®1oL pung punyg

S JAP[OYIIeYS JdurINSU] S Jap[oyareys Jdueansuy

1 %4114 yaoc

SOWIAYOS JUSUIISIAUT IATIOIN[0))

BISAR[RIA 9PISINO sanumodas A1ba pajonbup
BISAR[BIA] UT SaMI1INO9as Alnba pajonbun
eISARIRIA UT SaMIIN0as A1inba pajong)
BISAR[RIA UI SANINDAS 1qap pajonbun)

TdLAJ e painseaul sjasse [eroueuly (d)
(A.ILNOD) SINAINLSHANI 'S

(ersfeepA ur pajerod.aoduy)

AVHYAL (VISAVTIVIA) ZONVINSNI TVHANTD NYALSVH LVAID

(d-6¥TT0T) STOLOOTOES6T



Cll

"(1A) €T 9ION Ul pa[re1ap st JIININ ut uonedronred s)1 woiy Suistie axsodxo jou s Auedwo)
YL, "dIINIA Jo dreys s Auedwio)) ay) SOPNOUl SAOQE S}ISSE J0RIIU0D DUBINSUIII PUB SIMI[IGRI JOBIIUOD IDURINSUL ) ‘4707 JOqUIAdNI( [€ I8 SV

62E°LYYELS €09°LSE6ES PI2Y S}]ORIJUGI IURINSULI [B)0],
(€08°IS€E'EL) (TO1°869°67) SIN[IQEI[ 10BLUOD 0URINSUINY
TE1°666'919 S0L*SS0°69S $1985E 10BJUOD I0URINSUINY

P3Y S)OBIIU0D dUEINSUIY

£66°L89°686 9L5°678°CS6 PINSSI $JOBIJUOD IdUBINSUI [BJ0 ],
(E9F'6L1"Y) (TS1°196°S) $19SSE JOBIIUOD SoURINSU]
9S+°L98°C66 8TL06L 196 SIDI[IQEI] 10BIUOD dUBINSU]
Pa01SSI $108B.IJU0D dUeINSUY
A | N
£70T vaoc

:M0[3q 9]qe] 9y} UI Ino 3as ST uonisod
Ayriqer] e ur osoyl pue uonisod 19sse Ue UT 9Te Jey) ‘P[AY SIOLNUOD OUBINSUISI PUB PINSSI SI0BIIUOD douensur Jo sdnoid Jjo umopyesiq o[,

SLIOVAINOD HONVINSNITT ANV IDNVIASNI 9

(eisfe[ey ul pajerodioduy)
AVHYAL (VISAVTIVIA) HONVINSNI TVIANAD NYALSVA LVAID

(d-6¥TTOT) STOLOOTOES6T



£l

£66°'L89'686 prL'S0T'S9 €LY'SSI'0SL  9E9PROPT 0v6' 18205t 9L5°6T8'SS6 SER'ETH'SH L66'61E'LOL  9VO'8TLLY 869'LS8'V81
(E9°6L1°F) ] = - (€9r'6L1F) (TS1'196°S) 3 ] = (TSI°196°C)
95+ L98'€66 FL'S0T'S9 €L9'GST'0SL  9£9'FH0'vC E0F' 191 FS 1 8TLO6L'196 SER'ETH'SH L6G'GIELOL  9PO'RTL'LI 0S8'R18'061
£66°L89'686 ¥hL'S0T'S9 €L9'SST'0SL  9E9'FP0'VvE 06 18T°0S1 9LS'6TR'SSE SER'ETH'SH LG6G'6IELOL  9P0'8TL LY 869'L58'F81
695'6TE'8E L . (111°881'£8¢) = 089'€15'62¢ 755'2708'L01 3 (896°219'L68) - 0ZS'SI1'50S
(LECTEV'IED) - - = (LeCTEV'1E])  (ST6'8TO'SHI) 3 5 = (ST6'820'SY1)
(rrssiigey - (111'881°'L8E) = = (896°T19°L6€) ] (896'C19'L68) = =
L10'9¥6'959 = 7 i LIY9P6'959 SH' it 059 - 4 = St PP 069
(807'LP8'6S1)  (STO'EPT'ET) 109'Ly1'6bE  (0TS'S9E'L) (F9S'68€'8LY)  (696099" I+1) (606°187°61) TOHTLLLPSE  (065'91€°9) (29L'6£8'0LY)
Ob8'PSL'SE 680'v91'C 968'701°SZ LPY'60T'1 807'8L6'9 LTL'6LO'SE $89'851'C 850’ 166°€C 988°9%8 801°€80'8
(8¥2°209'S61)  (#10°30L'ST) SOL'PHIPTE  (L91'SLE°8) (TLLE9E 'SR (969°0vL'9LL) (765 0v'12) PYTOSLOEE  (9LEE9ITL) (OLHETE'BLE)
(R€0'€08°T8) (8SH9N6'RE)  (085°968°¢H) = : (€AE'LEE'LY) (zog'onz'or)  (160'1€1°'LT) - .
ESTPLIYS 3 = ESTHLIPS . 765'880°0% = . 265°880°0F %
005°688'SEl S = = 005°688°SE1 056°559'0¥ 1 & = - 056°659'0F
601'06E'81€ Py 861°€l SST'IP6'L9E  (0TE'6VL'TY) - SL60EY 6L 80L°69L'81 SEE'LIE'LSE  (890°TST'LY) -
(TLT'ESTITY) - : = (2L2T'€5T'129) (0T8'8L5'619) ] 5 % (0Z8'8LS'619)
TER'6OT'TI0'T  699'6v'88 €81°961'88L  9SI'0IT'IE ¥T8'eS1'E0! £66°L89°686 PrL'S0T'S9 ELY'SSI'OSL  9EY'FHO'TT 06 18T'0S1
(8Y6'LLG'EL) = Y = (876°LLEET) (E9°6LIY) X 5 = (E9°6L1'Y)
08LLST'STOT  699'6bb'88 €8T°961°88L  9ST'OIP'IE TLLTET'LIT 951" L98'E66 PPL'SOT'S9 €L9'SSTOSL  9E9'bHO'PT €OPTIV'BST
wia it:] WA WA W W WY Wy WY Qe ¢
ejo], juaunsn(pe SMO[J YSed d 3 d ®ioL juaunsnipe SMO[] 4sra bl d d
ysty ainnj jo anjea sso] sso] Suipnpxyg Aty aimny jo anea S50 ss0] Suipnpaxy
juasaad ayy Juasaxd ayy
J0 sajewrsy 10 sajewInsy
Y Vd 13pun sjpeiuo) YVd 1apun sjetjuo))
swiep aderaam

paLInauy 10y saniqey]

£20T

Bupupewas oj sanniqer]

palinaul Joj s3

swgep

ade1aA00 Suuieway 10§ sapIpqery

13quaN( I¢ 18
5B (53a551)/SAFI[IQRI] JOVIIUOD IDURINSUL JON
19qUI0da(] [ 18 SE $10SSE JORNUOD adueEIMSU]
12quIana(] | € It Se SAU[IqRI] IDRIU0D IDURINSUL

1quIada(] [ I
S® (5)a55k)/SANIIQRI] JORIUOD IDUBINSUI JAN
uoysod [RIDUBUL] [0 JUILIIIRS 3Y) U SWI]] JAYIO JIJSUBT ],
SMO[J ySed [B)o,

SMO[] Ysea uonisinbae asuemsup

pied sasuadxo Joyjo pue swie|D)

PIAIDOV SWNNUAI]

smop) yse)

ID0 pu® ssoj Jo jijoad Jo Juawd)e)s ay) ur sadueyd [elo],
sasuadxa IduLUly IdUBNSUL
JINSAL AINAIIS dURINSU]

SWIRO PALMOUL 10§ SANIIQRI] 0) safuey)
SJOBIUOD SNOISUO UO SAISSO]
smol) ysed uonismbor asurmsut jo uonesniouwry
S35UdX3 19Y10 PUR SWIT|D Paunduf
sasuadxa DINAIDS oURINSUT
AMUDAII IJURMSU]
Alenuef | je se
(S19S58)/SINIIQRI] JIVIIUOD INURINSUL 1IN
K1enuep (1B 58 819558 10RJIB0I IDURIMSU]
Asenue[ | T Se SaMI[IqeI] 19811Ued JsuRINSU]

SUIE[? pALIng 10§ ANIqel] Y3 pur A3e1a40) SUMIBWAL 10§ ANJIGRI] NP JO COPBILI0IAY

(*a.LNOD) SLOVILNOD EINVINSNIZY ANV ZONVANSNI

(risAeje]A] us pajesodioouy)

AVHYAD (VISAVIVIA) BONVIASNI TVHINTD NYIALSVA LVAYD

(d-65TZ0T) STOLOOTOERGI

9



144

6TELYIELS  OE6'IES'ES 1¥9'SLE'TES  SOL'E66 UreesTEL) €09°LSE'6ES YEL'BO8'VT 9£9°68L'98Y  H00'ESS 62TI0T'LT
(€08"1SEEL) = . 8YE'658 GUST T (T01'869°62) - - 060'8L (T61'9LL'6T)
TEI'666'9Y9  (0€R'1E£5'ES 1¥9'SLE'TES  LSL'EE] $08'LS6'09 SOL'SS0'69S PEL'RO8PT 9£9'68L'98Y  TI6PLY 1Z7'286'95
6CE'LYI'ELS  0L6'1ES'ES I¥9'SLE'TES  SOL'E66 (L¥EesTEL) £09°LSE'6ES PEL'B0Y' YT 9€9'68L°987  H00'ESS 622'90T'LT
611°6vT°1€ 5 (b6S"186°LET) - £1L0ET 691 8L8'100°9Z1 = (£9'€67°C01) - 125°S67°62C
We6s'186°LEL) - W6S186°LEL) - S (€49'€6T°€01) . (€p9'€6°€0l) - 5
EIL'0ET691 - S - EIL'0ET'691 125'S6¢ 62C B - = 125'S62'62C
(TIP'S90°CEL)  6PE'LI6'] 610'S5L'TS (809°67€'9) (ZL1'88E°181)  (H09°162°091) (961'€TL'8T) 8€9'LOL'LS (101'0¥p) (SH6'SE8'88 1)
v20'126'81 LEO'SES'] £28'110°61 €IS'ThT 1S9°1E1'T $T8'465° 1T 6¥6'9vS"1 L6S'HH6'91 08T'8¢ 866'790't
(9€H'986'[S1)  TIE'TRE 961'EPLLE (121'265°9) (€78'61S°€RI)  (8TH'9RR'IRI) (SP1'0LT'0E) 150'€9L 0% (IRE'RLY) (£16'006'161)
01670709 (0s9°¢6LCl) (09T T119°LY) 5 e (TLO'LPR'ER) (TIETOL'LE)  (0YL'P80'9F) - -

STE'ELE'D - - STE'EL6'D - 959 PH9‘ [ > = 9597191 C

TL6'Y96'F8 T96'SLI'El 95 pSES8 OpF69s'El) S 1€6'912'T6 LY1'T6Y'L 108'L18'98 (LE0'eTI'D) s
(ETR'6IS'ERT) = C - (€28'615°€RT) (EV6°006°161) = 2 = (£16006°[61)
TTEIY'SLY  IRSHISIS 9LTTO9'LIY EILTYE'L (888°560°1) 6TE LY9'ELS 0E6'1€5'€S 1¥9°SLE'TES  SOI'E66 (LPEESTEND)
(T6C'1S€0E) = E S8L' 1YY (LLI'E6L°0E) (€08°1SE°EL) = = 8YE 658 USI1ITHL)
PI0'SI8'SOL  18S'HI9'IS 9IT'C09'LI9  8T6'006'9 68C'L69'6T TE1'666'9%Y 0£6'1€5'eS IP9'SLE'TES  LSL'EET $08'L56°09
Wya nWia Wi Wa Wy WA Wa wWa Wa WY

e Asu SMO[] yseda L d b1 d 1.4, ys1a SMO] Ysed ] d ] d
[eoueUlj-uou  anjnj Jo In[ea sso ss0] duipnjoxy [EIDUBRUL-UOU  3IN)NJ JO JnjeA ss0] sso[ Suipnpaxy
J03 Juruysnipe  juasaxd ay Joy yuaunsnfpe  juasaad ay)
Asry Jo syyruysy

SUITR]2? PALINIUL 10) SJASSY

€20T

adeIaA00 Jururewsas 10j 531355y

it |

Jo sayeunsy

SUITR[? PAIINIUT JOf 5)ISSY

ot

airJaAr0d Juuiewas Joj s)assy

Jaquiada( I¢ 1e
SE (SANI[IqBI[)/513SSE JIBJJUDD IIUBIASUIAI JAN
12qUIDN3(] [ 1B SB SONI[IQRI] IDRIUAGD IDURINSUISY
I0QUIAIA(] [£ 1B ST S)I5SC 10RIIUOGD DIURINSUIDY
FELTEREY N (314
SB (SAI[IIRI])/SIISSR JIRIJUOI IDURINSULAT JaN
SMOY YSED [)O],
P3A13231 SjUNOWY
pind stunuualg
sSMo[) yse)

100 pue sso 10 Jijo1d Jo Juatua)e)s ay} ul sajueyd [eyn],
AUIEIUT AIUBUL) DULINSUTIY
PI9Y S19LI)U0 IDUBINSULAI W] I5uadxa J0 awodus JaN
SIUIR[D PALINJUL JOJ S13SST 0] SJusunsHipy
S1ORNUOD SUIA[I3pun SNOJAUO UO SISO JO SALIBAOORY
sosuadxa 291AI08

20URINSUL I3YI0 PUE SWIE[D PALINDUT JO SIIIA0Y
SISINSUISI WIDIY S[RISAONDT SJUNOWY

Swniwoad 9dURINSUIA JO UOTIRIO[[Y

Lienuef | v se
(SaN[IQRI])/S)ISSR JIRIJUOD IDURINSUIII JIN
K1enuer [ e e $a01|IqTL] 19C1U0D ADUBINSUIDY
h._aﬂ_:.x—- [ e Se §1asse JovIUOD QOUBINSUIIY

(*p,Ju0?) swiepd paimouy 10§ KJIIqei[ 3Y) pue AFe13A0 Jupuiewal J0j A)IGRI] 3Y) JO UOTIRI{IDU0IIY

(A.LNOD) SLOVHINOD HONVINSNIZT ANV ZONVANSNI

(eisefejq ui pajesodiodu)

AQVHYAd (VISAVIVIA) IONVINSNI TVIANTO NYALSVE LVIID

6¥ZT08) STOLOOKOESGL

9



SiI

‘puewiap uo d[qeAedal o1e pue 231J 1$919]Ul ‘paIndasun are soruedwod paje[al pue Auedurod Sulp[oy S1IPIWWI WO.LJ 0P SJUNOWE Y |,

$20T 12queda( [ € 01 dn snjdins/sasso] pajenunode s, JTNIA JO a1eys s, Auedwo)) ay1 Jo 10adsar ur opewr a1om suonnqrIuod
ysed jou paje[awnooe YL ‘dIAIN O} Spew (I6v'6v8 SINY 1€T0T) [6V'6FF TN JO UONNGIIUODd [sed J9U SIpn[dul JININ 943 19pun play s1assy

‘K19A1303dsa1 (1A) € pue [ ‘9 SRION Ul PasojasIp aie [004 3y ur uoriedionted sit wouy Sutsue amsodxd

19U pue SINIIqe]] I9YI0 ‘SANI[IqeI] JoRIUOD IJURINSUL S, [00J 3Y) Jo areys s Auedwio)) 9], "SSUI[IRI] JOYI0 PUB SINI[IQRI] 108IIU0D 20URINSUT 910J3q ‘SII8se
§.1004 9yl jo areys s Auedwo)) ay) sjuasardar JIIAIA 243 Ispun p[oy $19Sse YT, "[00d 943 Jo durwIofiad pue sanI[Iqel] ‘SI9sse 3y] JO aIeys SII J0J SJUNOJIE
Auedwo)) ayy ‘ojep Sunrodar yoea 1y ‘seuIIqery/siasse s [ood ay) Jo uondodord e sereys Kuedwo)) ayn “(,[00d,,) dININ JO foquow Sunedionred e sy

"saoue[eq Isay)

Jo Anjew wWiisl-110ys ATOATIR[OI oY) 0) anp sanjea Ire] djewrrxoidde (JIAIA 9y Iopun play s1asse Surpnpour 10u) SI[qEAI03I 19YJ0 JO siunowe Sulkires oy,

LS1°LT0°09 08T°06£'¢ LL89€9°9S YLS8LO'89 09CT'9S'C PLETES S
L60°0€ = L60°0€ T1T°9€T°01 LO9TL ¥09°€91°01
EV8°LIYT - EV8°LIYT S9L'L66T - S9L'L66T
¥85°9vT'8 - A $69°666°8 s $69'666'8
990°C€8'3E = 990°C€8°8E TYILLY'9E = TYI‘LLY'9E
€LY PPIL 981°¥8< L8T090°L 10Z°00S°L £60°909 801°v68°9
$60°908°C $60°908°C - 095°L98°1 095°L98°1 -
nWa Wi i na na Wi
fejoL pung punyg [e1oL punyj punyj

S Jap[oyaaeys  ddueInsuy S J3p[oYaIRYS  3IdUBINSU]

€207 4114

S9[qBAT3231 I3YIQ
sjuawfedaid pue syisodag
susodap paxij [els1e[[0D

#((1A)€Z A10N) (. dININ,) 100d 9duBINSU] J0J0]N
ueisAe[e]q 2y} lapun pjay s1assy
PAILIOOE pUE anp SWOdU]
((®)1Z 210N) soruedwos paje[al WOl anp Junowy

SHTAVAIIDHA 4HHLO 'L

(e1sAefey ur pajerodioouy)

AQVHAAL (VISAVIVIA) IONVIASNI TVIANTD NYALSVH LVAYD

(d-6¥TT0T) STOLOOTOESGL



911

666'SH0O'T1 9GO0 V1T’ 11 0TTPELIT 681°CCI'T T1€0°C19°CT
(0L9°9tT°E) (0L9°9%T'€) (09%°919°G) E (09%°919°S) S]9sse Xe] palidla(
699°C6T V1 9ZL 09v' V1 089°05€°CT 681°TTIT 16V°8TC° 1T SanIiqel] xel pauaja(g
:smofjoj se Sunyasyo aeudoidde 1aye pajussai]

A A NWda A | WA
[ej0L, punyg [ejog, punyg punyg

S JIp[oydaeyS Joueansuf S Jap[oyaaeyS Idueansuy

1 41ré

"AILIOyINE X JUeS 3y} 0] SJB[SI SaXB] POLIDJIP Y} UdYM

pue SonI[Iqel] Xe] JUSLIND Jsurede S1osse Xe) JUaLMD JJO 13s 0] JYSU 9]qeaoiojud A[[eSo] e SI 910y} USYM JOSJJO 1B SINI[IqRI[ PUE SIISSE XE) PILIDJa(]

666°SY0°T 1 9GS0 VIT 11 0CTYEL9I 681°CCI'1 [E€0°TI9°SI 1e3£ [eURULJ JO PUd JY
L6TELS’] 9L0'LSL 1 L80TEY I 80S°9L1°] 6LS°SST awoour 3ATSUSYaIdwod Y10
YTIST9C1 LSY'SLY'ET PE1°9STY 8ELETT 96ETY IV (ST 910N) $s0[ 10 11301d JO JUIAWIIRIS
:ur pastu3ooay

Tty Trr'y) (LLY'$P0Y) 666°SPO 11 (LS0O'89T) 9S0' V1T 11 Ieaf [epueuy jo Suuuidaq Jy
Ak A | L 0 | A

[ejo], punyg 0], punyg pung

mnho%—o:o.u&:m ouﬁ&.-:m—: ma.—oﬁ—o-—o.ﬁwa—w ooﬁﬂ.:—mﬁh
¥207

XVL ayyqaddda s

(ersAejeA u1 pajeaodiodu))
AVHAAL (VISAVIVIN) HONVINSNI TVIANTD NUHLSVH LVIYD

(d-6YZT0T) STOLOOTOES6T



LT1

9TL09%'v1

£€9'865°6

80¢€°6¢L°C C8LT9T 1 < €707 PqUIRNR 1¢ IV
££9°8CG°6 ££9'866°6 - - - S19SSE XB) PalIaJop WO} I9JSuel],
9LO°L8LT r = 9LOLYL T = swoosut

aatsuayardwos 19y10
€E0°€RE‘l = 99%°89L L9SY19 - $80] 10 1301d JO JUSWAIEIS
U1 pastuSooy
P86 1EL'T - Tr8°0L6'T (868°8€T°1) - €207 Axenue( 11y
16%°8TT 1T €80°6L9'V1 9SS TLY Y 020+00°C TE]TL PTOT R_QUIII( 1€ IV
768 TL - B - 7E8°TL S19SSE XB) POLIoJop W0IJ I9JSueI],
6L.5°GST - - 6L5°6ST - JwoouT 9AISUaY21dwod 19Y10
PSE6EY9 0SH0TI‘S 8YTEEL 069°GR¢ = $s0[ 10 11yo1d Jo Juswdselg
:u1 pasiugooay
9TL 9% V1 €£9°86G°6 80€°6ELE G8LTI1‘I o $70¢ Axenuef 1y
pung duginsuy
J AN | Ak | |4k na NI
eloL, +SIseq juswdinba SJUSUI)SIAU] sanIIqer
Sunyunodoe pue Kyxadoxd 19B1U0D
u1 aduey) Uo uUeMo[[e dURINSUIY /
1ended Joueinsuy
PJeIdY

'SMO[[0] se axe 3umasyjo o) 1oud Jeak [eroueury ay) Sulnp s19sse pue SANI[IGRI] Xe) PILIIJIP JO SJUSWIAOW pue sjuauodwod ay ],
*SINIIqel] Xe) pALRR
(d.INOD) XVL AIyd4dd s

(eisejey ut pajeiodioduy)
QVHIAI (VISAVIVIA) ADNVINSNI TVIANTD NYALSVH LVAAD

(d-6¥220T) STOLOOTOES6T



(LS0°891) 988°C6 (€¥6°092)
988°T6 98876 =
122°98 - 122°98
GTL98 = STL'98
(688°cED) = (688°¢EP)
681°CCI'1 988‘erl €CEBLO
80S9LIT - 80S°9L1°T
8CLCIT 0L6°0S 89L°C79
(L50'891) 9886 (€¥6'097)
N A AL |
®0L, «SISeq SJUIUIISIAUT
Sununodde
ur Iguey)

8Ll

€207 1P2quIR( 1€ 1V
S]9SSE XB] PALIgJop WOIJ I9JSuel],

awooul
aArsuaya1dwos 1910
sso[ Jo 11j01d JO JuUsWIeIS
:UT PasTUZ099y
€707 Arenuef 13y

PT0T BqUIRRQ 1€ IV
Jwodut sAIsuaya1dwos 19410

$s07 10 11301d JO JUSWAILIS
:ur pastu3ooay

pT0T Arenuef 13y
puny s Japjoya.teys

(‘PAU0D) :SINIIqEI] X&) PILIDJIQ
(d.INOD) XVL qIyIdddd ‘s

(ersAe[eA ur pajexodiaosuy)

AVHYAL (VISAVIVIA) ADNVIASNI TVIANTD NYALSVH LVIAD

(d-6¥TT0T) STOLOOTOESGT



611

(0L9°9¥T'€)

= s (967°¢TP) (F10°CIT) (0S€°601) (010°T0S°C) €207 1_QUINR( 1€ IV
(£€9°855°6) (£€9°855°6) - Z : = + SOUI[IQeI] XB) PALIJIP 0] I9JSurlL],
YTr'T60TI €06°CETTT - 0c0'61 6S8°L6Y (286°91) vT9'6St ss0] 10 J5j01d Jo JuSWIANE)S
ur pastu3osay
(19¥°08L°S) (0LTYLS'T) - (91€THP) (€L8°60L) (89€°26) (r€9°196°7) paytodar Ajsnotaaxd sy
€707 Axenuef 131y
(09+°919°6) - (#28'SE€1TD)  (09T°659) - (€81°6S1)  ($61°999°7) $T0T 1qudd( 1€ IV
(ze8'TL) (z€8'TL) SONI[IQRI] X©) PILId)3p 0] J9JSuel],
(856°96T°C) = (reg'ser's)  (196°1€0) 98¥8T (zE8‘61) F81'%91) sso[ 10 Jijoud Jo juowrayelg
ut pasru3odroy
(0L9°9¥T°E) - - (96T°€TP) (r10°C12) (0S€‘601) (010°205°7) $70T Axenuef 13y
pun, dueInsuy
na A% | A | AR § nia A, | A
1ejoL, xSIseq SISSO[ xR, T1DH 10} sanIIqer| sasea] SUOISIAOL]
gununodoe UOISIAOI] Penuod
ur aguey) 3OURINSUIY
Jadueansuy

:§]J9SSe XB) palIdja(

(A.INOD) XVL qAaydddad s

(ersAefegA ur pajeaodioduy)
AQVHAAL (VISAVIVIA) HONVINASNI TVIANTD NYALSVH LVIAD

(d-6YZ201) STOLOOTOES6T



0c¢1

"UONIISO [BIOUBUL] JO JUQUISIE]S 2Y) Ul paziuS0oal sem
SONI[IQRI] XB) PALIdJOp JO UOI[[IW [ [ [TAR JO Jusunsnfpe awl-ouo e ‘g7z ATenuef | 9A1102)J9 siseq Sunjunodde ut a3ueyd ayl Ynp L[ SYIN
a1 yim 2oueprodoe ur paredord sjuswlels [eroueuy jo pedjsur suoneindwods xe) Suuredard Joj siseq 2yl se ( W9ISAS [eonsnels satuedwo)
soueinsuy,) sosodind A1oje[nSar 105 NG YA Po[Ij SWINJOI 9OUBINSUI Y} 9SO [[IM SIAINSUI BISAR[RIAl ‘€70T Alenuef | WOIf JO39 UM  «

€70T RqURNR( 1€ IV
(988°¢6) (988°26) SONI[IQRI] Xe) POLIaJop 01 I9JSuel],

T6'TS w6'cs $so[ 10 11j01d Jo JuswdIeIg
ur pasiu3oo9y
rr6°6¢ Pr6°6€ pautodar A[snoraaid sy

€707 A1enuef | 1y

PTOT 1PQURNR( 1€V
- - $s0] 10 11j01d JO JUIWARIS

ur pastugooay

- - $707 Axenuef 131y
puny s I9p[oydaeys
'k Nd
el «SIseq
sununodoe
ug dguey)

(*P.1U0)) :5JaSSE XB) PALIJI(
(d.INOD) XVL qayd4dda -8

(ersKefep) ur pajerodioduy)
AVHYAL (VISAVIVIA) ADNVAASNI TVIANAD NYALSVA LVIID

(d-6¥TT0T) STOLOOTOES6T



198301007025 (102249-P)

GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

8.

10.

DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D.)

The Company is part of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited ("OCBC") and its
subsidiaries, a multinational enterprise group that is within the scope of the Organisation for
Economic Co-operaton and Development ("OECD") Pillar Two model rules. Pillar Two
legislation was enacted in Malaysia, the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
and came into effect from 1 January 2025.

The Company applies the MFRS 112 Income Taxes exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

The Company does not have any exposure to Pillar Two legislation as at 31 December 2024.
Based on Company's assessment, the Company does not expect any material impact from
exposure to Pillar Two legislation in the financial year 2025.

SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
No. of Shares RM No. of Shares RM

Issued and paid-up:
Ordinary shares
At beginning and
end of financial year 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000

The shares issued by the Company do not have par value.
RETAINED EARNINGS

The Company may distribute dividends out of its retained earnings as at 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023 under the single-tier system.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

12. INSURANCE SERVICE RESULTS

An analysis of insurance revenue, insurance service expenses and net expenses from

reinsurance contracts held is included in the following tables.

Insurance Revenue

Insurance revenue from contracts measured under PAA

Total insurance revenue

Insurance Service Expenses
Incurred claims

Other incurred insurance service expenses
Allocation of deferred acquisition cost ("DAC")(Note 13)

Losses on onerous contracts
Total insurance service expenses

Net Expenses from Reinsurance Contracts Held

Allocation of reinsurance premiums

Recoveries of incurred claims and other insurance

service expenses

Recoveries of losses on onerous underlying contracts
Total net expenses from reinsurance contracts held

Total insurance service results
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2024 2023

RM RM

619,578,820 621,253,272

619,578,820 621,253,272
(200,552,443)  (176,908,474)

(61,541,139)
(140,655,950)
(40,088,592)

(58,678,897)
(135,889,500)
(54,174,153)

(442,838,124)

(425,651,024)

(191,900,943) (183,519,823)
8,369,859 24,560,062
1,644,656 6,973,325

(181,886,428) (151,986,436)

(5,145,732) 43,615,812
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

13. EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense (Note 13(a))
Director’s remuneration (Note 13(b))
Fees paid to auditors
Audit fees paid to Auditor of the Company
Non-audit fees paid to Auditor of the Company
Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 4(a))
Depreciation of right of use assets (Note 4(b))
Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 3)
Impairment of Intangible asset (Note 3)
Commissions and distribution expenses
Other expenses

Amounts attributed to insurance acquisition cash flows
incurred during the year
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows (Note 12)

Represented by
Insurance service expenses
Other operating expenses/(income)

(a) Employee benefits expense

Wages and salaries

Social security contributions

Contributions to defined contribution plan - EPF
Other benefits

Share based payments

Human Resource Development ("HRD") Levy

2024 2023

RM RM
70,449,031 62,599,002
1,073,200 1,045,273
721,344 1,269,186
54,422 47,200
1,483,530 1,787,142
2,929,894 3,107,780
5,893,717 6,845,165

- 811,516
86,690,811 72,727,465
37,991,860 39,017,782
207,287,809 189,257,511

(145,061,627)

(131,443,266)

140,655,950 135,889,500
202,882,132 193,703,745
202,197,089 194,568,397
685,043 (864,652)
202,882,132 193,703,745
2024 2023
RM RM
57,476,799 51,353,419
478,545 452,118
8,542,207 7,803,747
3,623,856 2,849,202
53,531 (67,804)
274,093 208,320
70,449,031 62,599,002

Included in employee benefits expense is CEO’s remuneration of RM1,510,882 (2023:

RM1,510,223) as detailed in Note 13(c).
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

13. EXPENSES (CONT’D.)
(b) Directors’ remuneration

The details of remuneration received by Directors during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
RM RM
Non-executive Directors’ fees 1,073,200 1,045,273
Name
Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip 224,180 137,190
Mr Koh Poh Tiong - 48,498
Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib 88,770 225,574
Mdm Tan Fong Sang 228,900 206,811
Ms Mimi Sze Ho - 202,600
Mr Lai Chin Tak 242,300 159,200
Mr Tong Hon Keong 203,583 65,400
Mr Gan Kim Khoon 46,800 -
Mr Ng Hon Soon 38,667 -
1,073,200 1,045,273

The other Directors in office during the year and as at the financial year did not receive any
remuneration from the Company.

The Directors’ fees are subject to the recommendation by the Board Nominations and

Remuneration Committee ("BNRC") to the Board for endorsement and approval by the
shareholder at the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company.

(¢) CEO’s remuneration

The details of remuneration received by the CEO during the year are as follows:

2024 2023

RM RM

Salaries and other remuneration 1,239,802 1,302,623
Bonus 246,480 183,000
Total remuneration excluding benefits in kind 1,486,282 1,485,623
Estimated money value of benefits in kind 24,600 24,600
Total remuneration (Note 13(a)) 1,510,882 1,510,223
Share-based payment (in units) 6,278 6.003
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

14. NET INVESTMENT AND INSURANCE FINANCIAL RESULT

The table below presents an analysis of net investment income and net insurance financial

result recognised in profit or loss and OCI in the period:

2024 2023
RM RM
Investment income
Interest income (Note 14 (1)) 25,754,725 25,302,018
Other investment income (Note 14 (ii)) 7,683,783 12,608,111
Changes in allowance for ECL on investment
assets (Note 14 (iii)) 1,108,470 (89,267)
Amounts recognised at OCI (Note 14 (iv)) 5,967,028 7,805,404
Total investment income 40,514,006 45,626,266
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued
Interest accreted to insurance contracts using current
financial assumptions (35,054,635) (34,526,787)
Effect of changes in interest rates and other
financial assumptions (25,092) (1,228,053)

Total finance expenses from insurance contracts issued

(35,079.,727)

(35,754,840)

Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (35,079,727) (35,754,840)
(35,079,727) (35,754,840)
Finance income from reinsurance contracts held
Interest accreted to reinsurance contracts using current
financial assumptions 20,169,463 20,634,798
Effect of changes in interest rates and other
financial assumptions 25,972 893,572
Changes in non-performance risk of reinsurer 1,399,389 (2,607,346)
Total finance income from reinsurance contracts held 21,594,824 18,921,024
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 21,594,824 18,921,024
21,594,824 18,921,024
Total net investment and insurance financial result
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 21,062,075 20,987,046
Amounts recognised in OCI 5,967,028 7,805,404
27,029,103 28,792,450
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

14. NET INVESTMENT AND INSURANCE FINANCIAL RESULT (CONT’D.)

(i) Interest income
Financial assets measured at FVOCI
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Total interest income

(ii) Other investment income
Dividend income
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI
- Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Realised (losses)/gains
- Net (losses)/gains on sale of financial asset
measured at FVOCI
- Net gains on sale of financial asset measured at FVTPL
- Net gains on sale of PPE
Fair value gains
- Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Realised losses on exchange differences
Unrealised losses on exchange differences
Investment expenses
Other income
Total other investment income

(iii) Changes in allowance for ECL on investment assets

(iv) Fair value gains
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI

Total amounts recognised in the profit or loss

Amounts recognised in OCI
Net investment income
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2024 2023
RM RM
22,758,956 23,946,982
2,355,377 869,396
640,392 485,640
25,754,725 25,302,018
2,885,201 2,971,736
4,211,826 3,677,582
(888,749) 714,467
2,386 201,027
- 107
797,612 3,994,553
(5,335) (678)
(25,311) (4,504)
(1,360,998) (1,388,943)
2,067,151 2,442,764
7,683,783 12,608,111
1,108,470 (89,267)
5,967,028 7,805,404
34,546,978 37,820,862
5,967,028 7,805,404
40,514,006 45,626,266
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

15. TAXATION

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 31

December 2023 are:

Current income tax:
Malaysian income tax
(Overprovision)/Underprovision of income tax

Deferred tax (Note 8):
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary
differences
(Overprovision)/Underprovision in prior financial year

Income tax expense recognised in the
Profit & Loss Statements

2024 2023

RM RM
364,791 1,112,773
(88,210) 102,894
276,581 1,215,667
4,605,829 13,545,686
(349,695) 69,438
4,256,134 13,615,124
4,532,715 14,830,791

Income tax is based on the statutory tax rate of 24% (2023: 24%) of the estimated assessable

profit for the financial year.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory
income tax rate to income tax expenses at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24%
(2023: 24%)

Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
(Overprovision)/Underprovision of

prior year income tax
(Overprovision)/Underprovision of

deferred tax in prior financial year
Tax expense for the financial year
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2024 2023
RM RM
15,231,300 65,467,510
3,655,512 15,712,202
(2,042,171) (1,832,103)
3,357,279 778,360
(88,210) 102,894
(349,695) 69,438
4,532,715 14,830,791
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
financial year.

2024 2023

RM RM

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holder 10,698,585 50,636,719
Number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 100,000,000 100,000,000
Basic earnings per share (sen) 10.70 50.64

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at the reporting date. There have been no
other transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of
completion of the financial statements.

17. DIVIDENDS

Recognised during the financial year:

2024 2023
RM RM

Final single tier dividend of RM0.36 per ordinary share
on 100,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 27 April 2023 - 36,000,000

Final single tier dividend of RMO0.506 per ordinary share
on 100,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 29 April 2024 50,600,000 -

18. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2024 2023
Note RM RM
Profit before taxation 15,231,300 65,467,510
Investment income (33,533,012) (32,788,290)
Realised losses/(gains) on financial assets at
FVOCI and FVTPL 14 886,363 (915,494)
Fair value gains recorded in
statement of profit or loss (771,080) (3,990,105)
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
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18. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONT’D.)

2023
RM

(30,495,491)
(158,104,247)

146,341,754
12,000,000

(51,152)

1,787,142
3,107,780
6,845,165

811,516

(107)
89,267

2,607,346
301
(191,370)
554,342
836,954

56,208,536

9,798,485
(194,048)
(31,320,324)

43,000,411
(43,585,360)

2024
Note RM
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL (42,584,484)
Purchases of financial assets at FVOCI (139,454,020)
Proceeds from maturities/disposals of
financial assets at FVOCI 195,269,380
Proceeds from maturities/disposals of
financial assets at FVTPL 15,269,795
Increase in financial assets
at amortised cost (365,140)
Non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 4(a) 1,483,530
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4(b) 2,929,894
Amortisation on intangible assets 3 5,893,717
Impairment on intangible assets 3 -
Gains on disposal of property
and equipment 14 -
Changes in allowance for ECL on
investment assets 14 (1,108,470)
Change in non performance risk of
reinsurer 14 (1,399,389)
Property and equipment written off -
Release provision on reinstatement cost (102,273)
Finance cost 641,014
Net amortisation of discounts 681,260
Changes in working capital:
Reinsurance contract assets 79,342,816
Insurance contract assets (1,781,689)
Other receivables (8,195,690)
Insurance contract liabilities (32,076,728)
Reinsurance contract liabilities (43,653,701)
Other payables 5,303,312
Cash generated from operating activities 17.906,705
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
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18.

19.

20.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONT’D.)
The Company classifies the cash flows from the acquisition and disposal of financial assets
as operating cash flows, as the purchases are funded from cash flows associated with the

origination of insurance contracts, net of the cash flows for payments of claims incurred for
insurance contracts, which are classified under operating activities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments of the Company as at the financial year-end are as follows:

2024 2023
RM RM
Capital expenditure:
Approved and contracted for:
Property and equipment 3,521,763 2,189,957

Approved but not contracted for:
Property and equipment 6,552,471 11,431,999
10,074,234 13,621,956

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Company as lessee
The Company has entered into lease agreements for rental of equipment and office premises.

The Company has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for short term and
low-value leases, see Note 4 for further information.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating lease contracted for as at the
reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Future minimum rental payments:

2024 2023
RM RM
Rental of equipment:
Not later than 1 year 20,622 -
Total operating lease 20,622 -
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21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

Related party transactions and balances

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company had the following transactions and balances with related parties during and at

the end of the financial year:

Significant transactions with related parties during the year:

Expense/(Income):

Premium paid (i)
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad

Premium (received)/refund (i)

- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad

- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad

- OCBC Properties (M) Sdn Bhd

- BOS Wealth Management Malaysia Berhad

- E2 Power Sdn Bhd

- Pac Lease Berhad

- Great Eastern Capital (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

- Axiata Digital Capital Sdn Bhd

- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
- Apigate Sdn Bhd

- Boost Holdings Sdn Bhd

- Key Management Personnel

Property rentals paid (ii)
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad

Service charges paid/(received) (iii)

- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Singapore) Co Ltd
- Great Eastern General Insurance Limited

Bank charges and custodian fees paid (iii)
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
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2024
RM

1,763,307

(1,699,634)
(3,766,494)
(5,613)
(3,147)
(695,651)

8
(193,000)

(1,085)
(56,818)
(73,152)

3,118,700

8,471,440
2,861,477
(237,795)

2,410,548

2023

1,439,923

(2,004,721)
(5,660,270)
(78,290)
(11,437)
(7,762)
(626,548)
(8,792)
(193,000)
(16,803)
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2,198
(99,996)
(68,788)

3,117,116

8,144,434
1,698,129
(19,437)

2,417,729
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21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)
(a) Related party transactions and balances (cont’d.)

Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (cont’d.)

2024 2023
RM RM

Expense/(Income): (cont’d.)
Interest received (iv)
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad (47,945) (249,192)
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad (11,670) (25,973)
Commission fees paid
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad 2,284,758 2,451,800
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad 853 853
- Pac Lease Berhad 4,110,334 4,138,347
- Axiata Digital Capital Sdn Bhd 145,561 141,396
Employee Share Purchase Plan
- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited 160,536 (183,169)
Deferred Share Plan
- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (107,005) 115,366
Disposal of investments to
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad - (3,508,775)
Investment in collective investment scheme
- Aham Wholesale Income Fund 785,768 1,217,803
- Aminstitutional Income Bond Fund SRI 3,062,759 12,039,104
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21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)
(a) Related party transactions and balances (cont’d.)

Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (cont’d.)

2024 2023
RM RM
Expense/(Income): (cont’d.)
Dividend received from collective investment scheme
- Aham Wholesale Income Fund (785,768) (1,217,803)
- Aminstitutional Income Bond Fund SRI (3,397,570) (1,916,279)
Dividend paid
- Overseas Assurance Corporation (Holdings) Berhad 50,600,000 36,000,000
Balances with related parties at year-end:
Cash and bank balances
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad 15,281,787 15,049,170
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad 81,222 35,236
Fixed deposits and structured deposits
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad - 5,995,044
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad - 10,000,000
Amount due to subsidiaries of penultimate
holding company (Note 11):
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Singapore) Co Ltd 2,858,215 3,659,960
- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited 61,619 78,342
- PT Great Eastern General Insurance Indonesia - 192,213
2,919,834 3,930,515
Amount due from subsidiaries of penultimate
holding company (Note 7):
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad (1,824,146) (2,790,311)
- Great Eastern General Insurance Limited (43,414) (15,783)
(1,867,560) (2,806,094)
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21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)
(a) Related party transactions and balances (cont’d.)
Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (cont’d.)

The related companies disclosed above are companies within the Oversea-Chinese
Banking Corporation Group. Notes on transactions with related parties:

(i) The sale and purchase of insurance policies to/from related companies are made
according to normal market prices and at terms and conditions no more favourable
than those to other customers and employees.

(ii) Rental of property from related parties are made according to normal market prices,
terms and conditions.

(iii) Payment of banking and trading service charges to related parties are made
according to normal market prices.

(iv) The interest income arose mainly from investment in fixed deposits and structured
deposits which are made according to prevailing market rates, terms and conditions.

(v) General terms for balances with related companies are disclosed in Note 11.

(vi) Payment of Group function costs based on allocation rates governed by corporate
service agreement and in line with Malaysian Transfer Pricing Guidelines and
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECD") Transfer
Pricing Guidelines. Group function services are derived from immediate parent
company in the Republic of Singapore.
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21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)
(a) Related party transactions and balances (cont’d.)
Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (cont’d.)
(vi) (cont’d.)

The table below shows the breakdown by type of services received and geographical
location for inter company charges:

Geographical Type of Services 2024 2023
Location RM RM
Singapore Group service charges for services

rendered, which include those in
respect of finance, legal, actuarial,
support, human resources,
operations, investment
management, IT, internal audit
and risk management services. 2,861,477 1,698,129

2,861,477 1,698,129

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The key management
personnel of the Company includes the Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Senior
Management Team.

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

2024 2023
RM RM
Short-term employee benefits 5,458,619 4,473,725
Post-employment benefits 795,088 641,476
Share based payment 227,285 337,563
6,480,992 5,452,764

Non Executive Directors’ remuneration
(Note 13(b)) 1,073,200 1,045,273
7,554,192 6,498,037
Share-based payment (in units) 13,685 8,966
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198301007025 (102249-P)

GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

Governance Framework

Managing risk is an integral part of the Company’s core business. As stated in the Enterprise
Risk Management ("ERM") Framework, the Company shall:

e  Operate within parameters and limits that have been set based on the risk appetite approved
by the Board; and
e Pursue appropriate risk-adjusted returns.

Risk Management Department spearheads the development and implementation of the ERM
Framework for the Company.

The Board provides oversight in ensuring that the activities of the Company are consistent with
the strategic intent, risk appetite, operating environment, effective internal controls, capital
sufficiency and regulatory requirements. The Board may delegate this oversight responsibility to
the Board Risk Management Committee (“BRMC”) and Senior Management for the execution
of these initiatives. Detailed risk management and oversight activities are undertaken by the
following Management Committees comprising the Chief Executive Officer and key Senior
Management Executives:

e Senior Management Team ("SMT")

e Asset Liability Committee ("ALC")

e Product Development Committee ("PDC")
e IT Steering Committee ("ITSC")

e Financial Crime Committee ("FCC")

The SMT is responsible for providing leadership and direction with regards to all major
operational and business issues and sustainability performance of the Company. The SMT
ensures that the Company is operating within parameters and limits set out in the risk appetite
approved by the Board; and in complance with the Company’s frameworks, policies and
regulatory requirements.

The ALC is responsible for Statement of Financial Position Management, involving interactions
between assets and liabilities (including Asset-Liability Management, Liquidity Management,
and Investment Management). Specifically, the ALC reviews and formulates technical
frameworks, policies and methodologies relating to financial position management.

The PDC oversees the product development and launch process. In addition, the PDC regularly

reviews and monitors the performance of new and existing products, ensuring the business
operates within the risk appetite in delivering annual business targets.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Governance Framework (cont’d.)

The ITSC is responsible for assisting SMT in approving IT related issues and initiatives,
providing the overall strategic direction on technology in alignment to the Company’s strategy
and manage technology related risk.

The FCC provides an independent oversight of fraud investigation and anti-money
laundering/counter financing of terrorism ("AML/CFT") review, and ensures that investigations
and reviews are conducted in a manner that is fair, consistent and transparent.

Regulatory Framework

As set out in its Compliance Risk Management Framework, the Company operates its business
on a sound and responsible basis, which entails compliance with the applicable laws, regulations,
rules and standards.

Insurers are regulated by the Financial Services Act 2013 (“FSA”) which came into force on 30
June 2013, and other relevant regulations issued by regulators from time to time. The Board
exercises oversight of compliance with the applicable laws, regulations, rules and standards to
safeguard the interests of policyholders and shareholders.

Capital Management

The Company’s capital management policy is to create shareholders’ value, deliver sustainable
returns to the shareholder, maintain a strong capital position with sufficient buffer to meet
obligations to policyholders and regulatory requirements and to make strategic investments for
business growth. The Company has had no significant changes in the policies and processes
relating to its capital structure during the year.

Under the Risk-Based Capital ("RBC") Framework, the insurer has to maintain a capital
adequacy level that is commensurate with its risk profiles. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the
Company remained well at above the minimum capital requirement of 130% under the RBC
Framework regulated by BNM.

The Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP") Framework came into effect on 1
September 2012. Under this Framework, the Company has to ensure adequate capital to meet its
capital requirements on an ongoing basis. The key elements supporting the Framework include
Board and Senior Management oversight, comprehensive risk assessment, individual target
capital level and stress testing, sound capital management as well as ongoing monitoring,
reporting and review of capital position.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Capital Management (cont’d.)

Capital management and contingency policies have been further developed and refined under the
Framework to outline the approaches and principles under which the Company’s capital will be
monitored and managed, as well as the corrective actions to be implemented at various critical
capital levels. In addition, a risk appetite statement has been established to outline the
Company’s capacity to take on risks to achieve its business objectives while managing the
expectations of key stakeholders.

The following sections provide details regarding the exposure to the key risks faced by the
Company and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks. There has
been no major change to the Company’s exposure to these key risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures these risks.

Insurance Risk

The principal activity of the Company is underwriting of all classes of general insurance
business.

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that these risks are well diversified
in terms of type of risk and level of insurance exposure. This is largely achieved through
diversification of insurance contracts across industry sectors and geography. There is also regular
review of the actual claims experience, as well as detailed claims handling procedures.
Underwriting limits are also set in place to enforce appropriate risk acceptance criteria.

Insurance risk comprises both actuarial and underwriting risks resulting from the pricing and
acceptance of insurance contracts. Should the actual claims experience be worse than the
assumptions used in pricing the products and establishing the provisions and liabilities for
claims, there may be potential shortfalls in provision for future claims and expenses.
Assumptions that may cause insurance risks to be underestimated include assumptions on policy
claims frequency and policy claims severity.

The Company works closely with reinsurers to put in place a prudent underwriting policy to
ensure appropriate risk classification and premium levels. The Company’s reinsurance
management strategy and policy are reviewed annually by the SMT, BRMC, and the Board as
appropriate. Reinsurance structures are set based on the type of risk. Catastrophe reinsurance is
procured to limit catastrophic losses.

Only foreign reinsurers meeting a minimum credit rating of Standard & Poor’s "A-", or its

equivalent, or legally set up local reinsurers are considered. The Company limits its risk to any
one reinsurer by ceding different risks to different reinsurers or to a panel of reinsurers.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurance Risk (cont’d.)

The SMT reviews the claims trends, experience and persistency, and ensure that the policies,
guidelines and limits put in place to manage these risks remain adequate and appropriate.

Stress Testing (“ST”) is performed in accordance with BNM requirements. The purpose of the
ST is to test the solvency of the general insurance funds under the various scenarios (i.e. U.S.
Federal Reserve "Higher for Longer" Strategy Backfires, Country-wide Cyberattacks, and
Unusual Weather Phenomena) according to regulatory guidelines on stress testing, simulating
drastic changes in major parameters such as new business volume, market volatilities,
reinsurance recoveries and loss ratios.

Risks under general insurance policies usually cover a twelve-month duration. The risk inherent
in general insurance contracts is reflected in the insurance contract liabilities which include the
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage and Liabilities for Incurred Claim, as set out under Note 6 of
the financial statements.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurance Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(A1): The table below sets out the distribution of the various categories of the general
insurance risk for insurance contract liabilities as at the financial position date:

Gross Insurance Reinsurance
Contract Contract
liabilities Assets Net
RM RM RM
2024
Fire 149,645,160 (90,707,742) 58,937,418
Motor 215,322,552 (9,205,133) 206,117,419
Marine, Aviation
and Transit 30,531,835 (20,793,162) 9,738,673
Workmen’s
Compensation 1,231,132 (6,242) 1,224,890
Personal Accident
and Health 90,933,504 (11,690,188) 79,243,316
Others 468,165,393 (406,955,136) 61,210,257
955,829,576  (539,357,603) 416,471,973
2023
Fire 169,410,276  (175,341,355) (5,931,079)
Motor 175,239,460 2,563,251) 172,676,209
Marine, Aviation
and Transit 40,672,426 54,347 40,726,773
Workmen’s
Compensation 6,750,073 (120,246) 6,629,827
Personal Accident
and Health 124,342,535 (28,218,662) 96,123,873
Others 473,273,223 (367,458,162) 105,815,061
989,687,993 (573,647,329) 416,040,664
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurance Risk (cont’d.)

The general insurance contract liabilities are determined based on claims experience,
knowledge of existing events, terms and conditions of the relevant policies and interpretation
of circumstances. Of particular relevance is past experience with similar cases, trends in
historical claims, legislative changes, judicial decisions, economic conditions and claims
handling procedures. The estimates of the general insurance contract liabilities are therefore
sensitive to various factors. The actual liabilities for remaining coverage and incurred claim
will not develop exactly as projected and may vary from initial estimates.

Insurance risk of general insurance contracts is mitigated by emphasising diversification
across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The variability of risks is improved by careful
selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that
risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely
achieved through diversification across industry sectors and geography. Furthermore, strict
claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims
handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place
to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of
actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Company.

The Company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain

contracts as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to
catastrophic events, e.g. flood damages.
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198301007025 (102249-P)

GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks

Market risk arises when the market values of assets and liabilities are adversely affected by changes in
financial markets. Changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices can impact present and
future investment earnings of the insurance operations as well as shareholder’s equity.

The Company is exposed to market risk in the Shareholder’s Fund and the General Insurance Fund. The
ALC actively manages market risk through setting and monitoring of the investment policy, asset allocation,
portfolio construction, risk measurement methodologies, as well as approving hedging and alternative risk
transfer strategies. Investment limits are monitored at various levels to ensure that all investment activities
are conducted within the Company’s risk appetite and in line with the Company’s risk management
principles and philosophies. Compliance with established limits forms an integral part of the risk governance
and financial reporting framework. The approach adopted by the Company in managing the various types of
risk, including interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, equity price risk, credit spread risk, liquidity risk,
credit risk, alternative investment risk and concentration risk, is briefly described as follows:

(i) Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through investments in fixed income instruments. Since
the Shareholder’s Fund and General Insurance Fund have exposure to investments in fixed income
instruments, it will incur an economic loss when interest rates rise.

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk
Investments denominated in foreign currencies are limited to 10% of individual funds regardless of
country, subject to the foreign investments being in jurisdictions with sovereign ratings at least

equivalent to that of Malaysia, as prescribed by the regulator. In addition, net foreign currency
exposure at the Company-level is limited to 10% of the total invested assets. (Refer to Table 23(B)).
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(B): The table below shows the foreign exchange position of the entity’s financial assets
and liabilities by major currencies:
2024 RM USD EUR Total
Financial and Insurance
Related Assets
Financial assets at
Amortised Cost:
Loans 1,044,964 - - 1,044,964
Financial assets at FVOCT:
Malaysian government
securities 127,550,913 - - 127,550,913
Debt securities 394,467,490 - - 394,467,490
Equity securities 51,242,121 - 51,242,121
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Debt securities 52,926,797 - - 52,926,797
Equity securities 15,911,940 1,397,748 47,636 17,357,324
Collective investment
schemes 105,436,362 - - 105,436,362
Other receivables 68,078,574 - - 68,078,574
Cash and bank balances 18,575,366 192,574 - 18,767,940
Reinsurance contract
assets 569,055,705 - - 569,055,705
Insurance contract
assets 5,961,152 - - 5.961,152
1,410,251,384 1,590,322 47,636 1,411,889,342

Financial and Insurance

Related Liabilities
Other payables 69,916,432 - - 69,916,432
Insurance contract
liabilities 961,790,728 - - 961,790,728
Reinsurance contract
liabilities 29,698,102 - - 29,698,102
1,061,405,262 - - 1,061,405,262
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(ii) Foreign Currency Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(B): The table below shows the foreign exchange position of the entity’s financial assets
and liabilities by major currencies: (cont’d.)

2023 RM USD EUR Total
Financial and Insurance
Related Assets
Financial assets at

Amortised Cost:

Loans 679,824 - - 679,824
Financial assets at FVOCI:
Malaysian government

securities 134,391,845 - - 134,391,845
Debt securities 442,347,019 - - 442,347,019
Equity securities 48,159,112 B - 48,159,112

Financial assets at FVTPL:
Debt securities 36,535,523 - - 36,535,523
Equity securities 9,425,642 435,676 - 9,861,318
Collective investment
schemes 101,235,487 - - 101,235,487
Other receivables 60,027,157 - - 60,027,157
Cash and bank balances 43,108,541 2,245 - 43,110,786
Reinsurance contract
assets 646,999,132 - - 646,999,132
Insurance contract
assets 4,179,463 - - 4,179,463
1,527,088,745 437,921 - 1,527,526,666
Financial and Insurance
Related Liabilities
Other payables 64,607,457 - ~ 64,607,457
Insurance contract
liabilities 993,867,456 - - 993,867,456
Reinsurance contract
liabilities 73,351,803 - - 73,351,803

1,131,826,716 - 1,131,826,716
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

(iii) Equity Price Risk

(iv)

(v)

Exposure to equity price risk exists in investment assets through equity, where the Company bears the
volatility in returns and investment performance risk.

A robust monitoring process is in place to manage equity risk by having appropriate risk management
strategies to limit the downside risk at certain pre-determined levels. Limits are set for single security
holdings as a percentage of equity holdings.

Credit Spread Risk

Exposure to credit spread risk exists in the Company’s investments in corporate bonds. Credit spread
is the difference between the corporate yields against the risk-free rate of similar tenure. When spreads
widen, it generally implies that the market is factoring a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the
bonds. A widening in credit spreads will generally result in a fall in the value of the Company’s bond
portfolio.

Alternative Investment Risk

The Company is exposed to alternative investment risk through investments in private equities.
Transactions for private equity may be subject to review by the BRMC and approval by the Board in
accordance with the Authority Grid. The relevant Management Committees assist in deliberating
matters relating to private equity, including risk management, performance, and operations
management.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vi) Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risks arise when a Company is unable to meet the cash flow needs of its financial liabilities,
or if the assets backing the liabilities cannot be sold quickly enough to meet its financial obigations
without incurring significant losses. For an insurance company, the greatest liquidity needs typically
arise from its insurance liabilities. Demands for funds can usually be met through ongoing normal
operations, premiums received, sale of assets or borrowings. Unexpected demands for liquidity may be
triggered by mass surrender of insurance policies due to negative publicity, deterioration of the
economy, reports of problems in other companies in the same or similar lines of business,
unanticipated policy claims, or other unexpected cash demands from policyholders.

Expected liquidity demands are managed through a combination of treasury, investment and asset-
liability management practices, which are monitored on an ongoing basis. Actual and projected cash
inflows and outflows are monitored and a reasonable amount of assets are kept in liquid instruments at
all times.

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk from its insurance contract liabilities when actual claims

development deviates from estimated liabilities for incurred claim. This is mitigated to some extent
through the Company’s periodic liability adequacy tests.
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198301007025 (102249-P)

GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

(vi)

Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

Included in other receivables and other payables is the Company’s share in the assets
and liabilities held under MMIP as disclosed in Note 7 and Note 11. The Company’s
share of insurance contract liabilities from MMIP are disclosed in Note 6 of the
financial statements. These balances have not been offset in the financial statements of
the Company as it is the view of the Directors and Management that no legal right of set-
off exists. The assets have been contributed in line with the Company’s obligations
under the Collective Agreement signed on 16 November 1992 and the insurance
contract liabilities represent the Company’s share of the Pool’s insurance contract
liabilities arising from insurance contracts underwritten in respect of third party
policyholders collectively, under the name of MMIP. Presented below is the Company’s
net position of its share in the net asset held under MMIP as at year end:

2024 2023
RM RM
Assets/(Liabilities):
Assets:

- Accumulated net cash contributions to MMIP 2,449,491 5,849,491

- Other assets 34,027,651 32,982,575
Total Assets (Note 7) 36,477,142 38,832,066
Liabilities:

- Other payables and provisions (122,229) (321,331)
Total Liabilities (Note 11) (122,229) (321,331)
Net assets held under MMIP 36,354,913 38,510,735
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 6)

- Liabilities for incurred claim (9,552,754) (12,541,069)

- Liabilities for remaining coverage (777,236) (709,962)

- Assets for incurred claim 129,298 -

- Assets for remaining coverage (2,032) -

(10,202,724) (13,251,031)
Net position 26,152,189 25,259,704
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vi) Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

Table 23(C3): The following table shows the current and non current classification of
assets and liabilities:

Non-
Current* current®* Total
RM RM RM
2024
Assets
Intangible assets - 51,436,412 51,436,412
Property and equipment:
Owned - 6,995,050 6,995,050
Right-of-use
assets - 12,179,887 12,179,887
Investments:
Amortised cost 11,104 1,033,860 1,044,964
FVOCI 90,698,529 482,561,995 573,260,524
FVTPL - 175,720,483 175,720,483
Insurance contract
assets 8,842,577 (2,881,425) 5,961,152
Reinsurance contract
receivables 351,140,569 217,915,136 569,055,705
Other receivables 31,601,432 36,477,142 68,078,574
Tax recoverable 31,194,013 - 31,194,013
Cash and bank
balances 18,767,940 - 18,767,940
Total assets 532,256,164 981,438,540 1,513,694,704
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vi) Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

Table 23(C3): The following table shows the current and non current classification of
assets and liabilities: (cont’d.)

Non-
Current* current*®* Total
RM RM RM
2024
Liabilities
Insurance contract
liabilities 584,904,730 376,885,998 961,790,728
Reinsurance contract
liabilities 35,073,249 (5,375,147) 29,698,102
Lease liabilities 2,713,931 9,619,193 12,333,124
Other payables 69,304,516 611,916 69,916,432
Deferred tax
liabilities - 16,734,220 16,734,220
Total liabilities 691,996,426 398,476,180 1,090,472,606
* Expected utilisation or settlement within 12 months from the financial
position date.
o Included in non-current FVOCI financial assets are quoted equity
securities of RM 51,242,121 with no maturity date.
dk Included in non-current FVTPL financial assets are collective

investment schemes RM 105,436,362 with no maturity date.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

(vi)

Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

assets and liabilities: (cont’d.)

2023
Assets
Intangible assets

Property and equipment:

Owned
Right-of-use
assets
Investments:
Amortised cost
FVOCI
FVTPL
Insurance contract
assets
Reinsurance contract
assets
Other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank
balances
Total assets

Table 23(C3): The following table shows the current and non current classification of

Non-
Current* current®* Total
RM RM RM
- 53,848,112 53,848,112
- 2,581,966 2,581,966
- 14,294,313 14,294,313
13,562 666,262 679,824
51,690,629 573,207,347 624,897,976
4,773 147,627,555 147,632,328
33,732,333 (29,552,870) 4,179,463
422 384,737 224,614,395 646,999,132
21,195,091 38,832,066 60,027,157
18,464,773 = 18,464,773
43,110,786 - 43,110,786
590,596,684  1,026,119,146 1,616,715,830
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vi) Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

Table 23(C3): The following table shows the current and non current classification of
assets and liabilities: (cont’d.)

Non-
Current* current** Total
RM RM RM
2023
Liabilities
Insurance contract
liabilities 556,750,634 437,116,822 993,867,456
Reinsurance contract
liabilities 65,254,916 8,096,887 73,351,803
Lease liabilities 3,241,839 11,003,742 14,245,581
Other payables 63,781,767 825,690 64,607,457
Deferred tax
liabilities - 11,045,999 11,045,999
Total liabilities 689,029,156 468,089,140 1,157,118,296
& Expected utilisation or settlement within 12 months from the financial
position date.
ek Included in non-current FVOCI financial assets are quoted equity
securities of RM48,159,112 with no maturity date.
dk Included in non-current FVTPL financial assets are collective

investment schemes RM 101,235,487 with no maturity date.
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial contract will cause financial loss to the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Company is exposed to credit risk
mainly through (i) investment in cash, deposits and bonds, (ii) staff lending activities,
(iii) exposure to counterparty’s credit in reinsurance contracts and (iv) non-payment of
premiums. For investment in bonds, financial loss may materialise as a result of the
widening credit spread or downgrade of credit rating. For all four types of exposures,
financial loss may materialise as a result of credit default by the borrower or
counterparty.

The task of evaluating and monitoring credit risk arising from financial instruments is
undertaken by the ALC. The Company has internal limits by issuer and counterparty
according to their investment credit rating, which are actively monitored to manage the
credit and concentration risk, and are being reviewed on a regular basis. The
creditworthiness of reinsurers, issuers and banks is assessed on an annual basis by
reviewing their financial strength through published credit ratings and other publicly
available financial information.

Treaty reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have good rating while facultative
reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have been carefully selected via internal

guidelines to minimise the credit risk.

Credit risk in respect of non-payment of premiums past the grace period is being
actively monitored and guided by strict credit control guideline.
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

For staff lending, the amount and type of collateral required depends on the assessment
of the credit risk of the counterparty. Credit risk is mitigated by entering into collateral
agreements and collaterals are revalued on a periodic basis. The Company monitors the
market value of the collateral, requests additional collateral when needed and performs
an impairment valuation, whenever applicable. The fair value of collateral, held by the
Company as a lender, for which it is entitled to sell or pledge in the event of default is as

follows:
Carrying
Amount of Fair Value
Type of Collateral Loans of Collateral
RM RM
2024
Secured loans
- Vehicle loans Vehicle 1,044,964 1,044,964
2023
Secured loans
- Vehicle loans Vehicle 679,824 679,824

Transactions are conducted under terms and conditions that are usual and customary to
standard securities borrowing and lending activities.
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(C4): The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components
of the Statement of Financial Position and items such as future commitments by

funds.

Insurance Shareholder’s
Fund Fund Total
RM RM RM
2024
Financial assets at

amortised cost:

Loans 1,044,964 B 1,044,964
Financial assets at FVOCI:

Malaysian government

securities 123,921,573 3,629,340 127,550,913

Debt securities 361,819,134 32,648,356 394,467,490
Financial assets at FVTPL:

Debt securities 47,931,655 4,995,142 52,926,797
Insurance contract assets 5,961,152 - 5,961,152
Reinsurance contract assets 569,055,705 - 569,055,705
Other receivables 65,532,314 2,546,260 68,078,574
Cash and bank balances 18,227,166 540,774 18,767,940

1,193,493,663 44,359,872  1,237,853,535
2023
Financial assets at
amortised cost:
Loans 679,824 - 679,824
Financial assets at FVOCI:
Malaysian government
securities 130,951,351 3,440,494 134,391,845

Debt securities 410,471,721 31,875,298 442,347,019
Financial assets at FVTPL:

Debt securities 32,699,571 3,835,952 36,535,523
Insurance contract assets 4,179,463 - 4,179,463
Reinsurance contract assets 646,999,132 = 646,999,132
Other receivables 56,636,877 3,390,280 60,027,157
Cash and bank balances 42,646,160 464,626 43,110,786

1,325,264,099 43,006,650 1,368,270,749
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(C5): The following table sets out information about the credit quality of loans
and debt securities measured at amortised cost and debt securities at
FVOCI. The maximum exposure is shown gross basis, before the effect of
mitigation through the use of master netting or collateral agreements and
the use of credit derivatives. For loan commitments, the amounts in the
table represent the amounts committed.

For explanation of the terms: "12-month ECL", "lifetime ECL" and "credit-
impaired", refer to Note 2.2(e)(ii).

2024
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
12-month  neot credit credit
ECL  impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2)  (Stage 3) Total
RM RM RM RM
Loans at amortised cost
Government guaranteed
and low risk
bonds - - - -
Not rated 1,044,964 - - 1,044,964
1,044,964 - - 1,044,964
Loss allowance - B - -
Carrying
amount 1,044,964 - - 1,044,964
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(C5): (cont’d.)

2024
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
12-month  not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2)  (Stage 3) Total
RM RM RM RM

Debt securities at FVOCI
Government guaranteed
and low risk

bonds 197,550,663 - - 197,550,663

Investment grade
(BBB to AAA) 324,467,740 - - 324,467,740
Not rated - - - -
522,018,403 - - 522,018,403
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(C5): The following table sets out information about the credit quality of loans
and debt securities measured at amortised cost and debt securities at
FVOCIL The maximum exposure is shown gross basis, before the effect of
mitigation through the use of master netting or collateral agreements and
the use of credit derivatives. For loan commitments, the amounts in the
table represent the amounts committed. (cont’d.)

For explanation of the terms: "12-month ECL", "lifetime ECL" and "credit-
impaired", refer to Note 2.2(e)(ii).

2023
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
12-month  not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2)  (Stage 3) Total
RM RM RM RM
Loans at amortised cost
Government guaranteed
and low risk
bonds - - - -
Not rated 679,824 - - 679,824
679,824 - - 679,824
Loss allowance . - - -
Carrying
amount 679,824 - - 679,824
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Table 23(C5): (cont’d.)

2023
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
12-month  not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2)  (Stage 3) Total
RM RM RM RM

Debt securities at FVOCI
Government guaranteed
and low risk

bonds 239,106,855 - - 239,106,855

Investment grade
(BBB to AAA) 335,188,258 2,019,741 - 337,207,999
Not rated - 424,010 - 424,010
574,295,113 2,443,751 - 576,738,864
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

This disclosure below relates to MFRS 9 which came into effect in 2018.

Amounts arising from Expected Credit Losses ("ECL')

Measurement of ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following
variables:

- probability of default ("PD");

- loss given default ("LGD"); and

- exposure at default ("EAD").

These parameters are derived from the statistical models which are internally developed by
the Company based on the historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking
information.

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over
the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the
obligation. They are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on the statistical
rating models. These statistical models are based on internally and externally compiled data
comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. The model outputs are adjusted to
reflect forward-looking information whenever appropriate.

If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, this will lead to a change in the
estimate of the associated PD. The ECL considers the contractual maturities of exposures.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. LGD is expressed as a
percentage of loss per unit of exposure at the time of default and represents an estimate of the
economic loss in the event of the default of the counterparty. Factors in determining LGDs
include seniority of claims, availability and quality of collateral, legal enforceability of
processes in the jusridiction and industry of borrower and existing market conditions. They
are estimates at a certain date and are derived using statistical models, which are calculated
based on the statistical rating models. These statistical models are based on internally
compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. The model outputs are
adjusted to reflect forward-looking information whenever appropriate.
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)
Amounts arising from ECL (cont’d.)

Measurement of ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
(cont’d.)

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Company derives the
EAD from the current and potential future exposure to the counterparty. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross carrying amount.

The ECL is determined by projecting PD, LGD and EAD for each individual exposure.
These three components are multiplied together and adjusted for forward looking
information. This is then discounted back to the reporting date. The discount rate used in the
ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

Significant increase in credit risk

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. The Company considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating

- External credit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability
to meet its obligations.

A movement of an instrument’s credit rating along the rating scale will represent changes in
credit risk, measured by the change in PD.

The criteria for assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly will be determined
by both quantitative changes in 12M PDs and qualitative factors. The credit risk of a
particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition if,
based on the Company’s quantitative model, the 12M PD is determined to have increased by
more than 100% since origination. The criteria as described above would only apply if the
financial instrument does not have an investment grade rating.
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)
Significant increase in credit risk (cont’d.)

Using its experienced credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience,
the Company may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in credit
risk based on particular qualitative factors that are indicative of such and whose effect may
not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. The Company
uses the watch-list as an additional trigger for the identification of significant increase in
credit risk.

The Company considers "low credit risk" to be an investment grade credit rating using a
combination of internal and external credit rating models.

Credit risk grades

The Company assigns each obligor to a credit risk grade that reflects the PD of the obligor.
Credit risk grades are established based on qualitative and quantitative factors that are
indicative of default risk. These factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the
type of counterparty. Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the default risk
increases as credit risk deteriorates. Each exposure is assigned with a credit risk grade at
initial recognition, based on available information on the borrower. Obligors are subject to
ongoing monitoring and review, and may be assigned with new credit risk grades that better
reflects their creditworthiness. The monitoring typically involves the use of information
obtained during periodic review, including published financial statements, external rating
(where available), as well as qualitative information on an obligor’s industry, competitive
positioning, management, financial policy and financial flexibility.

Definition of default
The Company considers a financial asset to be in default by assessing the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria

For other receivables, the counterparty fails to make a contractual payment within 6 months
after it falls due (i.e. after expiration of the maximum granted credit terms). For bonds and
loans, the instrument is in overdue status and there are non-payments on another debt
obligation of the same issuer to the Company.
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
(vii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)
Definition of default (cont’d.)

Qualitative criteria

The counterparty is either bankrupt or has indications of potentially significant financial
difficulty such as lawsuits or similar actions that threaten the financial viability of the
counterparty; distressed exchange, merger or amalgamation without assumption or breach of
material loan covenants not rectified within a given timeframe, restructuring with expected
principal haircut or a breach in material loan covenant that is not rectified within a given
timeframe.

The criteria above have been applied to all financial instruments held by the Company and
are consistent with the definition of default used for credit risk management purposes. The
default definition has been applied consistently to model the PD, EAD and LGD throughout
the Company’s expected loss calculations.

Incorporating of forward-looking information

The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether
the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its
measurement of ECL. The Company has performed historical analysis and identified key
economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD vary by
financial instrument. Experienced judgement has also been applied in this process. Forecasts
of these economic variables (the "base economic scenario") are obtained from publicly
available economic databases published on a quarterly basis and provide the best estimate
view of the economy over the next four to five years, and based on such information, to
project the economic variables for the full remaining lifetime of each instrument, a mean
reversion approach is used. The impact of these economic variables on the PD, EAD and
LGD has been determined by performing statistical regression analysis to understand the
impact changes in these variables have had historically on default rates and the components
of LGD and EAD.
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23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)
Incorporating of forward-looking information (cont’d.)

In addition to the base economic scenario, the Company uses multiple scenarios to ensure
non-linear risks are captured. The number of scenarios and their respective scenario attributes
are reviewed at each reporting date. At 31 December 2024, the Company concluded that two
particular scenarios are capable of capturing non-linear risks inherent in all portfolios. The
scenario weightings are determined by expert judgement, taking into account the range of
possible outcomes presented by the chosen scenarios. The assessment of significant increase
in credit risk is performed using the 12M PD under each scenario multiplied by the
associated scenario weights. This determines whether the financial instrument is in Stage 1, 2
or 3, and hence whether 12M or lifetime ECL should be applied. Following this assessment,
the Company measures ECL as either a probability-weighted 12M ECL (Stage 1), or a
probability-weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted ECLs are
determined by running each scenario through the relevant ECL model and multiplying it by
the appropriate scenario weight (as opposed to weighting the inputs).

As with any economic forecasts, the projections and likelihoods of occurrence are subject to
a high degree of inherent uncertainty and the actual outcomes may be significantly different
from those projected. The Company considers these forecasts to represent its best estimate of
the possible outcomes and has analysed the non-linearities and asymmetries within the
Company’s different portfolios to establish that the chosen scenarios are appropriately
representative of the range of possible scenarios.

The sensitivity of the ECL to the economic variable assumptions affecting the calculation of
ECL was not material to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Market, Credit and Liquidity Risks (cont’d.)

(viii) Concentration Risk

(ix)

An important element of managing market, credit risks and liquidity risk is to actively
manage concentration to specific issuers, counterparties, industry sectors, countries and
currencies. Both internal and regulatory limits are put in place and monitored to manage
this risk. These limits are reviewed on a regular basis by the ALC. The Company’s
exposures are within the concentration limits set by the regulator. The Company
actively manages its asset mix to ensure that there is no significant concentration of
market, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Sensitivity Analysis on Financial Risks

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact on the Company’s net profit after tax
by applying possible shocks to each key variables, with all other variables constant. Co-
movement of key variables can significantly affect the fair values and/or amortised cost
of financial assets. To demonstrate the impact due to changes in each key variable, the
variables are changed individually.

The impact on net profit after tax represents the effect caused by changes in fair value
of financial assets whose fair values are recorded in the Profit or Loss Statement, and
changes in valuation of insurance and reinsurance contract liabilities/assets. The equity
sensitivity represents the impact on net profit after tax and the effect on changes in fair
value of financial assets measured at FVOCI and changes in insurance finance reserves.

The below tables demonstrate the sensitivity of the Company’s profit and loss after tax
and equity to a change in the specified variables on an individual basis with all other

variables held constant.

The methodology for deriving sensitivities has not changed from the previous year.
Certain variable has been updated to reflect more relevant scenarios for the Company.
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198301007025 (102249-P)

GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Operational, Market Conduct and Compliance Risk

Operational risk is an event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the
achievement of the Company’s objectives resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes
and systems, human factors or external events.

Market conduct risk is an event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the
achievement of the Company’s objectives arising from its personnel and intermediaries not
conducting themselves in accordance with the ethical standards and in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations governing insurance product for pre-sales, during sales and after
sales process. It is synonymous with professional behaviour and customer’s protection. There are
four areas in which the Company continuously strengthens:

- Fit and Proper

- Sales Advisory Process

- Training and Competency
- Business Conduct

Compliance risk is any event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the
achievement of the Company’s objectives and its reputation, as a result of its failure to comply
with the following applicable laws, regulations and standards:

- Laws, regulations and rules governing insurance business and regulated financial licensed
activities undertaken by the Company;

- Codes of practice promoted by industry associations of which the Company is a member of;
and

- Any other applicable regulations which do not specifically govern the licensed activities
undertaken by the Company but can expose the organisation to legal, regulatory or
reputational loss.

The day-to-day management of operational, market conduct and compliance risks is effected
through the maintenance of comprehensive internal controls, supported by an infrastructure of
systems and procedures to monitor processes and transactions. The SMT regularly reviews and
monitors these issues at its monthly meetings. The Internal Audit team regularly reviews the
systems of internal control to assess their ongoing relevance and effectiveness , and reports at least
quarterly to the Board Audit Committee. As an added measure, the risk appetite statement
explicitly sets the Company’s tolerance level to financial loss arising from operational, market
conduct and compliance risks.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

23. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Technology, Information and Cyber Risks

Technology risk is defined as risk related to any potential adverse outcome, damage, loss,
disruption, violation, system/hardware failure and capacity deficiency arising from' the use of
technologies such as electronic hardware/devices, software, online networks and telecomunication
systems.

Information risk is defined as risk related to confidentiality, integrity and availability of
information (in physical or digital form).

Cyber risk is defined as risk related to acts perpetrated by malicious threat actors including internal
sabotage, espionage, malicious attacks, hacking incidents, fraudulent conduct using information
and communication technologies.

The Company adopts a risk based approach in managing technology, risks relating to IT disruption,
cyber threats, data loss and third parties. The Company has put in place technological and
procedural risk controls to defend against external and internal threats. Key risk indicators related
to technology, information and cyber risks are reported to the Board on a regular basis.
Independent assessment is performed by the Internal Audit team on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the processes to manage technology, information and cyber risks. The risk appetite statement
also explicitly sets the Company’s tolerance level to financial loss arising from technology risks.

Sustainability Risk

Sustainability risk is defined as any environmental, social or governance ("ESG") event or
condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the
value of the investment and enterprise value.

The Company’s Sustainability Report 2024 will be published on its corporate website. The report
is aligned with the requirements of the Global Reporting Initiative ("GRI") Standards for
sustainability reporting, and the recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures ("TCFD") for climate-related disclosures. The report provides an update on the
Company’s ambition for sustainable development, strategy, risk management practices, initiatives
and progress.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

24. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table shows an analysis of each class of assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period:

Fair values hierarchy

Valuation Valuation
technique using technique using
Quoted observable unobservable
market price inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RM RM RM RM
2024
Assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis:
Financial assets at FVOCI:
Malaysian government securities - 127,550,913 - 127,550,913
Debt securities - 394,467,490 - 394,467,490
Quoted equity securities 51,242,121 - - 51,242,121
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Debt securities - 52,926,797 - 52,926,797
Unquoted equity securities - 15,911,940 1,445,384 17,357,324
Collective investment schemes - 105,436,362 - 105,436,362
51.242,121 696,293,502 1,445,384 748,981,007
2023
Assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis:
Financial assets at FVOCI:
Malaysian government securities - 134,391,845 - 134,391,845
Debt securities - 442,347,019 - 442,347,019
Quoted equity securities 48,159,112 - - 48,159,112
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Debt securities - 36,535,523 - 36,535,523
Quoted equity securities 4,772 - - 4,772
Unquoted equity securities - 9,420,870 435,676 9,856,546
Collective investment schemes - 101,235,487 - 101,235,487
48,163,884 723,930,744 435,676 772,530,304
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

24.

25.

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D.)

Valuation techniques

There were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the
financial year.

The following is a description of the method by which the fair values of financial instruments
which are recorded at fair value are determined using valuation techniques. These incorporate the
Company’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the
instruments:

FVOCI /FVTPL financial assets

The fair value of financial assets that are actively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets at the close of business on the
financial position date.

Investments in financial instruments with embedded derivatives consist of investments in
structured deposits. The fair values of structured deposits are determined by reference to banks’
valuation at the close of business on the financial position date.

For investment in Collective Investment Schemes, fair values are determined by reference to
published net asset values.

REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2024, as prescribed under the RBC
Framework is provided below:

2024 2023
RM RM
Eligible Tier 1 Capital:
Share capital (paid-up) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Reserves, including retained earnings 267,350,065 324,636,609
367,350,065 424,636,609
Tier 2 Capital:
Eligible Reserves 8,932,832 4,397,891
Deductions (51,436,412)  (53,848,112)
Total Capital Available 324,846,485 375,186,388
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 22 February 2017, the Malaysian Competition Commission ("MyCC") issued its Proposed Decision
on an alleged infringement by the General Insurance Association of Malaysia ("PIAM") and its 22
members under the Section 4(2)(a) of the Competition Act 2010 ("the Act"). MyCC’s Proposed
Decision is with respect to the agreement reached between PIAM and the Federation of Automobile
Workshop Owners’ Association of Malaysia ("FAWOAM") in respect to the trade discount rates for
parts of certain vehicle makes and labour rates for workshops under the PIAM Approved Repairers
Scheme.

A final decision dated 14 September 2020 was issued by the MyCC with a finding of infringement and
the general insurance industry was imposed a financial penalty of about RM130 million. For GEGM,
specifically, the financial penalty imposed is in the sum of RM1.9mil. The Company has filed its appeal
against the MyCC’s final decision on 13 October 2020 and a stay application (pending disposal of the
appeal) on 6 November 2020. The Competition Appeal Tribunal ("Tribunal”) delivered its decision
with regard to the stay application on 23 March 2021, unanimously deciding to allow the insurers’
respective stay applications and ordered that the Cease and Desist order and financial penalty imposed
on all insurers be stayed pending disposal of the appeal before the Tribunal. Counsels for PIAM and the
22 insurers have completed their respective submissions before the Tribunal.

On 2 September 2022, the Tribunal issued the decision and grounds of the decision on the case, which
was to allow the appeals by PIAM & the general insurers and the Final Decision of MyCC dated
14.09.2020 to be set aside, while at the same time dismissing Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM")’s appeal.

On 1 December 2022, MyCC filed an application for leave for judicial review of the Tribunal’s
decision dated 2 September 2022 ("Leave Application"). On 4 January 2023, PIAM’s legal counsel was
informed by the High Court that PIAM’s request for leave to appear in MyCC’s Leave Application has
been allowed by the High Court Judge.

The hearing on the judicial review application took place on 30 November 2023. After hearing the oral
submissions of all parties, the learned Judged fixed the matter for decision (by way of Zoom) on 16
January 2024.

On 16 January 2024, the learned Judge dismissed the above matter. The learned Judge’s main ground of
decision is that MyCC does not have the locus standi to commence judicial review proceedings against
the Respondents, as MyCC is not a person adversely affected by the decision of the Tribunal.

Following the dismissal of the MyCC’s Leave Application, the MyCC submitted a Notice of Appeal
dated 15 February 2024 to the Court of Appeal to appeal the decision previously made on 16 January
2024. The Appeal was fixed for Case Management on 15 May 2024,

The Court further fixed the Case Management (by way of e-review) on 8 May 2025 and physical
hearing before the Court of Appeal on 22 May 2025.

The Management of the Company believes that the criteria to disclose the above as a contingent
liability is met. Except as disclosed above, the Company does not have any other contingent assets or
liabilities.
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GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

28. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Company has made changes during the year to present net investment income separately into
three (03) lines: Interest income from financial assets not measured at FVTPL, Interest income from
financial assets measured at FVTPL and Other investment income in the Statement of Profit or Loss
to comply with the requirements of MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statement. The net
investment income from different categories of financial assets were separately presented in the
notes to the financial statements in the prior year and is now distinctly presented in the Statement of
Profit or Loss to provide greater clarity into the Company's financial investment performance. This
approach also ensures alignment with the presentation in the penultimate parent company's financial
statements.

The above changes in comparatives have no impact to the Statement of Financial Position, Profit
before tax, Profit after tax, Statement of Cash Flows nor Statement of Changes in Equity of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

Statement of Profit or Loss

As previously As
reported Reclassification restated
RM RM RM
Interest income:
Financial assets not measured at FVTPL - 24,432,622 24,432,622
Financial assets measured at FVTPL - 869,396 869,396
Other investment income 33,005,157 (25,302,018) 7,703,139
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